


  



Council offices 
 
Rosebud  
90 Besgrove Street (Mel ref: 170 A4) 
 
Mornington  
2 Queen Street (Mel ref: 104 D10) 
 
Hastings  
21 Marine Parade (Mel ref: 154 K11) 
 
Somerville  
1085 Frankston-Flinders Rd (within Somerville Library) 
 
Telephone: 1300 850 600 or 5950 1000 
Fax: 5986 6696 
 
Email: customerservice@mornpen.vic.gov.au 
Website: www.mornpen.vic.gov.au 
 
Postal address: 
Private Bag 1000 
Rosebud VIC 3939 
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Our Council 
 
Mornington Peninsula Shire profile 
 
The Mornington Peninsula is a boot-shaped promontory separating Port Phillip Bay and Western Port.  
‘The peninsula’, as it is affectionately known to local residents, contains a diversity of scenic 
landscapes and is almost surrounded by the sea, with coastal boundaries of more than 190 
kilometres and approximately 10 per cent of Victoria’s coastline.  It is a mixture of urban areas, 
townships, natural reserves and rural land. 
 
Approximately 70 per cent of the Shire is retained as rural within the Green Wedge planning zone, 
while the other 30 per cent is towns and villages.  Within the Green Wedge there are areas of highly 
productive agricultural land as well as highly significant landscapes and ecosystems. 
 
Mornington Peninsula Shire has an estimated residential population of 160,862 people (as at 30 June 
2017) with a median age (46) 10 years older than Greater Melbourne’s (36). Compared with Greater 
Melbourne, Mornington Peninsula Shire has: 

• A larger percentage of ‘Seniors’ aged 70-84 (14.0% compared to 7.7%); 

• A larger percentage of ‘Empty nesters and retirees’ aged 60-69 (14.1% compared to 9.3%); 

• A smaller percentage of ‘Young workforce’ aged 25-34 (8.7% compared to 16.3%); and 

• A smaller percentage of 18-24 year olds (7.0% compared to 10.0%) 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Our Vision 
 
To value, protect and improve the unique characteristics and way of life on our Peninsula 
 
“Valuing our unique peninsula” 

  
Our Mission 
 
We will achieve this by: 

• Providing effective leadership and representation by democratically elected Councillors 

• Listening and reflecting your collective aspirations in our plans 

• Helping you create a resilient, inclusive community that can respond to challenges 

• Bringing new ideas to discussions that create new opportunities 

• Encouraging you to get involved in your community 

• Working hard to provide the best possible service and value 

• Keeping you up to date with what is happening across the Shire in an open and direct way 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Note: these are the Vision and Mission statements from Mornington Peninsula Shire’s current Council Plan (2017-2021). 



Our Values 

 

Note: this is the Values statement from Mornington Peninsula Shire’s current Council Plan (2017-2021) 





Mayor’s message 
 
What a fantastic year of achievement on the Mornington Peninsula! I wish to 
begin by recognising the significant efforts of our previous councillors in 
representing the views and interests of our community. The new councillor group, 
elected in October, is committed to build on your legacy.  
 
As a new council group, we reset our community vision for the Mornington 
Peninsula Shire through our 2017-2021 Council Plan. The plan, adopted in June 
2017, establishes the blueprint for how we will work with the community to achieve our common 
objectives.  
 
Based on extensive community consultation, held during August and September 2016 under the 
banner of Your Peninsula 2021, Council sought ideas and feedback to shape the future of the 
Mornington Peninsula and ensure our community continues to be a great place to live, work and play. 
Concrete actions to be undertaken during 2017-18 were confirmed through a community budgeting 
process. 
 
Supporting our new strategic direction, Council has worked hard with the community to deliver 
exciting new capital and priority projects. The culmination of the keystone Destination Rosebud 
project and the Jetty Road play space were launched by the Minister for Local Government in May. 
This $5.5 million project was jointly funded through the state government’s Growing Suburbs Fund 
($4.15 million) and by Mornington Peninsula Shire ($1.35 million).  
 
We have also been successful in obtaining a further $1.7 million in grants in round two of the Growing 
Suburbs Fund, with future delivery projects funded and/or underway at Emil Madsen Reserve, 
Waterfall Gully Preschool, Marshall Street Recreational Reserve, Oakridge Recreational Reserve, 
Wallaroo Reserve, and the Changing Places project in Mornington to enable people with a disability 
dignified access to basic facilities. 
 
We are continually responding to the changing needs of our community. This year we particularly 
responded to increased female participation in sports, and completed the modernisation of the 
Somerville Recreation Reserve Pavilion and Mount Martha’s Ferrero Recreation Reserve change 
rooms. Improvements included unisex toilets and a unisex ambulant toilet, redesigned shower 
cubicles and a changeover of washroom fixtures.   
 
In August, Council received a progress report on the Shire’s Positive Ageing Strategy 2013-18: 
Mornington Peninsula, A Community for All Ages. Two significant recommendations were 
subsequently adopted by Council from this report: to register the shire as a member of the World 
Health Organisation Age-Friendly Cities/Communities Global Network, and for the shire to sign the 
Age-Friendly Victoria Declaration (AFD). Both actions underline Council’s strong commitment to 
creating an age-friendly community. 
 
Another key focus has been promoting improved transport options on the peninsula. After several 
years of shire advocacy and a successful 12 month trial, we were delighted to announce in May that 
funding had been secured for PenBus Route 887 to become a permanent bus route with additional 
services. This funding guarantees that peninsula students can access classes at Monash University’s 
Peninsula campus and other education options. 
 
Similarly, August saw the long-awaited launch of Peninsula Transport Assist (PTA). This service 
allows volunteers who use their own vehicles to help residents who need assistance travelling to 
appointments. On average, 250 residents use this service monthly.  
 
In a further boost to the shire’s reputation as an international tourism destination, the shire hosted 
Lights by DreamWorks on the Rosebud foreshore in April, attracting more than 300,000 local and 
international visitors.      
 
Tourism, along with agriculture, health and manufacturing, are critical industries for the shire. We 
work extensively with local businesses and industry representatives to ensure everyone living on the 



Mornington Peninsula has access to the right skills and jobs to support our sustainable economic 
development. 
 
Council has also maintained its strong commitment to carbon neutrality. Just one of the very practical 
programs we carried out during 2016-17 was our Climate Ready Program, which teaches residents 
about climate change risks and how to prepare appropriately. Through this program, people can 
utilise the document scanning services at our libraries to scan and store important documents on USB 
sticks for easy access in an emergency.  
 
Promoting community wellbeing is also vitally important. In March, we provided support for the entire 
executive group of the Mornington Peninsula Junior Football League to undertake youth mental health 
first aid training. This training is now being implemented at each football club, equipping adults at the 
clubs with the necessary skills to better assist adolescents who may be developing a mental health 
problem or are in a mental health crisis. 
 
Our Maternal and Child Health Nurses celebrated 100 years of service in May. Maternal and Child 
Health Nurses play a critical role in our community. This important service is highly valued by new 
parents and young families, as demonstrated by the 17,000 consultations with Maternal and Child 
Health Nurses undertaken in 2015-16. 
 
During May, our Council, in collaboration with Frankston Headspace, celebrated IDAHOBIT Day, 
where we united to fight against discrimination in support of lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender and 
intersex people (LGBTIQ+) and their friends, colleagues and families. We are proud to be a Council 
that supports diversity and inclusion, and are committed to being leaders in equality for their 
community.   
 
Through all this activity, Council has continued its strong advocacy work to promote the best interests 
of our community to key stakeholders, partners and decision makers.  
 
We maintained our active involvement in the Interface Group of Councils, promoting as part of this 
group the unique opportunities and challenges we face within the peninsula balancing the promotion, 
development and growth of our region, while strongly working to preserve our green wedge.  
 
A focus of our advocacy has been preserving local planning controls in the face of changes to state 
planning legislation. Working in partnership with community members across the peninsula, we have 
voiced our deep concern about the impact that these changes will have on the amenity and low-scale 
character of the Mornington Peninsula and lobbied our state government colleagues to have the new 
controls changed. We also developed a new Housing and Settlement in 2016-17, which we will 
deploy over 2017-18 as the basis for our continued planning work and advocacy to foster appropriate 
development on the peninsula. 
 
I’d like to thank my councillor colleagues, our Chief Executive Officer Carl Cowie, and all officers 
involved in delivering a productive year of achievements. 

 
  



CEO’s message 

 

In October 2016, residents and ratepayers of the Mornington Peninsula Shire 
voted in our current Council of eight ‘new’ and three returning Councillors. On 
behalf of the organisation, I would like to thank those outgoing Councillors for 
their confidence in me, for their service to the community over many years 
and offer my best wishes to the incoming and returning Councillors, as they 
work to value, protect and improve the unique characteristics and way of life 
on the Mornington Peninsula. 
 
During the last financial year 2016-17, the organisation on behalf of Council, 
continued its focus on delivering even better and more responsive customer service, the results of 
which show further improvements service to the community. Following the roll-out of a new phone 
system in June 2016, a series of dashboard monitors were installed around Shire offices to provide 
transparent, real time measurement on our customer service performance including how many calls 
are being taken, how many staff are taking calls, our call answering performance and so on. The 
intent is to keep high levels of performance in Customer Service at the forefront of everyone’s mind. 
 

Other examples of success from our continued focus on achieving excellence in customer service 
include: 
 

• The addition of a weekly recycling collection service from December 2016 to February 2017 to 
provide all residents and visitors with this valuable service over the busy summer period; 
   

• An expansion of the Rapid Response – General Clean-up Service that enables us to promptly 
(‘quick in and quick out’) respond to incidents of litter, dumped rubbish in hot spots, and graffiti 
across our townships; and 

 

• Additional resources added to undertake High Visibility Cleaning of shopping precincts. 
 
We’ve also made it easier and quicker for customers to complete transactions and find information 
with measures like our online payments portal launched as a ‘one stop’ destination providing 24/7 
self-service for submitting applications and payments; WebChat, enabling customers to interact 
directly, and in real time, with Customer Service team members fielding their enquiries; and a 
Mornington Peninsula Shire Facebook page providing still another way for the community to 
communicate with us. 
 
Along with ensuring excellent customer service, another major focus of the organisation is maximising 
efficiency. With rates ‘capped’ at 2 per cent, it is more important than ever that we ensure our 
processes are as efficient as possible, limiting overheads costs to the ratepayer.  Having achieved a 
$2.8 million half year surplus in 2015-16, the organisation was able to generate a further $2 million in 
savings for the mid-year surplus in 2016-17. Council continued to demonstrate its ongoing 
commitment and focus on optimising value for money for our ratepayers and residents by re-
allocating these funds to some key priority projects. 
 
Our investment in infrastructure to support the services we deliver has been as strong as ever, 
despite the challenge of rate capping. The Capital Works Program performance in 2016-17 has seen 
the continuation of a major turnaround in the efficient and timely delivery of projects to the community. 
At $71.6 million, this year has seen the biggest capital works program on record for the Mornington 
Peninsula Shire. The total quantum of works delivered this period was significantly greater than last 
financial year and arguably the best result on record for the Shire. In 2015-16 the total Capital Works 
spend totalled $29.5 million, whilst the result for 2016-17 was $47.5 million.  
 
As part of maximising value to the community, we have also worked consistently to improve the reach 
of our data so we can make smarter investments in the community’s assets. In 2016-17, renewal 
modelling for all major asset classes was carried out, with Asset Management Plans updated and a 
major ‘State of the Asset’ report delivered, informing the 2017/18 Budget.   
 
While there has been a strong focus on customer service and infrastructure delivery, the care side of 
the Shire business has also been very strong.  Supporting the second oldest per capita population in 



Victoria, the Shire’s communities team has worked hard on internal efficiencies to better serve our 
older population. To date, savings of $0.75M and significant service improvements have been 
achieved with all team members contributing to continuous improvement actions, particularly in the 
smarter use of technology and revised service delivery models. While the Child & Maternal Health, 
Youth and Family Services have had busy years serving the needs of the younger cohort of Shire 
residents, many with significant life challenges. 
 
Council’s role as an advocate for local interests has been performed as strongly as ever this year. Of 
particular note, is an ongoing campaign around changes to General Residential Zone height controls 
and its impact on our local planning scheme. Council will continue to advocate for the best outcomes 
for its local community, whether on this issue, the rezoning of public utilities land, or changes to the 
way land valuations are conducted, to ensure the views of our local community are heard at the 
highest levels.  
 
I would finally like to thank the Mayor and Council for their strong support in FY’17 and to the 
Executive Team, management and staff of the Shire, without whose incredibly hard work and 
commitment to achieving excellence, none of these positive results would have been possible, l am 
very proud of what Mornington Peninsula Shire Council has achieved in 2016-17 and while there is 
much more to be done, it is my pleasure to lead the organisation to deliver on our Council’s Plan 
2017-21 and I commend this Annual Report to you all. 
 
Carl Cowie 
CEO 
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Description of operations 
 
Mornington Peninsula Shire is responsible for more than 70 community services, from family and children’s 
services, traffic regulation, open space, youth facilities, waste management and community building; to 
matters concerning business development, planning for appropriate development and ensuring 
accountability for Council’s budget. This broad range of community services and infrastructure for residents 
support the wellbeing and prosperity of our community. Council’s vision, strategic objectives and strategies 
to further improve services and facilities are described in our Council Plan and the annual Budget and 
reported on in this document. Refer to the section on Our Performance for more information about Council 
services.  
 
Economic factors 
Council’s revenue raising capability in 2016-17 was limited by the rate cap, under the Fair Go Rates System, 
set at 2.5% which is significantly lower than the historical average of 6%. 
 
Major achievements and capital works 
Please see our Highlights of the Year section. 
 
Major changes 
There were no major changes during 2016-17 in relation to the operations of the Council or to Council’s 
organisational structure, the methods of carrying out its strategic objectives. 
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Councillors 
 
The Council was elected to provide leadership for the good governance of the municipal district and the local 
community. On 22 October 2016 the Mornington Peninsula community elected this Council for a four-year 
term.  The municipality is divided into six wards, represented by one Councillor each in Watson, Cerberus, 
and Red Hill Wards; two Councillors in Nepean Ward; and three each in Seawinds and Briars Wards. The 11 
Councillors are the elected representatives of all residents and ratepayers across the Shire. They have 
responsibility for setting the strategic direction for the municipality, policy development, identifying service 
standards and monitoring performance across the organisation. The Councillors are listed below: 
 

 

 
 

Outgoing Councillors: Cr Andrew Dixon Briars Ward | Date elected: 27 October 2012 | Date retired: 22 October 2016 ● Cr David Garnock Cerberus 

Ward | Date elected: 27 October 2012 | date retired: 22 October 2016 ● Cr David Gibb Seawinds Ward | Date elected: 27 October 2012 | Date retired: 22 October 2016 ● Cr 
Graham Pittock Seawinds Ward | Date elected: 27 October 2012 | Date retired: 22 October 2016 ● Cr Tim Rodgers Nepean Ward | Date elected: 27 October 2012 | 

Date retired: 22 October 2016 ● Cr Anne Shaw Briars Ward | Date elected: 27 October 2012 | Date retired: 22 October 2016 ● Cr Tim Wood Red Hill Ward | Date 
elected: 25 August 2014 | Date retired: 22 October 2016 
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Our People 
 
Organisational structure 
 
Council is the governing body that appoints a Chief Executive Officer (CEO). The CEO has responsibility for 
the day to day management of operations in accordance with the Council Plan. Two Executives and the 
CEO lead the Executive Group (EG) and lead the organisation. Details of the CEO and senior officers 
reporting directly to the CEO are set out below. 
 
As at 30 June 2017. 
 
Chief Executive Officer (CEO) 
Carl Cowie 
In accordance with the Local Government Act 1989 (Sect 94A), the Chief Executive Officer is responsible 
for: 
 establishing and maintaining an appropriate organisational structure for the Council; 
 ensuring that the decisions of the Council are implemented without undue delay; 
 the day to day management of the Council's operations in accordance with the Council Plan; 
 developing, adopting and disseminating a code of conduct for Council staff; and 
 providing timely advice to the Council.  
 
Senior officers reporting directly to the CEO 
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A chart setting out the organisational structure of the Council is shown below: 
 

 
 



14 

 
 
Council staff 
A summary of the number of full time equivalent (FTE) Council staff by organisational structure, employment 
type and gender is set out below. 
 

Employment Type/Gender CEO 
Corporate & 
Community 

Infrastructure 
& Planning 

Total 

 
FTE FTE FTE FTE 

Permanent FT - F             44.10              99.69                75.50            219.29  

Permanent FT - M             22.00              46.80              109.60            178.40  

Permanent PT - F             30.43            181.93                35.39            247.75  

Permanent PT - M               7.64                8.89                  5.69              22.22  

Total Permanent Staff           104.17            337.31              226.18            667.66  

Casual - F               7.30              16.34                11.72              35.36  

Casual - M               3.68                3.16                  5.32              12.16  
Total Staff           115.16            356.81              243.22            715.19  
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A summary of the number of full time equivalent (FTE) staff categorised by employment classification and 
gender is set out below. 
 

Employment Classification Female Male Total 

 
FTE FTE FTE 

Band 1             15.53                8.53                24.06  

Band 2               6.76                0.18                  6.94  

Band 3           140.58              14.40              154.98  

Band 4             93.57              17.56              111.13  

Band 5             84.45              27.50              111.95  

Band 6             58.12              33.51                91.63  

Band 7             19.44              15.98                35.42  

Band 8               2.95                4.00                  6.95  

All Other             81.00              91.13              172.13  

Total           502.40            212.79  715.19 
Note: All Other includes senior officers employed under contract and staff on annualised salaries 
 

 
  
Note: All Other includes senior officers employed under contract and staff on annualised salaries 
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Equal employment opportunity program 
 
A Council with 40 or more members of staff must develop and implement an equal opportunity program. 
Mornington Peninsula Shire has implemented an equal employment opportunity program which is designed 
to eliminate discrimination against and promote equal opportunity for women and persons in designated 
groups in relation to employment matters.  
 
The objective of Council’s Equal Employment Opportunity Program is to ensure there is no discrimination 
relating to the characteristics listed under the Equal Opportunity Act 2010 such as race, colour, sex, marital 
status, parenthood, physical or mental impairment, age, religious or political affiliation, gender identity and 
sexual orientation. Further objectives include ensuring the workplace is free from bullying and harassment.  
 
The indicator that measures the effectiveness of the program is: the number of discrimination, harassment, 
victimisation and/or bullying complaints, with a zero target. During 2016/17 Council received one complaint 
under its EEO program. A thorough investigation of this complaint was conducted.  
 
The 2016/17 year was considered very successful in our aim of achieving zero complaints, with a strong 
commitment demonstrated by the organisation achieving our EEO program principles. 
 
The actions taken to implement the Program over the past 12 months include progressively reviewing all 
human resource management policies and procedures to ensure they are up to date and consistent with 
statutory obligations.  This year a major focus was on updating our Employee Code of Conduct (the 
‘Code’).  Maintaining a current Code of Conduct and related policies assists Council to attract and recruit 
individuals with congruent values and behavioural standards. The Code also ‘sets the standard’ for expected 
minimum behaviour and performance standards at the outset, while ensuring as far as reasonably 
practicable that MPS is compliant with relevant legislation.  Included in the Code, under Standard 1, 
Professional Conduct, there is a specific description on Human Rights, Anti-Discrimination, and Equal 
Opportunity. Other relevant policies reviewed this year include Bullying Prevention, Grievance Policy and the 
Disciplinary Policy and Procedures.  
 
Council also, through its Corporate Induction and training programs, ensures both new and existing 
employees understand their obligations to comply with the Equal Opportunity Act. Specifically, each year 
MPS engages the Victorian Equal Opportunity and Human Rights Commission to deliver training, with a 
focus on the leaders of the organisation, as they have greater responsibilities under legislation to deal with 
issues of an EEO nature. In 2016/17, four training sessions were held with a total 67 employees attending. 
Of these, 43 were first time attendees, and 24 were refreshers. Eight people managers attended.  Our 
program aim for the 2017/18 year is to have all new starters complete this critical training in their first 12 
months of employment with Council. 
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Financial summary 
  
Council’s financial position continues to remain sound with strong cash flows, reserves and a solid balance 
sheet. To date Council has been able to respond well to the Fair Go Rates system and provide an increased 
surplus that has allowed an increased level of spending on capital and services. Council is cognisant of 
longer term financial projections under the rate capping environment and will continue to seek opportunities 
for efficiency, cost saving and will prioritise Council services to ensure the sound financial position continues 
into the future. A summary of our performance is outlined below.  Detailed information relating to council’s 
financial performance is included within the financial statements and performance statement sections of this 
report. 
 
Operating position 
Council achieved a surplus of $22.8 million in 2016–17.  This surplus compares favourably to the prior year 
surplus of $19.3 million.  The adjusted underlying surplus of council, after removing non-recurrent capital 
grants, cash capital contributions and non-monetary capital contributions, is a surplus of $11.2 million or 
5.1% when compared to adjusted underlying revenue.  This compares favourably to the prior year surplus of 
$5.4 million and the Local Government Performance Reporting Framework Target (Target) of >0%. 
 
Sustaining an adjusted underlying surplus is a critical financial strategy that provides capacity to maintain 
and renew the $2.2 billion of community assets under council’s control and continue to provide critical 
services to the community.  
 

 
 

 
 
Liquidity 
Cash including term deposits over 90 days has increased by $6.9 million from the prior year.  The net 
increase is driven by an increase in revenue and operating surplus as well as receipt of the 2017/18 
Financial Assistance Grant in 2016/17.  The working capital ratio (which assesses council’s ability to meet 
current commitments), is calculated by measuring council’s current assets as a percentage of current 
liabilities. Council’s result of 199% is an indicator of a strong financial position and within the Target of 100% 
to 400%. This is particularly pleasing in a year where a significant increase in capital works completion has 
taken place.  
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Obligations 
Council aims to ensure that it is able to maintain its infrastructure assets at the expected levels, while at the 
same time continuing to deliver the services critical to the community.  
 
Council’s asset renewal ratio which is measured by comparing asset renewal expenditure to depreciation 
was 86% which was within the Target of 40%-130%. 
 

 
 
 

 
At the end of the 2016-17 year council’s debt ratio (which is measured by comparing interest bearing loans 
and borrowings to rate revenue) was 12.3% which is at the lower end of the Target of 0%-70% due to 
Council’s debt reduction strategy. 
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Stability and efficiency 
Council raises revenue from a range of sources including rates, user fees, fines, grants and contributions.  
Despite this, council’s rates concentration (which compares rate revenue to adjusted underlying revenue), 
was 71.9% for the 2016-17 year which is toward the top end of the Target of 30%-80%. This is a slight 
reduction on 2015-16 due to growth in fees and charges income and recurrent grant income.   
 

 
 
 
The average residential rate per residential assessment is $1,510. 
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Our performance 
Planning and accountability framework 
 
The Planning and Accountability Framework is found in part 6 of the Local Government Act 1989 (the Act). 
The Act requires councils to prepare the following planning and reporting documents: 
 A Council Plan within the six months after each general election or by 30 June, whichever is later 
 A Strategic Resource Plan for a period of at least four years and include this in the Council Plan 
 A Budget for each financial year 
 An Annual Report in respect of each financial year. 
 
The following diagram shows the relationships between the key planning and reporting documents that make 
up the planning and accountability framework for local government. It also shows that there are opportunities 
for community and stakeholder input and feedback at each stage of the planning and reporting cycle. 
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Council plan 
The Council Plan 2013-2017 includes strategic objectives, strategies for achieving these for the four year 
period, strategic indicators for monitoring achievement of the strategic objectives and a strategic resource 
plan.  The following are the eight goals as detailed in the Council Plan 2013-2017. 
  

 
 
Note: A new Council Plan has been developed for the next four years, however reporting for 2016-17 is 
against the previous Council Plan (as above).  
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Performance 
Council’s performance for the 2016-17 year has been reported against key items under each strategic 
objective as follows:  
 

  

Major Initiatives Progress 

Metropolitan Planning Strategy: Completion 
of submission 

Response to the Metropolitan Planning Strategy was completed 
during 2105/16.  The Victorian Government’s Plan Melbourne 
Refresh was released in early March 2017 and continues to 
support the  Mornington Peninsula Planning Statement; 
including strong support for the Urban Growth Boundary and 
protection of the Green Wedge. 

Green Wedge planning: Review and Exhibit 
Green Wedge Management Plan 

The draft report by consultants to the Interface Councils Group 
on the annual economic value of Melbourne's Green Wedges 
has been completed and will provide input to Council's review of 
the Mornington Peninsula Shire Green Wedge Management 
Plan later in 2017. A briefing will be presented to Council in 
early 2017/18, providing an opportunity for discussion regarding 
the scope of the project and issues identified to date. 

Mornington Peninsula Planning Statement: 
Completion of Mornington Peninsula 
Planning Statement 

The Mornington Peninsula Planning Statement was completed 
and is being implemented through local planning policy. The 
Plan Melbourne refresh released in March 2017 continues to 
emphasise the importance of the Localised Planning 
Statements and supports their implementation. 

Distinctive township planning: Completion 
of Hastings Major Activity Structure Plan, 
Crib Point Township Plan, Somerville 
Township Plan, Dromana Structure Plan, 
Mount Eliza and Baxter Township Plan 

A number of Priority Projects are currently being undertaken 
which aim to reinforce distinctive township character, including 
the Rye Township Plan, Dromana Township Plan and Coastal 
Villages Strategy. The Rye Township Plan is scheduled for 
report to Council in early 2017/18. 

Defining peninsula settlement patterns: 
Completion of Housing and Sustainable 
Settlement Strategy 

Housing and Settlement Strategy will be reported to Council in 
early 2017/18. The Strategy will provide an opportunity to 
reinforce Council's policy position in relation to the future 
development pattern on the Peninsula. 

Effective planning controls: Completion of 
Mornington Peninsula Planning Scheme 
Triennial Review 

A number of planning scheme amendment proposals, including 
the Sorrento Design and Development Overlay controls, the 
Mornington East rezoning to a Neighbourhood Residential Zone 
and the Hastings and Rosebud structure plan implementation 
via a Design and Development Overlay for each centre, are 
currently awaiting decisions from DELWP and the Minister.  

Comprehensive design frameworks: 
Completion of Port Phillip Urban Design 
Framework and Western Port Character 
Study and Design Guidelines 

These projects, which aim to provide for the assessment and 
better protection of township and neighbourhood character, 
underwent a review in 2016-17 and have been combined to 
avoid unnecessary duplication and to ensure a consistent 
approach. They have subsequently been rescheduled for 
completion in 2018. 

Heritage protection: Implement 
Conservation Management Plan for Police 
Point Shire Park, Point Nepean 

Documents were prepared as part of the initial stages of the 
refurbishment of the Superintendent’s Cottage (Cottage 6) at 
Police Point Shire Park. 
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Heritage Planning: Adoption of Municipal 
Heritage Strategy 

Stage 2 of the Heritage Review was completed during 2016/17. 
Adoption of the heritage overlay controls will be considered by 
Council in 2017/18. 

Residential zone planning: Implement new 
residential zones in the Mornington 
Peninsula Planning Scheme 

Opposition by Council to recent changes by the State 
government in relation to height limits (in the General 
Residential Zone) is the subject of a substantial advocacy 
program. The preparation and release of a Housing and 
Settlement Strategy is intended to provide Council with a clear 
basis to pursue future changes to better protect the character 
and amenity of the Peninsula's residential areas.  

 
Services funded in the 2016-17 Budget 

Unit Description 

Net Cost 

Budget 

Actual 

Variance 

$000 

Strategic Planning (excl. 
Coastal Planning and 
Natural Systems 
Planning) 

Officers within the Strategic Planning Unit engage closely with 
the community in the planning process; provide advice on 
statutory planning referrals, provide assessments of planning 
scheme amendment proposals; advise and support other Council 
units in their land use and management activities; liaise and 
coordinate with external agencies; and advocate for Council’s 
position with other levels of government. 

1,614 
 

417 

1,197 

Statutory Planning 

Implementing Council’s vision for the development and use of 
land as expressed in the Mornington Peninsula Planning Scheme 
by assessing the use and /or development of land for a specific 
purpose. This may involve extensive consultation with the 
community and advice on land and planning matters.  The Unit 
also provides a significant customer service role to our 
community and anyone interested in using or developing land in 
the Shire, through our planning counter at the Mornington Office 
and through telephone / email enquiries 

4,573 
 

3,653 

920 

Project Delivery – 
Buildings and Open 
Space Management 

The Buildings and Open Space Management Team manages the 
development of subdivisions.  An important part of this role 
involves working with the service authorities to ensure services 
such as water supply and sewerage disposal keeps pace with 
the development growth. 

1,100 
 

778 

322 
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 Service Performance Indicators Results Results Results 
Material variations and 

comments   Service/indicator/measure 2015 2016 2017 
  Statutory Planning         

  Timeliness         

SP1 
Time taken to decide planning 
applications 

51.00 93.00 95.00 

The median number of days 
to decide planning 
applications has increased 
slightly (2.15%).  

However, for the first time in 
several years, Council made 
more decisions (2,600) than 
applications received 
(2,332); indicating that we 
are catching up on the 
backlog. This has included a 
number of older applications 
that impacted both the 
median day figure and the 
percentage decided within 
the statutory timeframe. 

  
[The median number of days between 
receipt of a planning application and a 
decision on the application] 

        

  Service standard         

SP2 
Planning applications decided within 
required time frames 

72.76% 66.00% 61.67% 

From 1 July 2016 this 
indicator will be updated to 
include VicSmart planning 
applications which should be 
assessed within 10 days. 
This may result in some 
variances year on year. 

Additionally, this figure 
includes applications that 
lapsed, were withdrawn and 
those where a planning 
permit was not required. 

  

[(Number of regular planning 
application decisions made within 60 
days) + (Number of VicSmart planning 
application decisions made within 10 
days) / Number of planning application 
decisions made] x100 

        

  Service cost         
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SP3 Cost of statutory planning service $2,188.59 $1,921.38 $2,323.77 

Defending a major decision 
at VCAT has increased the 
overall cost of the Statutory 
Planning service. There has 
also been a marginal 
increase in the number of 
contract planners backfilling 
vacancies.  

  
[Direct cost of the statutory planning 
service / Number of planning 
applications received] 

        

  Decision making          

SP4 
Council planning decisions upheld at 
VCAT 

56.67% 67.65% 66.67% 

The percentage of Council’s 
planning decisions upheld at 
VCAT has remained stable (-
1.45%). It is important to 
note that this indicator 
includes section 79 VCAT 
decisions which are ‘failure 
to grant a planning permit’ 
reviews. By including these 
applications as ‘decisions’, 
applications which Council 
has not determined impact 
the results. If these appeals 
types were excluded from 
the calculation, the result 
would be 78.05%.  

  

[Number of VCAT decisions that did not 
set aside Council's decision in relation 
to a planning application / Number of 
VCAT decisions in relation to planning 
applications] x100 
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Major Initiatives Progress 

Best practice asset management: Condition 
assessments for all asset classes in 
accordance with Asset Management Plans 

Both Council’s Asset Management Plans and the State of the 
Asset Report were reviewed during 2016/17, using renewal 
modelling, which resulted in updated asset valuations, 
conditions and 10 year renewal projections. Four asset groups 
were identified as needing the most attention in the next few 
years: these are marine structures, sporting fields, playgrounds 
and buildings. 

Best practice local road management: 
Implementation of Safer Local Roads 
Program 

The Safer Local Roads Reseal/Rehab Program for 2016/17 
was completed. The review of the Register of Public Roads 
Policy and Road Management Plan was approved by Council 
for public exhibition on 13 June 2016. 

Transport improvements: Advocate road 
network improvements with government 
and authorities 

The delivery of the Blackspot programme continued through 
2016/17 in collaboration with our project delivery team. 
Application development for the 2018/19 Blackspot programme 
was also initiated. 
 
Advice and feedback to VicRoads about the proposed 
channelisation project at the intersection of Forest Drive and 
Nepean Highway was also provided through the year to 
highlight the need for further consideration of a long term 
solution to the road safety issues relating to the site. 
 
Community requests to Public Transport Victoria for bus stop 
improvements were finally supported, including two new bus 
stop pads in Somers. 

Road safety initiatives: Implementation of 
Peninsula Safer Speed Strategy 

As part of the Peninsula Safer Speed  Strategy, we continued 
our efforts with Road Safe South East during 2016/17 to 
provide road safety education and programs across the region, 
including the Teenage Road Accident Group presentations to 
approximately 2,500 secondary school students across the 
Peninsula. Council was also represented at the Winter Wine 
Festival to encourage safe driving practises such as the 
provision of breath testing and drink driving education.  
 
Other activities included:  
 The finalisation of community consultation for the Walkers 

Road Raised Safety Platform project; 
 Ongoing discussions with abutting property owners 

regarding the federally funded Canadian Bay car park; 
 Finalised discussions with property owners near St Kilda 

Street on Wooralla Drive about the proposed Blackspot 
Roundabout; and 

 Initiated planning for the 2017/18 Local Area Traffic 
Management projects to ensure delivery expectations will 
be met 

 
Following becoming a Towards Zero municipality in 2015/16, 
Council has collaborated with the newly formed State 
Government Safe System Road Infrastructure Program team to 
develop suitable funding opportunities for local councils. This 
has positioned Council well for receiving funding for road 
improvements, with a number of projects now strongly being 
considered. 
 
Finally, four apron seals were constructed/installed at the 
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intersections of priority unsealed to seal road junctions to 
reduce gravel wash on to main roads. 

Improved footpaths & trails network: 
Implement Footpath Strategy 

New footpath was installed to improve access for the public 
area around Sorrento RSL during July.  
 
Progress continued with the review of the footpath construction 
strategy and mapping in line with the State Governments 
principal pedestrian network. 
 
The Infrastructure Planning team assisted with the forward 
planning committee meeting for Somers Pedestrian Access. 
 
Improvements were also made to the footpath outside of Mt 
Eliza North Primary School to remove the existing potential for 
tripping hazards. 
 
Progress was made on the design of a potential footpath 
connection between Mornington and Mt Eliza along Nepean 
Highway. 

Regional natural system planning: 
Biodiversity Action Plan 

The draft Biodiversity Conservation Plan is on track to be 
completed around November 2017 for consideration by Council 
prior to public exhibition. During 2016-17 a future directions 
paper was completed following stakeholder workshops and 
stakeholder input into the development of a decision tool. 

Best practice bushland management: 
Retention and enhancement of biodiversity 
within Shire controlled bushland reserves 

Year three of the Bushland Management Contract has 
proceeded very well with all works delivered, new knowledge 
applied to pathogen hygiene controls, bushland reserve Friends 
groups celebrating great support from Council, and large 
numbers of small grants obtained and delivered. 

Conservation Planning: Tootgarook 
Wetland - Stage 1 investigation 

Stage 1 initial investigations and an accompanying draft report 
were completed in 2016/17, with a briefing of Council in March 
2017. The key findings of the Stage 1 investigations were that 
the Tootgarook wetland is an area with environmental values of 
State and National significance and is vulnerable to impact from 
further development, land use changes, and, in the longer term, 
climate change. Ecology Australia is currently preparing further 
advice in relation to appropriate land use controls to maintain 
the ecological values of key sites. 

Public Street Lighting: Change over 
streetlighting to LED 

Council endorsed the proposed business case and 
implementation plan for the Public Streetlighting upgrade on 23 
May 2017. The development of the business case and project 
plan was based on high quality and verified data inputs.  The 
total budget endorsed was $4.9M with an 18 month 
implementation plan. 

Sustainable transport: Adoption of 
Sustainable Transport Strategy 

Implementation of the Sustainable Transport Strategy 
continued, including the development of a transport advocacy 
plan.  

Alternative transport models: Advocate to 
secure continued operation of PenBus 

As a result of Council’s continued advocacy, the Victorian 
Government has established the 887 bus route as a continuing 
service; following a successful 12 month trial which replaced 
the original PenBus service.  
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Services funded in the 2016-17 Budget    

Unit Description 

Net Cost 

Budget 

Actual 

Variance 

$000 

Strategic Planning -
Natural Systems 
Planning 

Facilitating the strategic land use planning requirements for the 
Shire including the development of a Biodiversity Action Plan for 
the Shire and coordination with the Regional Catchment Strategy 

183 
 

47 

136 

Infrastructure Strategy 

Facilitates a wide range of policy and strategic infrastructure 
planning activities, including:  
• Infrastructure Planning 
• Scoping the annual Capital Works Program 
• Asset Management 
Traffic and Transport 

3,125 
 

2,707 

418 

Infrastructure Services 

Facilitates a range of maintenance and cleansing services for our 
built and natural infrastructure which responds to our 
commitment to sustainability and achieves outcomes that are 
socially, environmentally and economically sustainable, 
including:  
• Safer Local Roads (Roads and Car Parks maintenance, 
resealing and rehabilitation)  
• Furniture and Signs maintenance  
• Parks and Roadsides  maintenance  
• Natural Systems bushland maintenance 
• Cleansing (street sweeping, litter bin collection, toilet cleaning, 
BBQ cleaning, beach cleaning, loose litter collection and 
drainage pit cleaning, etc.).  
• Contract Auditing 
• Operation of Conservation Parks (The Briars Park and 
Warringine Park) 

25,578 
 

22,850 

2,729 
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 Service Performance Indicators Results Results Results 
Material variations and 

comments   Service/indicator/measure 2015 2016 2017 
  Roads         

  Satisfaction of use         

R1 Sealed local road requests 88.41 73.88 73.79 

Number of sealed local road 
requests are similar to last 
year despite increased 
rainfall. 

  
[Number of sealed local road requests / 
Kilometres of sealed local roads ] x100 

        

  Condition         

R2 
Sealed local roads maintained to 
condition standards 

97.86% 99.85% 99.78% 
All local roads are being 
maintained to the required 
condition. 

  

[Number of kilometres of sealed local 
roads below the renewal intervention 
level set by Council / Kilometres of 
sealed local roads] x100 

        

  Service cost         

R3 Cost of sealed local road reconstruction $37.02 $39.08 $49.19 

There has been an increase 
in costs compared with last 
year due to site specific 
design requirements 
including the existing 
subgrade conditions and 
traffic loadings of the roads 
under reconstruction. These 
conditions necessitated 
increased pavement depths, 
requiring the use of 
additional materials, resulting 
in higher costs. 

  
[Direct cost of sealed local road 
reconstruction / Square metres of 
sealed local roads reconstructed] 

        

  Service Cost         

R4 Cost of sealed local road resealing $11.32 $9.50 $11.14 

Reseal costs have been 
broadly consistent in recent 
years. However, the 
standard of reseal 
treatments is site specific; 
and depends upon the 
character and usage of the 
road being treated.  
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[Direct cost of sealed local road 
resealing / Square metres of sealed 
local roads resealed] 

        

  Satisfaction          

R5 Satisfaction with sealed local roads 58.00 55.00 54.00 

This result is not significantly 
different to either the state-
wide result or last year’s 
result and should be read in 
conjunction with the ‘sealed 
local road requests’ and 
‘sealed local roads 
maintained to condition 
standards’ results which 
indicate that the level of 
service requests related to 
sealed local roads remains 
stable while the overall 
condition of roads has 
improved over the last two 
years. We will continue to 
monitor the progress of this 
indicator closely and 
advocate for improvements 
in all roads across the Shire.  

  
[Community satisfaction rating out of 
100 with how Council has performed on 
the condition of sealed local roads] 
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Major Initiatives Progress 

Improving community buildings: 
Implementation of Pavilion Strategy 

At the end of the 2016/17 year, $3.3M (61%) of the $5.4m 
budget was expended 
 Project Status: 

- Moderate refurbishment and building additions 
completed 

- Olympic Park Pavilion, detailed design complete 
- Balnarring Sports Pavilion was delayed due to weather; 

completion expected in Q1 (2017/18) 
- Citation Reserve Pavilion, Mt Martha contract has been 

awarded for $3.66M, works have commenced with 
completion expected by December 2017 

Improving community facilities: 
Implementation of Toilet Block Strategy 

 At the end of the year, $756k (76%) of $1M budget was 
expended for the Toilet Block Strategy, with a further $190k 
committed in contracts. The $1.0M includes funding for the 
Changing Places public toilet in Mornington 

 Project status: 
- Moondah Beach contract has been awarded ($192k) 

for the construction of the facility; construction to 
commence in July 2017; expected completion is in Q3 
(2017/18) 

- Changing Places design and construct contract will 
open for tender in Q1 (2017/18) 

Accessible libraries: Long-term plan for 
redevelopment of Mornington, Rosebud 
and Somerville libraries 

A new booking system for use of library meeting rooms was 
implemented in 2016/17 to make access fairer following 
significant refurbishment and RFID implementation in the prior 
year. 

Good design: All new and refurbishment 
building design plans in accordance with 
Environmental Sustainable Design Policy 

Best design practice is incorporated into all Civil Designs and 4-
Step Context Analysis and Design is incorporated within all 
building designs. 

Southern Peninsula Aquatic Centre: Timely 
reports to Council as required 

A Council briefing on 31 May by officers from Council’s 
Infrastructure team and from the Otium Planning Group have 
identified possible options for the pool. Their review considers a 
mix of aquatic components varying in cost, pool sizes, types 
and associated health and fitness facilities.  A further briefing of 
Council has been scheduled for early 2017/18. 

Shared Community Facilities: Complete 
review of facilities management and 
present draft Integrated Facilities Plan to 
Council 

The development of the Community Facilities Strategy 
commenced during 2016/17 and has been staged given the 
scale of the project. Stage one of the project (data collection) 
has commenced with the development of 'fit for purpose' audit 
templates which have been developed in conjunction with 
relevant Service Managers. The audits will be used to better 
understand how each of our Council-owned buildings are 
currently being used including, the services being provided from 
them, adequacy of the building in delivering those services, the 
overall usage rates, compliance with legislation, condition of the 
building and so on. Fitness for purpose audits will be conducted 
at Council buildings in the Townships of Rosebud, Dromana 
and Somerville during Q1 of 2017/18. 
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Services funded in the 2016-17 Budget 

Unit Description 

Net Cost 

Budget 

Actual 

Variance 

$000 

Project Delivery 
(excluding Drainage and 
Buildings and Open 
Space Project 
Management) 

Designs, constructs, develops and protects the physical 
environment in which we live. Roads, community buildings and 
sporting pavilions, boardwalks and irrigation systems all play a 
critical role in supporting the physical environment in which we 
live and enjoy. 

651 
307 

344 

Buildings and Facilities 
(excluding Foreshore 
Camping) 

Centralised management overview of the maintenance and 
management of Shire facilities, including the provision of routine 
and programmed maintenance of Shire buildings under the 
SIMS2 Buildings contract; Sports Clubs; and management of the 
Shire’s Leisure centres including Pelican Park Recreation Centre 
and Mt Martha Golf course. 
Community Halls are provided to support community groups, not 
for profit organisations and general community. 

10,982 
11,685 

(704) 

Property and Valuations 
– Property Strategy and 
Operations  

The Property area facilitates management of Council’s property 
portfolio, including the leasing, licensing, and acquisition of 
property. 

(6,304) 
(6,698) 

394 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



33 

 

 Service Performance Indicators Results Results Results 
Material variations and 

comments   Service/indicator/measure 2015 2016 2017 
  Aquatic Facilities         

  Service standard         

AF2 Health inspections of aquatic facilities 2.00 2.00 1.50 

Three inspections by 
authorised officers within 
the meaning of the Public 
Health and Wellbeing Act 
2008 were carried out 
across Council’s two 
aquatic facilities (two at 
Pelican Park Recreation 
Centre; one at Crib Point 
Pool). Additionally, Council 
engaged Aqua Science 
Consultants Pty Ltd to 
conduct three routine 
scientific analyses of pool 
water across the two 
facilities (two at Pelican 
Park Recreation Centre; 
one at Crib Point Pool).   

  
[Number of authorised officer 
inspections of Council aquatic facilities / 
Number of Council aquatic facilities] 

        

  Health and Safety         

AF3 
Reportable safety incidents at aquatic 
facilities 

0.00 0.00 0.00 
There were no reportable 
safety incidents at our 
aquatic facilities. 

  
[Number of WorkSafe reportable 
aquatic facility safety incidents] 

        

  Service cost         

AF4 Cost of indoor aquatic facilities $2.72 $3.82 $4.87 

The increase in the net 
cost per visit is a result of 
both reduced demand 
(5.4% fewer visits) and 
increased net costs 
(reduced income from 
visitation accounting for 
three-quarters of the net 
cost increase). Pelican 
Park Recreation Centre 
faces increasing 
competition from a number 
of newer facilities. 

  
[Direct cost of indoor aquatic facilities 
less income received / Number of visits 
to indoor aquatic facilities] 
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  Service Cost         

AF5 Cost of outdoor aquatic facilities $14.00 $12.65 $13.20 

The increase in the net 
cost per visit is a result of 
costs rising by 
approximately $34,000; 
driven by increased utility 
and wage costs. Visitation 
to our outdoor aquatic 
facilities at Crib Point Pool 
increased by over one-fifth 
from last year. 

  
[Direct cost of outdoor aquatic facilities 
less income received / Number of visits 
to outdoor aquatic facilities] 

        

  Utilisation         

AF6 Utilisation of aquatic facilities 1.81 1.76 1.62 

The reduction in utilisation 
of aquatic facilities is a 
result of lower attendance 
at Pelican Park Recreation 
Centre (-5.4%) largely 
driven by competition from 
newer facilities. Attendance 
at Crib Point Pool, a 
seasonal outdoor facility, 
increased by over one-fifth 
(+22.9%). 

  
[Number of visits to aquatic facilities / 
Municipal population] 
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Major Initiatives Progress 

Smart water management: Implementation 
of Smart Water Plan 

Council continued to attract State Government support for its 
leadership on integrated water management and innovation.  
Council delivered the following successful programs with a 
focus on forward planning during 2107/18: 
 Review of utility management systems and development of 

a new water utility management database  
 Ongoing delivery of the Shire wide leak detection program 
 Strategic planning for recycled water projects - Mount 

Martha, Mornington Croquet Club 
 Source Point Pollution hot spot monitoring 
 Living Rivers funding from Melbourne Water for Industrial 

Estate Pollution Prevention Program and Rye Coastal Bio-
filtration project. 

Flood mitigation & prevention program: 
Implementation of Integrated Flood 
Management & Drainage Strategy 

 At the end of the financial year, 97% of the $2.84M program 
was either expended ($1.75M), awarded in contracts 
($310,000), or in tender ($680k) 

 Project Status: 
- Cook Street Drainage Mitigation Works are complete 
- Hearn Road Drainage Upgrade contract has been 

awarded; works to commence in Q1 (17/18) 
- Flinders Catchment project is within procurement 

phase, contract value $680k 
- Muir Court Pump Station project partnership with 

Melbourne Water has been delayed for 
- third party design review 
- A contract for surveying of floor levels to draw Flood 

Maps has been awarded for $160k to Melbourne 
Water, works to be undertaken in Q1 2017/18 

Community education programs: Education 
programs delivered at Eco Living Display 
Centre 

Council has delivered a range of significant community 
educations program over 2016/17 reaching over 18,000 
residents through a broad range of engagement methods. This 
includes: 
 Climate Ready stage 2 roll out; 
 Green Living workshop series at the Eco Living Centre; 
 Sustainability planning support for the residential sector 

through one on one consultations, ‘speed date a 
sustainability expert’ event; and  

 increasing participation in the cost neutral school excursion 
program at the Eco Living Centre 

Council also conducted an extensive and exhaustive 
community engagement program to build the proposed Carbon 
Neutral and Climate Resilience Community Plan proposed to be 
drafted in 2017/18. 
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Climate change adaptation: Partner with 
agencies and stakeholders in future climate 
change adaptation planning 

Council achieved compliance with the international Covenant of 
Mayors - Energy and Climate in August 2016 which recognised 
the policy and actions taken towards climate change mitigation 
and adaptation.  Council implemented: 
 Review of the Corporate Climate Change Risk Register 
 Successful implementation of the commercially focussed 

Environmental Upgrade Program with 4 Agreements signed 
in the first year 

 Council engagement on a proposed policy approach  
 Council endorsed MPS taking the voluntary, Take 2 Pledge 

articulated in the Climate Change Act 2016. 
The Climate Change Action committee structure and function 
was reviewed and renewed to develop a four year action plan to 
manage corporate and community climate change risk 
reduction 

Fire Management: Implement Annual 
Program - Fire Management Plans 

The full 2016/17 fire management program was delivered. 
Controlled burns were carried out with the support of the CFA at 
Cyril Fox Reserve, Crib Point; Warringine Woodland, Bittern; 
and Dromana Bushland Reserve. A further burn at Mount 
Martha Park was prepared but could not proceed due to 
unsuitable weather. Overall, the fire season was ‘average’ with 
peak risk occurring around New Year and again towards the 
end of March. 

Carbon neutrality: Adopt Carbon Neutral 
Policy and Implementation Plan 

The Council endorsed carbon neutral policy has been planned 
and implementation began in 2016/17.  Key projects that have 
been fast tracked are: 
 Stage 1 Solar panel installation on Shire buildings (30) 
 Design for stage 2 (large Shire Carbon Positive Eco Living 

Centre upgrade) 
 Solar Communities grant preparation and procurement 

(Federal Funding) 
 Mornington Peninsula Community Grids partnership 

  
Services funded in the 2016-17 Budget 

 Unit Description 

Net Cost 

Budget 

Actual 

Variance 

$000 

Environment Protection 
– Fire Management 

To manage fire risk in association with the CFA and its many 
local fire brigades to protect the community against loss of life or 
property.  Programs are designed and undertaken to reduce the 
risk of fire in the community and help facilitate a community 
resilient to emergencies. 

306 

223 

83 

Infrastructure Services 

Facilitates a range of maintenance and cleansing services for our 
built and natural infrastructure which responds to our 
commitment to sustainability and achieves outcomes that are 
socially, environmentally and economically sustainable, 
including:  
• Natural Systems Management – fire management 
• Waste Management 

26,934 

25,387 

1,546 
 
 
 

Project Delivery - 
Drainage 

Designs, constructs, develop and protect the physical 
environment in which we live, including drainage. 

97 

74 
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22 

Climate Change, Energy 
and Water 

The Climate Change, Energy and Water team are responsible for 
leading the Shire towards carbon neutrality and long term climate 
change resilience across the community. 

2,967 

2,534 

434 
 
 

 Service Performance Indicators Results Results Results 
Material variations and 

comments   Service/indicator/measure 2015 2016 2017 
  Waste Collection         

  Satisfaction         

WC1 Kerbside bin collection requests 116.59 114.54 116.44 

Despite the introduction of a 
new summer weekly 
kerbside recycling collection 
service, the number of bin 
collection requests has 
remained fairly stable. 

  

[Number of kerbside garbage and 
recycling bin collection requests / 
Number of kerbside bin collection 
households] x1000 

        

  Service standard         

WC2 Kerbside collection bins missed 4.68 3.39 3.39 

Despite the introduction of a 
new summer weekly 
kerbside recycling collection 
service, the number of bins 
missed has remained stable. 

  

[Number of kerbside garbage and 
recycling collection bins missed / 
Number of scheduled kerbside 
garbage and recycling collection bin 
lifts] x10,000 

        

  Service cost         

WC3 
Cost of kerbside garbage bin 
collection service 

$60.66 $60.52 $61.65 

The cost of kerbside garbage 
bin collection has remained 
fairly stable. The slight cost 
increase (+1.87%) is 
associated with an increase 
in the landfill levy (2.5%), an 
increased volume of waste to 
landfill, bin maintenance 
activities (e.g. bin delivery, 
new bins, and parts) and 
annual contract adjustments. 

  
[Direct cost of the kerbside garbage 
bin collection service / Number of 
kerbside garbage collection bins] 

        

  Service cost         
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WC4 
Cost of kerbside recyclables 
collection service 

$24.12 $23.36 $26.87 

The cost of kerbside 
recyclables collection has 
increased as a result of a 
new summer weekly 
kerbside recycling collection 
service for the period 19 
December 2016 to the 3 
February 2017. This 
expansion of the service 
increased the number of 
scheduled bin lift pickups by 
14 per cent and has 
contributed to increased 
diversion of waste from 
landfill.  

  

[Direct cost of the kerbside 
recyclables bin collection service / 
Number of kerbside recyclables 
collection bins] 

        

  Waste diversion         

WC5 
Kerbside collection waste diverted 
from landfill 

49.53% 50.01% 50.95% 

Council’s kerbside green 
waste service is an opt-in 
service.  Our participation 
rate for this service 
continues to increase; 
therefore, the volume of 
green waste also continues 
to increase.  The 
commencement of a new 
summer weekly kerbside 
recycling collection service 
also resulted in an increase 
of recyclable material 
received. 
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Major Initiatives Progress 

Integrated coastal planning: Complete 
Hastings Coastal Management Plan and 
Mornington Harbour Precinct Plan 

Both projects have now been completed. 

Diverse coastal experience: Advocate for 
completion of Bay Trail 

Finalised advocacy documentation for the bay trail missing link 
sections of Anthonys Nose, Whitecliffs and Blairgowrie sections 
in order to support the attainment of state government funding 
for the project. 

Recreational boating: Complete Boating 
Capacity and Facilities Review, and Rye 
Recreational Boating Precinct Plan 

Review and Plan completed resulting in the Rye Recreational 
Boating Precinct Plan. This Plan won the Victorian Coastal 
Council Award for Excellence in Planning and Management. 

Foreshore Camping: Camping occupancy 
 

 

Foreshore camping achieve the desired occupancy for the 
season of 120,000 despite having to cancel a number of 
bookings due to the identification of cultural heritage sites. 

Equitable coastal funding: Advocate for 
increased coastal funding 

Victorian Government funding has been secured for Rye Boat 
Ramp upgrade ($588k) and Mt Martha Long Term Management 
Plan ($30k).  

    
Services funded in the 2016-17 Budget 

Unit Description 

Net Cost 

Budget 

Actual 

Variance 

$000 

Strategic Planning - 
Coastal Planning 

Facilitating the strategic land use planning requirements for the 
Shire, including the development and review of Coastal 
Management Plans for specific areas of the coast. 

220 

57 

163 

Buildings and Facilities - 
Foreshore Camping 

Foreshore Camping is provided in Rosebud, Rye & Sorrento 
from the end of October through to end of April to provide an 
affordable holiday and support the local economy. 

415 

590 

(175) 
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Major Initiatives Progress 

Assisting older people: Implementation 
Positive Ageing Strategy 

All 2016/17 actions of the Positive Ageing Strategy (Mornington 
Peninsula: A Community for all ages 2013 - 18) were achieved 
with highlight events: successful registration with the World 
Health Organisation as an age friendly community, signing of 
the Victorian Age Friendly Declaration, Annual Positive Ageing 
Community Summit, World Elder Abuse Awareness Day 
Forum.                                
 
Service delivery targets exceeded for all Aged & Disability 
Services. More than 5,000 residents received the following 
support services during 2016/17:                                 
 166,947  hours of home/personal/respite care and home 

maintenance 
 8,006 hours of "living at home" assessment                      
 75,109 Meals On Wheels        
 18,514 Dial A Bus passenger 

trips                                             
 Support to 24 Seniors Clubs including Senior Citizens 

Clubs, U3A clubs and culturally & linguistically diverse 
clubs.             

 
Council's older persons advisory committee - PACE (Peninsula 
Advisory Committee for Elders) continued to provide valued 
advice to Council on a range of matters relating to older people 
in our community. 

Community development: Integrated 
agency response to identified disadvantage 
communities/townships to ensure social 
inclusion and promote social justice 

Community Capacity Building (place making): 
The MPS Place making grant program was conducted for the 
first time with over 27 projects funded in partnership with the 
community. Projects included the Active Kids programs at the 
Wallaroo Centre in Hastings, Sensory Garden at Balnarring 
Primary School and the Rosebud Buskfest. 
 
The MPS Men’s Shed Network was established and grew to 
include new and existing sheds from around the Mornington 
Peninsula. The network supports collaborative work with the 
community to enhance community project and provide support 
to each other to thrive as community organisations. 

Fostering a culturally enriched community: 
Implementation of Arts and Culture 
Strategy 

The major milestone in the implementation of the Arts and 
Culture Strategy for 2016-17 was the adoption of the Public Art 
Policy by Council on 14 June 2016. 

Safe events: All community events to 
complete Event Approval Process 

Currently all outdoor events with a) less than 5,000 participants 
b) conducted by a community/not for profit organisation and c) 
include temporary structures less than 100m2 are exempt from 
requiring a Place of Public Entertainment (POPE). Outdoor 
events are still required to complete a Shire ‘Category Event Kit’ 
– depending on the scale of the event. Since the POPE 
regulation reform, safety at outdoor events has remained 
consistent 
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Healthy communities: Implement Food 
Access Plan 2013 

Access to Fresh Food: The Southern Peninsula Information and 
Support Service was awarded the best Government Partnership 
project in the 2015 Tidy Towns competition. This project was 
supported through a partnership with Council and Second Bite 
to distribute food to community members. In 2016 the program 
is planning to extend to Dromana. 
 
Men’s Health Day: A Men’s Health day was organised in 
partnership with the Men’s Shed Network in June with over 60 
men sharing lunch and information on depression, prostate 
cancer and healthy eating. 
 
White Ribbon Day Breakfast: 150 people attended a White 
Ribbon Day breakfast to raise awareness on how men can 
support the prevention of Family Violence on the Mornington 
Peninsula 

Safer community: Proactive fire prevention 
inspection program as set out in the 
Municipal Fire Management Plan 

4,805 fire prevention inspections have been completed – the 
inspection program and issuing of fire prevention notices will 
conclude at the end of the Declared Fire Danger Period which 
is Monday 11 April 2016. 

  
Services funded in the 2016-17 Budget 

Unit Description 

Net Cost 

Budget 

Actual 

Variance 

$000 

Environment Protection 
(excluding Fire 
Management) 

Provision of a range of services that protect the amenity of the 
Peninsula and maintain harmony within neighbourhoods.  This is 
achieved primarily through the application of local laws and 
various other Acts and Regulations promulgated by the Victorian 
Government.  Services include - 
• Shire Rangers  
• Animal Management  
• Traffic and Parking Management   
• School Crossings  
• Environmental Health  

5,568 
5,414 

154 

Planning Compliance 

Ensuring that the use and development of land within the 
Peninsula is carried out in accordance with the provisions of the 
Mornington Peninsula Planning Scheme and the Planning and 
Environment Act approved Planning Permits and section 173 
Agreements. 

865 

1,023 

(158) 

Statutory Building 

Committed to ensuring that the amenity and safety of the 
community is maintained when using buildings and places of 
public entertainment, by undertaking statutory compliance of the 
Building Act. 
 

626 

113 
513 
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Child, Youth and Family 
Care 

Provision of a number of community health services designed to 
increase the health and wellbeing of residents, including  
• Communities that Care 
• Maternal and Child Health services 
• Family Day Care 
• Youth Services 
• Immunisation 
• Social Planning 

7,091 

6,521 

569 

Aged and Disability 
Services 

Provision of a range of services to enable older people and 
people with disabilities to remain living as independently as 
possible in their own home, including 
• Information, Assessment & Referral 
• General Home Care 
• Personal Care 
• Respite Care 
• Delivered Meals 
• Home Maintenance 
• Access and Mobility (Community Transport and Activity 
Program) 
• Senior Citizens Centres  

6,827 

5,982 

845 

Communications and 
Events 

Provision of a range of recreation and leisure services which 
develop, deliver and facilitate passive and active recreation 
opportunities and experiences for the community and promote 
health and wellbeing, including: 
 Community and Special Events 

990 

995 

(5) 

Libraries 

Provision of free access to books, information resources and 
services, audio visual materials and computer technology via four 
branch libraries and a mobile library service which visits 16 sites 
across the Peninsula each week. 

4,533 

4,121 

412 

Arts and Culture 

Mornington Peninsula Regional Gallery offers a dynamic 
program of nationally significant exhibitions of contemporary and 
historical art by Australia's leading artists, together with highly 
acclaimed exhibitions that focus on the Mornington Peninsula's 
rich cultural life. 
Local History Services are focused upon increasing community 
access to, and preservation of the documented cultural heritage 
of the Mornington Peninsula. 

1,585 

1,492 

93 
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 Service Performance Indicators Results Results Results 
Material variations and 

comments   Service/indicator/measure 2015 2016 2017 
  Animal Management         

  Timeliness         

AM1 
Time taken to action animal 
management requests 

- 2.12 3.26 

There are a variety of 
complaint types within this 
category. High Risk 
complaints such as dog 
attacks are responded to 
immediately. Low risk 
complaints are managed as 
a lower priority. 

  

[Number of days between receipt and 
first response action for all animal 
management requests / Number of 
animal management requests] 

        

  Service standard         

AM2 Animals reclaimed 62.76% 62.91% 59.54% 

The inclusion of feral cats 
skews this result. Using 
microchipping as a measure 
of responsible ownership, 
Council impounded 868 
microchipped dogs (88% of 
dogs impounded) and 
reunited 84 per cent of those 
dogs. Only 19 per cent of 
cats (167) were 
microchipped and 83 per 
cent of those cats were 
reunited. 

  
[Number of animals reclaimed / 
Number of animals collected] x100 

        

  Service cost         

AM3 Cost of animal management service $58.86 $62.23 $77.28 

Demand for animal 
management services has 
increased by 16 per cent in 
the past two years and 
changes in animal pound 
practices (for example, 
holding animals longer to 
minimise euthanasia rates) 
have had a combined effect 
of increasing the resourcing 
to this program. 

  

[Direct cost of the animal 
management service / Number of 
registered animals] 
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  Health and safety         

AM4 Animal management prosecutions 50.00 40.00 52.00 

Increased prosecutions 
reflect the increased demand 
through 2016/17. In this 
period there were 370 
reported dog attack and dog 
rush cases. 

  
[Number of successful animal 
management prosecutions] 

        

  Food Safety         

  Timeliness         

FS1 Time taken to action food complaints - 2.19 2.65 

There are a variety of 
complaint types within this 
category. High risk 
complaints are responded to 
immediately, i.e. on the 
same day. 
 
From 1 July 2016, 'Time 
taken to action food 
complaints' will be reported 
by calendar year. Previously 
this indicator was reported 
by financial year. This has 
been implemented to better 
align reporting with the 
Department of Health and 
Human Services. This may 
result in some variances 
year on year. 

  

[Number of days between receipt and 
first response action for all food 
complaints / Number of food 
complaints] 

        

  Service standard         

FS2 Food safety assessments 94.07% 91.01% 92.82% 
All high risk and high volume 
premises were inspected. 

  Service cost         

FS3 Cost of food safety service $611.15 $605.31 $619.68 
This result is consistent with 
previous years. 

  

[Direct cost of the food safety service 
/ Number of food premises registered 
or notified in accordance with the 
Food Act 1984] 
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  Health and safety         

FS4 
Critical and major non-compliance 
outcome notifications 

92.16% 89.55% 93.17% 

From 1 July 2016, 'Critical 
and major non-compliance 
outcome notifications' will be 
reported by calendar year. 
Previously this indicator was 
reported by financial year. 
This has been implemented 
to better align reporting with 
the Department of Health 
and Human Services. This 
may result in some variances 
year on year. 

A risk-based approach has 
been adopted by the Shire's 
Environmental Health Team 
in relation to food safety. The 
team will be striving to 
achieve as close as possible 
to 100% of critical and major 
non-compliances followed-up 
before the end of the 
calendar year. 

  

[Number of critical non-compliance 
outcome notifications and major non-
compliance notifications about a food 
premises followed up / Number of 
critical non-compliance outcome 
notifications and major non-
compliance notifications about a food 
premises] x100 

        

  
Home and Community Care 
(HACC) 

        

  Timeliness     

Reporting 
Ceased 1 
July 2016 

  

HC1 
Time taken to commence the HACC 
service 

- 48.23 

Reporting on HACC ceased 
on 1 July 2016 due to the 
introduction of the 
Commonwealth 
Government's NDIS and 
CHSP programs 

  

[Number of days between the referral 
of a new client and the 
commencement of HACC service / 
Number of new clients who have 
received a HACC service] 

      

  Service standard     

Reporting 
Ceased 1 
July 2016 

  

HC2 
Compliance with Community Care 
Common Standards 

94.44% 94.44% 

Reporting on HACC ceased 
on 1 July 2016 due to the 
introduction of the 
Commonwealth 
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Government's NDIS and 
CHSP programs 

  

[Number of Community Care 
Common Standards expected 
outcomes met / Number of expected 
outcomes under the Community Care 
Common Standards] x100 

      

  Service cost     

Reporting 
Ceased 1 
July 2016 

  

HC3 Cost of domestic care service - $55.18 

Reporting on HACC ceased 
on 1 July 2016 due to the 
introduction of the 
Commonwealth 
Government's NDIS and 
CHSP programs 

  
[Cost of the domestic care service / 
Hours of domestic care service 
provided] 

      

  Service cost     

Reporting 
Ceased 1 
July 2016 

  

HC4 Cost of personal care service  - $55.18 

Reporting on HACC ceased 
on 1 July 2016 due to the 
introduction of the 
Commonwealth 
Government's NDIS and 
CHSP programs 

  
[Cost of the personal care service / 
Hours of personal care service 
provided] 

      

  Service cost     

Reporting 
Ceased 1 
July 2016 

  

HC5 Cost of respite care service - $55.18 

Reporting on HACC ceased 
on 1 July 2016 due to the 
introduction of the 
Commonwealth 
Government's NDIS and 
CHSP programs 

  
[Cost of the respite care service / 
Hours of respite care service 
provided] 

      

  Participation     

Reporting 
Ceased 1 
July 2016 

  

HC6 Participation in HACC service 41.91% 35.86% 

Reporting on HACC ceased 
on 1 July 2016 due to the 
introduction of the 
Commonwealth 
Government's NDIS and 
CHSP programs 

  
[Number of people that received a 
HACC service / Municipal target 
population for HACC services] x100 

      



47 

 

  Participation     

Reporting 
Ceased 1 
July 2016 

  

HC7 
Participation in HACC service by 
CALD people 

30.56% 27.78% 

Reporting on HACC ceased 
on 1 July 2016 due to the 
introduction of the 
Commonwealth 
Government's NDIS and 
CHSP programs 

  

[Number of CALD people who receive 
a HACC service / Municipal target 
population in relation to CALD people 
for HACC services] x100 

      

  Libraries         

  Utilisation         

LB1 Library collection usage 7.59 7.69 7.83 

As part of continuing to 
ensure our collection 
remains relevant to our 
customers, the overall size of 
the collection was reduced 
slightly (-2.4%). However, 
the number of loans 
remained stable (-0.6%) 
resulting in a slight 
favourable increase in the 
number of loans per item 
(+1.8%). 

  
[Number of library collection item 
loans / Number of library collection 
items] 

        

  Resource standard         

LB2 Standard of library collection 86.14% 77.60% 77.76% 

In 2015/16, purchasing of 
new collection items slowed 
to offset the budgetary 
impact of, among other 
things, introducing an RFID 
check in/out system. In 
2016/17, the proportion of 
items purchased in the last 
five years has remained 
stable (+0.2%). However, a 
bulk purchase of recently 
published titles, 
replacements of classic 
titles, and other titles 
specifically matched to our 
customers’ interests was 
made in the last quarter of 
2016/17 and will form part of 
the collection in 2017/18. 

  [Number of library collection items 
purchased in the last 5 years / 

        



48 

Number of library collection items] 
x100  

  Service cost         

LB3 Cost of library service $6.40 $6.99 $6.08 

In 2015/16, the overall 
service cost increased as a 
result of implementing 
changes from a service 
review; including the 
introduction of an RFID 
check in/out system, minor 
library refurbishments, and a 
restructure of staffing. Costs 
have reduced significantly in 
2016/17 (-12.75%) as the 
benefits of the restructure 
are realised. 

  
[Direct cost of the library service / 
Number of visits] 

        

  Participation          

LB4 Active library members 18.73% 19.31% 19.09% 

Active library members 
remains stable (-1.13%). The 
total number of borrowers 
rose slightly (+2.6%), just 
behind the increase in the 
Estimated Residential 
Population (+3.8%). 

  
[Number of active library members / 
Municipal population] x100 

        

  Maternal and Child Health (MCH)         

  Satisfaction         

MC1 Participation in first MCH home visit 102.51% 106.49% 99.93% 

Families with a new baby 
appreciate a home visit from 
a maternal and child health 
nurse following discharge 
from hospital. A small 
number of families choose 
alternative service providers 
such as doctors and home 
birth midwives.  Percentages 
greater than 100% occur as 
families move in and out of 
the Municipality around the 
time of birth. 

  

[Number of first MCH home visits / 
Number of birth notifications received] 
x100 
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  Service standard         

MC2 Infant enrolments in the MCH service 101.81% 99.02% 100.00% 

Families value the maternal 
and child health service and 
actively enrol in the service. 
Variations year to year are 
dependent on when the birth 
notifications arrive, 
prematurity, readmission to 
hospital and transfer into the 
service of infants born 
outside the municipality. 

  

[Number of infants enrolled in the 
MCH service (from birth notifications 
received) / Number of birth 
notifications received] x100 

        

  Service cost         

MC3 Cost of the MCH service - $59.68 $61.69 

The increased cost reflects 
anticipated wages growth 
under the 2014 Enterprise 
Agreement. 

  
[Cost of the MCH service / Hours 
worked by MCH nurses] 

        

  Participation         

MC4 Participation in the MCH service 73.39% 74.55% 71.96% 

Maternal and child health 
nurses actively promote the 
service and provide a flexible 
and responsive approach. 
The team proactively deliver 
an outreach service to 
clients, especially those who 
find it difficult to access the 
centres, delivering the Key 
Ages and Stages 
consultations in the client’s 
own home or in 
Kindergartens and Early 
Learning Centres. 

  

[Number of children who attend the 
MCH service at least once (in the 
year) / Number of children enrolled in 
the MCH service] x100 

        

  Participation         

MC5 
Participation in the MCH service by 
Aboriginal children 

76.04% 69.03% 73.25% 

The maternal and child 
health team developed a 
service innovation in 2016-
17 focussing on increasing 
participation of Aboriginal 
children in the maternal and 
child health service. All team 
members undertook 
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professional development 
activities in cultural 
sensitivity and 
responsiveness. It should be 
noted that as the total 
number of Aboriginal 
children enrolled in the MCH 
is a low figure, larger year on 
year variations are expected.  

  

[Number of Aboriginal children who 
attend the MCH service at least once 
(in the year) / Number of Aboriginal 
children enrolled in the MCH service] 
x100 
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Major Initiatives Progress 

Business excellence: Implement a program 
of tourism excellence workshops 

Industry Development activities have been undertaken with 8 
training and workshop sessions with 77 businesses attending 
and 28 mentoring sessions have been held. 

Business development: Business Survey Business Survey completed and distributed to Councillors 

High quality tourism industry: Tourism 
Customer Survey 

Visitor Journey customer survey completed and reported to 
Council by the Regional Tourism Board 

 
Services funded in the 2016-17 Budget 

Unit Description 

Net Cost 

Budget 

Actual 

Variance 

$000 

Economic Development 
and Tourism 

Facilitates economic activity that is compatible with the 
Peninsula’s special character and fits within the strategic vision 
developed by Council and the community, including support for 
Mornington Peninsula Tourism. 

1,626 

1,622 

4 
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Major Initiatives Progress 
Quality Service: Percentage of Merit 
Customer Request System action requests 
completed within Service Charter 
timeframes 

Council received 82,000 service requests in 2106/17; over 80 
per cent of those were completed on time; much of the balance 
required more detailed review prior to response.  

Capital Works Program: Percentage 
Completion Capital Works Budget 

The Capital Works Program performance in 2016/17 has seen 
the continuation of a major turnaround in the efficient and timely 
delivery of projects to the community. At $71.6M, this year has 
seen the biggest capital works program on record for the 
Mornington Peninsula Shire. The total quantum of works 
delivered this period was significantly greater than last financial 
year and arguably the best result on record for the Shire. The 
2015/16 year-end total Capital Works spend totalled $29.5M, 
whilst the result for 2016/17 is $47.5M 

Competent, safe and healthy workplace: 
Implementation of Learning and 
Development Program for staff 

Further work in fostering a culture of resilience within the Shire 
is also a strong focus. A series of Managing Mental health 
sessions were delivered, with very strong attendance and great 
feedback from people managers. A Psychological Health policy 
is currently being drafted. Additional funding has been sought 
and approved for further focus on psychological health of our 
employees, including Mental Health First aid accreditation 
training for key staff to support our goal of building a healthy 
and resilient workforce.  
 
Manual handling continues to be our leading cause of injury. 
The team are actively delivering manual handling training to 
high risk areas across the organisation to ensure that our staff 
are carrying out manual duties in a safe and productive way. 

Appropriate rates: Adopt Rating Strategy 
Rating Strategy for the current year has not been changed. 
Rates and charges have been increased by the rate cap at 
2.5% 

Unified Communications: Complete 
implementation program 

New phone system was implemented in 2016. Following the 
implementation a series of visual dashboards have been 
installed around the Shire to provide transparent measurement 
on our customer service performance (how many staff are 
taking calls, how many calls are being taken, call answering 
performance). 

Long term infrastructure and financial 
planning: Develop Long-Term Financial 
Plan and Capital Works Plan 

LTFP developed and presented to Councillors in December 
2016. 
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Services funded in the 2016-17 Budget 

Unit Description 

Net Cost 

Budget 

Actual 

Variance 

$000 

CEO’s Office 

The CEO's focus is predominantly long term/strategic in nature, 
ensuring that the organisation is focused on and resourced to 
respond effectively to the community's needs as expressed 
through Council.  The area undertakes significant advocacy with 
other levels of Government and peak bodies. 

647 

632 

15 
 

Communications 
(excluding Events) 

Responsible for co-ordinating effective and timely communication 
between Council and the community. This involves managing 
media relations for the Shire, including preparation of media 
releases, press conferences and on-going communication and 
liaison with local journalists. 

1,449 

1,307 

142 

Human Resources 

Ensuring that Council has the human resources and skills 
necessary to deliver its services.  This includes  
• Recruitment and Selection 
• Employee Relations 
• Industrial relations 
• Learning and Development 
• Occupational Health and Safety 
• The development of long term strategies for staff attraction, 
development and retention. 
• Customer Service  

3,503 

3,488 

15 

Program and Process 
Review 

Facilitates improving performance at the group and 
organisational levels. The Units role is to improve the 
organisation’s ability to effectively respond to changes in its 
external environment and support the Organisation in increasing 
internal capabilities through ensuring the organisational 
structures, human resources systems, job designs, 
communication systems and leadership/managerial processes 
fully harness human motivation and help people function to their 
full potential. 

410 

115 

295 

Corporate Planning  

Key responsibilities are: 
• Development and ongoing review of the Council Plan. 
• Coordination of linked business planning and corporate 
performance reporting across the organisation. 
• Supporting Council’s advocacy priorities. 

441 

415 

26 
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Governance 

Ensuring that Council satisfies all its legislative requirements in 
relations to the function of the Council, including Council meeting 
arrangements, agendas and minutes for meetings, and all 
aspects of dealing with the Council, and also including: 
• Risk Management and Insurances 
• Purchasing (as part of customer services) 
• Internal Audit 

3,423 

3,445 

(22) 
 

Information Services 
Provision of an efficient and effective technology and information 
services base for Shire operations.   

4,179 

4,598 

(419) 

Finance  

Responsible for all budgeting, accounting, payroll and revenue 
collection functions of the Shire, including: 
• Financial Accounting (i.e. Financial Stats and Audit)  
• Management Accounting (i.e. budget and internal financial 
reporting) 
• Payroll  
• Revenue Management 
• Procurement and Contracts Management  

1,099 

1,573 

(474) 

Property and Valuations 

The Property area facilitates management of the Shire’s property 
portfolio including disposal of property.     
The Valuations area is responsible for all aspects of property 
valuation, including General revaluation, supplementary 
valuations, valuation objections, asset valuations and any other 
valuation requirements.   

739 

968 

(229) 

Various Directorate 
budgets 

Each Group have a Director and small staff whose role is to 
provide leadership and direction to the Group. This includes 
advocacy to other levels of government and peak bodies, 
establishing and communicating strategic direction, and generally 
steering the operating environment. 
 

2,234 

2,415 

(181) 
 

 
 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
. 



55 

 

 Service Performance Indicators Results Results Results 
Material variations and 

comments   Service/indicator/measure 2015 2016 2017 
  Governance         

  Transparency         

G1 
Council decisions made at meetings 
closed to the public 

10.16% 13.09% 7.98% 

Of the 21 decisions made at 
meetings closed to the public, 
more than half (13) were 
published. 

  

[Number of Council resolutions made at 
ordinary or special meetings of Council, 
or at meetings of a special committee 
consisting only of Councillors, closed to 
the public / Number of Council 
resolutions made at ordinary or special 
meetings of Council or at meetings of a 
special committee consisting only of 
Councillors ] x100 

        

  Consultation and engagement         

G2 
Satisfaction with community 
consultation and engagement 

59.00 55.00 52.00 

While Council significantly 
changed its consultation 
program last year through ‘Your 
Peninsula 2021’ (which saw 
over 3,000 people submit their 
ideas; the highest level of 
participation the Shire has ever 
achieved), we will continue to 
refine and improve the process 
to reach the sections of the 
community that didn’t engage in 
that program.  

  

Community satisfaction rating out of 
100 with how Council has performed on 
community consultation and 
engagement  

      

  

 

 

 

  Attendance         

G3 
Councillor attendance at council 
meetings 

87.88% 87.60% 89.51% 

From 1 July 2016 this indicator 
was updated to include 
Councillors as attending if they 
were granted a leave of 
absence. This may result in 
some variances year on year, 
therefore reliable comparisons 
cannot be made. 



56 

  

[The sum of the number of Councillors 
who attended each ordinary and special 
Council meeting / (Number of ordinary 
and special Council meetings) × 
(Number of Councillors elected at the 
last Council general election)] x100 

        

  Service cost         

G4 Cost of governance $55,206.39 $58,484.18 $51,146.09 

The reduction in the cost of 
Governance per Councillor is 
related to the election of a new 
Council in October 2016, which 
was preceded by a caretaker 
period.  

  
[Direct cost of the governance service / 
Number of Councillors elected at the 
last Council general election] 

        

  Satisfaction          

G5 Satisfaction with Council decisions 57.00 56.00 52.00 

The trend shown is consistent 
with the rest of the state. The 
Mornington Peninsula Shire 
actively seek community 
feedback with a number of 
metrics we use to track 
customer satisfaction. However, 
this trend is of concern and 
further community engagement 
will be conducted.  

  

[Community satisfaction rating out of 
100 with how Council has performed in 
making decisions in the interest of the 
community] 
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Governance, management and other information 
 
Governance 
The Mornington Peninsula Shire Council is constituted under the Local Government Act to provide 
leadership for the good governance of the municipal district and the local community. Council has a number 
of roles including: 
 Taking into account the diverse needs of the local community in decision-making 
 Providing leadership by establishing strategic objectives and monitoring achievements 
 Ensuring that resources are managed in a responsible and accountable manner 
 Advocating the interests of the local community to other communities and governments 
 Fostering community cohesion and encouraging active participation in civic life. 
 
Council is committed to effective and sustainable forms of democratic and corporate governance as the key 
to ensuring that Council and its administration meet the community’s priorities. The community has many 
opportunities to provide input into Council’s decision-making processes including community consultation, 
public forums such as ward meetings and the ability to make submissions to Special Committees of Council. 
 
Council’s formal decision-making processes are conducted through Council Meetings and Special 
Committees of Council. Council delegates the majority of its decision-making to Council staff. These 
delegations are exercised in accordance with adopted Council policies. 
 

Meetings of Council 
Council conducts open public meetings on the second and fourth Tuesday of each month. Members of the 
community are welcome to attend these meetings and observe from the gallery. Council meetings also 
provide the opportunity for community members to submit a question to Council, make a submission or 
speak to an item. For the 2016-17 year Council held the following meetings: 
 19 ordinary Council meetings 
 6 special Council meetings. 
 
The following table provides a summary of Councillor attendance at Council meetings and special Council 
meetings for the 2016-17 financial year. 
 
1 July 2016 – 31 October 2016: 
 
 
 
Councillors 

 
Council 
Meeting 

Special 
Council 
Meeting 

 
 

Total 
Cr Celi 6 2 8 
Cr Colomb  6 3 9 
Cr Dixon 6 3 9 
Cr Fraser 6 3 9 
Cr Garnock 6 3 9 
Cr Pittock 6 3 8 
Cr Rodgers 6 3 9 
Cr Shaw 5 3 8 
Cr Wood 5 3 8 
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1 November 2016 – 30 June 2017: 
 
 
 
Councillors 

 
Council 
Meeting 

Special 
Council 
Meeting 

 
 

Total 
Cr Brooks 13 3 16 
Cr Celi 13 3 16 
Cr Clark 13 3 16 
Cr Colomb  12 3 15 
Cr Edge 10 1 11 
Cr Fraser 11 3 14 
Cr Gill 13 3 16 
Cr Hearn 12 3 15 
Cr Martin 10 3 13 
Cr Payne 13 3 16 
Cr Roper 13 3 16 
 

Special committees 
 
The Act allows councils to establish one or more special committees consisting of: 
 Councillors 
 Council staff 
 Other persons 
 Any combination of the above  
 
The following table contains a list of special committees established by the Council that are in operation and 
the purpose for which each committee was established. 
 
 
 
Special committee 

 
 

Councillors 

 
 

Officers 

 
 

Other 

 
 

Purpose 
Section 223 Submission 
Committee 

3 0 0 To consider all submissions 
made under section 223 of 
the Act 

Planning Services Committee1 11 0 0 To make strategic and 
statutory planning decisions 

Forward Planning Committee 11 0 0 To recommend to Council 
names for new suburbs and 
streets within the 
municipality 

     
1 Has delegated functions, duties or powers 
 
Councillor Code of Conduct 
The Act requires councils to develop and approve a Councillor Code of Conduct within 12 months after each 
general election. On 20 February 2017, Council adopted a revised Councillor Code of Conduct which is 
designed to: 
 Outline standards of conduct expected of elected representatives; 
 Foster good working relationships between Councillors to enable Councillors to work constructively 

together in the best interests of the local community; and 
 Mandate Councillor conduct designed to build public confidence in the integrity of local government. 
  

Conflict of interest 
Councillors are elected by the residents and ratepayers to act in the best interests of the community. This is 
a position of trust that requires Councillors to act in the public interest. When a Council delegates its powers 
to a Council officer or a committee, the committee or officer also needs to act in the public interest.  
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A conflict of interest occurs when a personal or private interest might compromise the ability to act in the 
public interest. A conflict of interest exists even if no improper act results from it. Council has a 
comprehensive procedure in place to accommodate the disclosure of a conflict of interest. Declaration of a 
conflict of interest is a standard agenda item for all Council and Committee meetings.  
 
While the procedures vary depending on the particular role and circumstances, in general they involve 
disclosing the relevant interests in a specific way and then stepping aside from the relevant decision-making 
process or from the exercise of the public duty. A register is maintained to record all disclosed conflict of 
interests. During 2016-17, nine conflicts of interest were declared at Council and Special Committee 
meetings. 
 

Councillor Allowances 
In accordance with Section 74 of the Act, Councillors are entitled to receive an allowance while performing 
their duty as a Councillor. The Mayor is also entitled to receive a higher allowance. 
 
The Victorian Government sets the upper and lower limits for all allowances paid to councillors and Mayors. 
Councils are divided into three categories based on the income and population of each Council. In this 
instance Mornington Peninsula Shire Council is recognised as a category three Council. 
 
The following table contains details of current allowances and superannuation guarantee equivalent paid for 
the Mayor and Councillors during the year. 
 

Councillor Allowance Superannuation Total 

  $ $ $ 

Cr Simon Brooks (elected: 22 Oct) 
        

18,630.59              1,066.19     19,696.78  

Cr Antonella Celi 
        

27,566.97              1,922.23     29,489.20  

Cr Rosie Clark (elected: 22 Oct) 
        

18,630.59              1,066.19     19,696.78  

Cr Bev Colomb (Mayor: 14 Nov - ) 
        

68,444.07              4,261.54     72,705.61  

Cr Andrew Dixon (retired: 22 Oct) 
          

8,936.38                 856.04       9,792.42  

Cr Julie Edge (elected: 22 Oct) 
        

18,630.59              1,066.19     19,696.78  

Cr Hugh Fraser 
        

27,566.97              1,922.23     29,489.20  

Cr David Garnock (retired: 22 Oct) 
          

8,936.38                 856.04       9,792.42  

Cr David Gibb (retired: 22 Oct) 
          

8,936.38                 856.04       9,792.42  

Cr David Gill (elected: 22 Oct) 
        

18,630.59              1,066.19     19,696.78  

Cr Sam Hearn (elected: 22 Oct) 
        

18,630.59              1,066.19     19,696.78  

Cr Frank Martin (elected: 22 Oct) 
        

18,630.59              1,066.19     19,696.78  

Cr Bryan Payne (elected: 22 Oct) 
        

18,630.59              1,066.19     19,696.78  

Cr Graham Pittock (Mayor; retired: 22 Oct) 
        

28,543.88              2,711.67     31,255.55  

Cr Tim Rodgers (retired: 22 Oct) 
          

8,936.38                 856.04       9,792.42  

Cr Kate Roper (elected: 22 Oct) 
        

18,630.59              1,066.19     19,696.78  

Cr Anne Shaw (retired: 22 Oct) 
          

8,936.38                 856.04       9,792.42  

Cr Tim Wood (retired: 22 Oct) 
          

8,936.38                 856.04       9,792.42  
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Councillor expenses 
 
In accordance with Section 75 of the Act, Council is required to reimburse a Councillor for expenses incurred 
whilst performing his or her duties as a Councillor. Council is also required to adopt and maintain a policy in 
relation to the reimbursement of expenses for Councillors.  
 
The details of the expenses including reimbursement of expenses for each Councillor and member of a 
Council committee paid by Council for the 2016-17 year are: 
  
 

Councillor CC CM CT IC OT TR Total 

  $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

Cr Simon Brooks 
(elected 22 Oct)         1,857       1,080             793         38          3,768  

Cr Antonella Celi 
        

210.00  -1,144         215          2,259       1,156         10          2,706  

Cr Rosie Clark (elected: 
22 Oct)            742          126             868  

Cr Bev Colomb (Mayor: 
14 Nov - present)         1,693       1,508          1,345          395       123          5,064  

Cr Andrew Dixon 
(retired: 22 Oct)         1,020             236          144          1,399  

Cr Julie Edge (elected: 
22 Oct)      5,145          1,550          1,063          7,758  

Cr Hugh Fraser         4,379          817          2,001          422       193          7,811  

Cr David Garnock 
(retired: 22 Oct)         3,985          391             587          236         23          5,222  

Cr David Gibb (retired: 
22 Oct)         2,707          569             521          186         71          4,055  

Cr David Gill (elected: 
22 Oct)                     1,156          1,156  

Cr Sam Hearn (elected: 
22 Oct)           45             731          115             892  

Cr Frank Martin 
(elected: 22 Oct)         4,161       1,187             802          228         14          6,392  

Cr Bryan Payne 
(elected: 22 Oct)         4,300            55          1,113            42         23          5,532  

Cr Graham Pittock 
(Mayor; retired: 22 Oct)            210       2,584             509          339       317          3,958  

Cr Tim Rodgers 
(retired: 22 Oct)         1,656          435             374          336         81          2,881  

Cr Kate Roper (elected: 
22 Oct)         5,120             801          5,921  

Cr Anne Shaw (retired: 
22 Oct)            851          500             309          1,660  

Cr Tim Wood (retired: 
22 Oct)           1,742          594             199          336         41          2,913     

 
Legend: TR-Travel CM-Car Mileage CC-Child Care IC-Information and Communication expenses CT-
Conferences and Training expenses OT Other (including memberships, meals, uniforms and stationery). 
Note: No expenses were paid by Council including reimbursements to members of Council committees 
during the year 

 
Management 
 
Council has implemented a number of statutory and better practice items to strengthen its management 
framework. Having strong governance and management frameworks lead to better decision making by 
Council. The Act requires Council to undertake an assessment against the prescribed governance and 
management checklist and include this in its report of operations. Council’s Governance and Management 
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Checklist results are set out in the section below. The following items have been highlighted as important 
components of the management framework. 
  

Audit and Risk Committee 
 
The Audit and Risk Committee is an independent advisory Committee of Council established under Section 
139 of the Act. The Audit and Risk Committee’s role is to assist Council in carrying out its responsibilities for 
financial and performance reporting, financial management, good corporate governance, maintaining a 
system of internal control and risk management and fostering an ethical environment. The Audit and Risk 
Committee charter is reviewed each year with the most recent charter being approved by Council in April 
2017 (previous charter approved February 2016). 
 
Specifically, the Audit and Risk Committee has been constituted to monitor and report on the 
systems and activities of Council in ensuring: 
 Reliable financial and performance reporting; 
 Effective management of risk; 
 Compliance with applicable laws and regulations; 
 Effective and efficient internal audit function; 
 Effective and efficient external audit function; and 
 Sound internal controls and financial well-being. 
 
The Audit and Risk Committee consists of three independent members and two Councillors. The 
independent members for 2016-17 financial year were: 
 
Ms Lisa Woolmer (Chair)  Appointed February 2016 for a three-year term. 
Ms Andrea Hassett  Re-appointed October 2015 for a three-year term. 
Mr Geoff Hilton   Re-appointed October 2015 for a two-year term. 
 
The Councillor members for 2016-17 financial year were: 
 
Councillor Graham Pittock  Retired September 2016. 
Councillor Hugh Fraser  Appointed November 2015 for a one-year term and re-appointed November 

2016 for a one-year term. 
Councillor Bryan Payne   Appointed November 2016 for a one-year term. 
 
The Audit and Risk Committee meets five times a year. The Chief Executive Officer, Chief Operating Officer, 
Chief Financial Officer and Governance Manager attend all Audit and Risk Committee meetings. Other 
management representatives attend as required to present reports. The external auditors and outsourced 
Internal Auditors also attend each meeting. 
 
Recommendations from each Audit and Risk Committee meeting are subsequently reported to and 
considered by Council.  
 

Internal Audit 
 
Council’s internal audit function provides independent and objective external assurance that the appropriate 
processes and controls are in place across Council. The internal audit function is resourced by an external 
provider which was ShineWing for the 2016-17 financial year. Council’s Finance team coordinates the 
process as well as following up the closure of internal audit recommendations. A three-year Strategic Internal 
Audit Plan (SIAP) is revised and endorsed by the Audit and Risk Committee annually to ensure the audit 
resources remain focused on the appropriate areas. The review process considers Council’s risk framework, 
the Council Plan, prior audit coverage and management input. 
 
A report is prepared for each Audit and Risk Committee meeting that comments on the status of the SIAP 
and an update on the implementation of audit recommendations based on discussions with the responsible 
managers. The Internal Auditor also presents findings of completed reviews with all audit issues identified 
being risk rated. The Manager for each area reviewed is required to attend the Audit and Risk Committee 
meeting to respond to questions in relation to the review. Quality assurance is measured through client 
satisfaction surveys for each review, the annual Audit and Risk Committee self-assessment and completion 
of the internal audit plan.  
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The SIAP for 2016-17 was completed with the following reviews conducted:  

 Maternal and Child Health 
 Privacy and records management 
 Open space / developer contributions 
 Financial Controls 
 Information Technology 
 Councillor expenses 

 

External Audit 
 
For the 2016–17 year the annual external audit of Council’s Financial Statements and Performance 
Statement was conducted by the Victorian Auditor- General. The external auditors attend all Audit and Risk 
Committee meetings and present the annual audit plan and Independent Audit Report. The external audit 
management letter and responses are also provided to the Audit and Risk Committee. 
  

Risk management 
 
In March 2017, Council’s Audit and Risk Committee endorsed the new Risk Management Framework 
(Framework) which was adopted by Council on 13 June 2017. The Framework provides the foundations and 
organisational arrangements for the designing, implementing, monitoring, reviewing and continual 
improvement of risk management throughout the Shire. The capacity to manage and mitigate risk is a critical 
element of good governance and organisational practice. Effective risk management will allow Council to 
achieve its outcomes and better leverage opportunities. The Framework represents Mornington Peninsula 
Shire’s commitment to risk management, and has been designed in line with the Australian Standard 
AS/NZS ISO31000:2009 Risk management – Principles and guidelines. The updated Framework has 
responded to considerable feedback and has been designed to be  both clear and accessible, and to 
encourage the identification, evaluation and treatment of risks at all levels of operation and management. 
The Framework consists of the following components: 

 Risk Management Policy, 
 Risk Management Process, and  
 Risk Management Plan. 

 
Over the coming 12 months, Council will continue to focus on the value of risk management as a tool to drive 
success against its objectives, and will initiate further steps to foster and embed a risk aware culture which 
empowers all staff to raise risk issues. 
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Governance and management checklist 
 
The following are the results in the prescribed form of Council’s assessment against the prescribed 
governance and management checklist. 
 

 

Column 1                                                     
Governance and Management Items 

Column 2                                                       
Assessment 

1 Community engagement policy (policy 
outlining Council’s commitment to 
engaging with the community on matters 
of public interest)  

Draft policy in place and used by staff.  
Formal adoption of policy expected in 
2018. 

 

 2 Community engagement guidelines 
(guidelines to assist staff to determine 
when and how to engage with the 
community)  

Draft guidelines in place and used by staff.  
Formal adoption of guidelines expected in 
2018. 

 

3 Strategic Resource Plan  

(plan under section 126 of the Act 
outlining the financial and non-financial 
resources required for at least the next 
4 financial years)  

Adopted in accordance with section 126 of 
the Act   

Date of adoption: 13 June 2017  

 

4 Annual budget  

(plan under section 130 of the Act setting 
out the services to be provided and 
initiatives to be undertaken over the next 
12 months and the funding and other 
resources required)  

Adopted in accordance with section 130 of 
the Act 

Date of adoption: 13 June 2017 

 

5 Asset management plans  

(plans that set out the asset 
maintenance and renewal needs for key 
infrastructure asset classes for at least 
the next 10 years)  

Buildings, Drainage, Parks & Open 
Space, and Roads Asset Management 
Plans all last updated and approved 14 
March 2017.  

 

6 Rating strategy  

(strategy setting out the rating structure 
of Council to levy rates and charges 

Strategy 

Date of adoption: 13 June 2017 

 

7 Risk policy  

(policy outlining Council’s commitment 
and approach to minimising the risks to 
Council’s operations) 

Policy  

Date of adoption: 13 June 2017 
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Column 1                                                     
Governance and Management Items 

Column 2                             
Assessment 

 

8 Fraud policy  
(policy outlining Council’s commitment 
and approach to minimising the risk of 
fraud)  

Policy      

Date of operation of current policy:         
2 August 2016 

 

9 Municipal emergency management 
plan (plan under section 20 of the 
Emergency Management Act 1986 for 
emergency prevention, response and 
recovery)  

Prepared and maintained in accordance 
with section 20 of the Emergency 
Management Act 1986      

Date of preparation: 27 November 2015. 

 

10 Procurement policy  
(policy under section 186A of the Local 
Government Act 1989 outlining the 
matters, practices and procedures that 
will apply to all purchases of goods, 
services and works)  

Prepared and approved in accordance 
with section 186A of the Local 
Government Act 1989      

Date of adoption: 26 April 2017 

 

11 Business continuity plan  
(plan setting out the actions that will be 
undertaken to ensure that key services 
continue to operate in the event of a 
disaster)  

 

Date of adoption: 8 August 2016 

 

12 Disaster recovery plan  
(plan setting out the actions that will be 
undertaken to recover and restore 
business capability in the event of a 
disaster) 

Date current plan approved: 28 July 
2014 

Council has approved and tested a 
Business Continuity Plan in 2016-17. 
Council has also completed a major 
technology refresh during the 2016-17 
year and is now updating its Disaster 
Recovery Plan to align with the Business 
Continuity Plan and the new technology 
capabilities that are available. Updated 
plan expected to be completed in first 
half of 2017-18. 

 

13 Risk management framework 
(framework outlining Council’s approach 
to managing risks to the Council’s 
operations) 

Risk Management Strategy 

Date of adoption: 13 June 2017 

 

 

14 Audit Committee  
(advisory committee of Council under 
section 139 of the Act whose role is to 
oversee the integrity of a Council’s 
financial reporting, processes to manage 
risks to the Council’s operations and for 
compliance with applicable legal, ethical, 
and regulatory requirements)  

Established in accordance with section 
139 of the Act      

Date of establishment:                           
11 June 1996  
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Column 1                                                     
Governance and Management Items 

Column 2                                                       
Assessment 

 

15 Internal audit  
(independent accounting professionals 
engaged by the Council to provide 
analyses and recommendations aimed 
at improving Council’s governance, risk 
and management controls)  

Date of engagement of 2016-17 provider 
(ShineWing): 1 October 2014 to 30 June 
2017 

Engaged Crowe Horwath to commence 
1 July 2017 

 

16 Performance reporting framework  
(a set of indicators measuring financial 
and non-financial performance, including 
the performance indicators referred to in 
section 131 of the Act)  

Framework      

Date of operation of current framework:  
1 July 2015 

 

17 Council Plan reporting  
(report reviewing the performance of the 
Council against the Council Plan, 
including the results in relation to the 
strategic indicators, for the first six 
months of the financial year)  

Report on the Council Plan is included in 
the CEO Quarterly Performance Report 
to Council 

Date of reports: 1 August 2016, 20 
February 2017 (two quarters due to 
Council elections) and 26 April 2017 

 

18 Financial reporting  
(quarterly statements to Council under 
section 138 of the Act comparing 
budgeted revenue and expenditure with 
actual revenue and expenditure) 

Statements presented to Council in 
accordance with section 138(1) of the 
Act      

Date statements presented:  
28 November 2016, 30 January 2017, 26 
April 2017 and 25 July 2017 

Monthly reports to the community 

 

19 Risk reporting  
(six-monthly reports of strategic risks to 
Council’s operations, their likelihood and 
consequences of occurring and risk 
minimisation strategies)  

Reports      

Date of reports: 17 August 2016 and 22 
March 2017 

 

20 Performance reporting  
(six-monthly reports of indicators 
measuring the results against financial 
and non-financial performance, including 
performance indicators referred to in 
section 131 of the Act) 

Quarterly reports to the Audit and Risk 
Committee  

Date of reports: 7 September 2016, 22 
March 2017 and 24 May 2017 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Column 1                                                     
Governance and Management Items 

Column 2                                                       

Assessment 

 

21 Annual Report  
(Annual Report under sections 131, 132 
and 133 of the Act to the community 
containing a report of operations and 
audited financial and performance 
statements) 

Considered at a meeting of Council in 

accordance with section 134 of the Act 

on 10 October 2016 

 

22 Councillor Code of Conduct  
(Code under section 76C of the Act 
setting out the conduct principles and 
the dispute resolution processes to be 
followed by Councillors)  

Reviewed in accordance with Section 

76C of the Act 

Date of adoption: 20 February 2017 

 

23 Delegations  
(a document setting out the powers, 
duties and functions of Council and the 
Chief Executive Officer that have been 
delegated to members of staff)  

Reviewed in accordance with section 

98(6) of the Act 

Dates of review: 27 March 2017 (Council 
to CEO) & 27 June 2017 (Council to 
Officers) 

 

24 Meeting procedures  
(a local law governing the conduct of 
meetings of Council and special 
committees)  

Meeting procedures local law made in 

accordance with section 91(1) of the Act 

Date local law made: 24 September 

2012 

Currently under review.  
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Statutory information 
 
The following information is provided in accordance with legislative and other requirements applying to 
Council. 
 

Documents available for public inspection 
 
In accordance with regulation 12 of the Local Government (General) Regulations 2015 the following are 
prescribed documents that are available for public inspection or copies of the documents can be obtained for 
the purposes of section 222 of the Act at 90 Besgrove Street, Rosebud: 
 a document containing details of overseas or interstate travel (other than interstate travel by land for less 

than three days) undertaken in an official capacity by Councillor or any member of Council staff in the 
previous 12 months 

 minutes of ordinary and special meetings held in the previous 12 months which are kept under section 93 
of the Act, other than those agendas and minutes relating to a part of a meeting which was closed to 
members of the public under section 89 of the Act and are confidential information within the meaning of 
section 77(2) of the Act 

 the minutes of meetings of special committees established under section 86 of the Act and held in the 
previous 12 months, other than those minutes relating to a part of a meeting which was closed to 
members of the public under section 89 of the Act and are confidential information within the meaning of 
section 77(2) of the Act 

 a register of delegations kept under sections 87(1) and 98(4) of the Act, including the date on which the 
last review took place under sections 86(6) and 98(6), respectively, of the Act  

 a document containing details of all leases involving land which were entered into by the Council as 
lessor, including the lessee and the terms and the value of the lease 

 a register maintained under section 224(1A) of the Act of authorised officers appointed under that section 
 a list of donations and grants made by the Council in the previous 12 months, including the names of 

persons who, or bodies which, have received a donation or grant and the amount of each donation or 
grant. 

 

Best value 
 
In accordance with section 208B(f) of the Act, at least once every year a Council must report to its 
community on what it has done to ensure that it has given effect to the Best Value Principles. Council 
incorporates Best Value Principles through regular business planning and performance monitoring 
processes and through a commitment to continuous improvement and innovation in line with the Shire’s 
Council Plan.  
 
The following Best Value initiatives were undertaken during 2016-17: 
 budget process – development of guidelines and processes for fees and charges 
 business planning – development and implementation of integrated approach to business planning 
 competitive public procurement processes – seeking value for money opportunities  
 support local procurement – in acknowledging our role in supporting local business and promoting 

employment opportunities  
 

Carers recognition 
 
Council is committed to supporting carers in our community and acknowledge the invaluable role they play in 
supporting our more vulnerable community members. 
 
Council has promoted the principles of the Carers Recognition Act 2012 to people in care relationships who 
receive Council services, to people in care relationships, and to the wider community by: 
 Distributing printed material through relevant Council services 
 Providing information to organisations represented in council/community networks 
 
Council has taken all practicable measures to ensure staff and volunteers are informed about the principles 
and obligations of the Act by including information on the care relationship in: 
 Council induction and training programs for staff working in Aged and Disability Services 
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 Induction and training programs for volunteers working directly with the community 
 
Council has taken all practicable measures to review and modify policies, procedures and supports to 
include recognition of the carer relationship and has provided the following additional activities and resources 
to recognise the care relationship: 
 Provision of respite services for carers 
 Recognising carers during National Carers Week  
 Provision of financial support and room bookings for local carers groups to hold AGMs, housing forums 

and other meetings (Frankston Peninsula Carers, Peninsula Carer Council and Community Lifestyle 
Accommodation) 

 Supporting information sessions and workshops about the NDIS for carers. 
 Sending out monthly email bulletin to carers about news and events relating to disability on the 

Mornington Peninsula 
 Recognising the role of carers in the Terms of Reference for Council’s All Abilities Consultative 

Committee 
 

Contracts 
 
During the year Council did not enter into any contracts valued at $150,000 or more for services or $200,000 
or more for works or more of a kind specified in section 186(5)(a) and (c) of the Act. It also did not enter into 
any other contracts valued at $150,000 or more for goods or services or $200,000 or more for works without 
engaging in a competitive process.  
 

Disability Action Plan 
 
In accordance with section 38 of the Disability Act 2006, as Council has prepared a Disability Action Plan it 
must report on the implementation of the Disability Action Plan in its Annual Report. 
Council has prepared a Disability Action Plan and implemented the following actions: 
 
 Access and inclusion audits undertaken is several key activity areas and in Shire facilities.   
 Footpath construction undertaken in commercial key activity areas.  
 Installation of accessible drinking fountains across townships. 
 Review of strategic planning documents to incorporate provision for all ability access.  
 Ongoing implementation of Council’s Scooter RECHARGE scheme, with 24 recharge sites available 

across the peninsula. Brochure developed and ready to print.  
 Update and dissemination of Mobility Maps for key townships.  
 Accessible recreation All-Terrain Wheelchair report developed.  
 Implementation of Beach Matting to increase access at Mount Martha beach.  
 Support for Disabled Surfers Association Mornington Peninsula through provision of Marveloo accessible 

changing places portable toilet on surf days, and financial support to build a permanent accessible 
boardwalk at Point Leo Beach.  

 Development of Communication Boards for Libraries and Customer Service Centres 
 Implementation of Sexual Lives and Respectful Relationships project, including recruitment of one 

participant as a Council employee. 
 Support provided for Carers group to secure funding for new disability housing project Cloverleaf to be 

built in Rosebud. 
 Delivery of All Abilities Day event to support International Day of People with a Disability 
 Distribution of monthly Metro Access E-Bulletins.   
 Delivery of National Disability Insurance Scheme (NDIS) Forum and relevant information provision about 

NDIS across the organisation.   
 Review of and recruitment of new members to the Shire’s All Abilities Consultative Committee who have:  

- Submission made re: delivery of outcomes under the National Disability Strategy 2010-20. 
- Fulfilled judging requirements for the ‘access’ component of the Shire’s Best Bites Program.  
- Reviewed and provided feedback on draft strategic planning documents.  
- Participated in training on Universal Design principles.  
- Advocated for Changing Places toilets at Arthurs Seat Chairlift (completed by Parks Victoria) and 

Mornington (to be completed by Council) 
- Provided feedback about accessibility of Arthurs Seat Chairlift 
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Domestic Animal Management Plan 
 
The Domestic Animal Management Plan has been reviewed and will be subject to a community consultation 
process prior to adoption by Council in November 2017. 
 
The Domestic Animal Management Plan was reviewed in November 2016. Outcomes sought in the Plan are 
being achieved: 
 
 Improved rates of reuniting pets to their owners by promoting and encouraging Shire Rangers to rehome 

directly where possible; 
 Reducing the number of unclaimed and surrendered pets being euthanised by increasing our Section 

84Y Partnerships with Rescue Groups and being one of the first Councils to engage with direct adoption 
via PetRescue website; 

 Improving cat management services by relocating the management of the Cat Cage service to the 
community from the Customer Service unit to Animal Management staff at our Community Animal 
Shelter; 

 Reducing nuisances associated with dogs at the beach by increasing the presence of Authorised 
Officers on beaches and use of temporary signage, including engagement with local foreshore 
Committees of Management;  

 Enhancements to the Shire’s network of leash-free areas through improved signage and patrols and new 
locations being developed. 

 

Food Act Ministerial directions 
 
In accordance with section 7E of the Food Act 1984, Council is required to publish a summary of any 
Ministerial Directions received during the financial year in its Annual Report. No such Ministerial Directions 
were received by Council during the financial year. 

 
Freedom of Information 
 
The Freedom of Information Act 1982 provides members of the community with a right of access to 
documents held by Council, unless that information is deemed exempt under the Act. 
 
The Freedom of Information Act 1982 provides: 
 members of the public the right to access information about the activities of government agencies 
 promotes open and transparent government 
 allows individuals access to their personal affairs information and request that inaccurate, incomplete, 

out-of-date or misleading information in their personal records to be amended 
 provides members of the public the right to appeal against a decision with the Freedom of Information 

Commissioners Office 
 
During the 2016/17 financial year the Mornington Peninsula Shire received 50 Freedom of Information 
Requests.  Outcomes of these requests received in the period 1 July 2016 to 30 June 2017 are detailed in 
the table below.   
 

Access granted in full (no exempt material) 3
Access granted in part (some exempt material) 24
Access denied in full (all material exempt) 2
Withdrawn 4
Not proceeded with 2
Act does not apply 2
No documents 5
Outside the Act 0
Not yet finalised 8

 
Timeframes for decisions made in response to requests were made within 45 days for 32 requests and 
within 46-90 days for 12 requests.  Decisions taking between 46-90 days were requests where arrangements 
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with the applicant for provision outside 45 days was made and in cases where decisions were within 1-2 
days overdue or where provision was provided on the next business day. 
 
During the 2016/2017 reporting period no requests for reviews or complaints were received by the Freedom 
of Information Commissioner’s office with regards to decisions made in response to requests and process 
followed.   
 
Further statistical information on Freedom of Information requests processed by the Mornington Peninsula 
Shire for the 2016/17 financial year will be available in the Freedom of Information Commissioners’ Annual 
Report currently being prepared, which can be viewed online at 
http://www.foicommissioner.vic.gov.au/find/publications/. 
 

Protected Disclosure Procedures 
 
In accordance with section 69 of the Protected Disclosure Act 2012 a Council must include in its Annual 
Report information about how to access the procedures established by the Council under Part 9 of that Act. 
It is also required to provide certain information about the number and types of protected disclosures 
complaints investigated during the financial year. 
 
The Protected Disclosure Act 2012 aims to ensure openness and accountability in government by 
encouraging people to disclose improper conduct within the public sector and provide protection for people 
who make disclosures. Procedures on how to make a disclosure are publicly available on Council’s website. 
 
During the 2016-17 year no disclosures were notified to Council officers appointed to receive disclosures, or 
to Independent Broad-based Anti-corruption Commission (IBAC). 
 
Road Management Act Ministerial directions 
 
In accordance with section 22 of the Road Management Act 2004, a Council must publish a copy or 
summary of any Ministerial direction in its Annual Report. No such Ministerial Directions were received by 
Council during the financial year. 
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Materiality Thresholds 
 
This section is provided to set out the quantitative materiality thresholds used for explaining material 
variations in the performance section.  
 

Service/indicator/measure Measure expressed as: Materiality threshold: 

Aquatic Facilities     
Service standard     
Health inspections of aquatic 
facilities 

Number of health inspections 
per Council aquatic facility 

Movement of +/- 1 

Reportable safety incidents at 
aquatic facilities 

Number of WorkSafe 
reportable aquatic safety 
incidents 

Movement of +/- 2 

Service cost     
Cost of indoor aquatic facilities $ direct cost less any income 

received of providing indoor 
aquatic facilities per visit 

Movement of +/- $1 

Cost of outdoor aquatic facilities $ direct cost less any income 
received of providing outdoor 
aquatic facilities per visit 

Movement of +/- $2.50 

Utilisation     
Utilisation of aquatic facilities Number of visits to aquatic 

facilities per head of 
municipal population 

Movement of +/- 2 visits 

Animal Management     

Timeliness     
Time taken to action animal 
requests 

Number of days taken to 
action animal requests 

Movement of +/- 1 day 

Service standard     
Animals reclaimed % of collected animals 

reclaimed 
Movement of +/- 7.5% 

Service cost     
Cost of animal management service $ direct cost of the animal 

management service per 
registered animal 

Movement of +/- $5 

Health and safety     
Animal management prosecutions Number of prosecutions Movement of +/- 10 

    prosecutions 
 

Food Safety     

Timeliness     
Time taken to action food complaints Number of days taken to 

action food complaints 
Movement of +/- 1 day 

Service standard     
Food safety assessments % of registered class 1 food 

premises and class 2 food 
premises that receive an 
annual food safety 
assessment 
 
 

Movement of +/- 10% 
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Service/indicator/measure Measure expressed as: Materiality threshold: 

Service cost     
Cost of food safety service $ direct cost of the food 

safety service per registered 
food premises 

Movement of +/- $75 

Health and safety     
Critical and major non-compliance 
notifications 

% of critical and major non-
compliance outcome 
notifications that are followed 
up by Council 

Movement of +/- 10% 

Governance     

Transparency     

Council resolutions at meetings 
closed to the public 

% of Council resolutions 
made at meetings closed to 
the public 

Movement of +/- 1.5% 

Consultation and engagement     

Satisfaction with community 
consultation and engagement 

Satisfaction rating out of 100 Movement of +/- 5 

Attendance     

Council attendance at Council 
meetings 

% of Council attendance at 
ordinary and special Council 
meetings 

Movement of +/- 10% 

Service cost     
Cost of governance $ direct cost of the 

governance service per 
Councillor 

Movement of +/- $5000 

Decision making     
Satisfaction with Council decisions Satisfaction rating out of 100 Movement of +/- 5 

Home and Community Care     

Timeliness     
Time taken to commence the HACC 
service 

Number of days it has taken 
for a new client to commence 
the HACC service 

Movement of +/- 7 days 

Service standard     
Compliance with Community Care 
Common Standards 

% of Community Care 
Common Standards expected 
outcomes met 

Movement of +/- 10% 

Service cost     
Cost of domestic care service $ cost of the domestic care 

service per hour of service 
Movement of +/- $5 

Cost of personal care service $ cost of the personal care 
service per hour of service 

Movement of +/- $5 

Cost of respite care service $ cost of the respite care 
service per hour of service 

Movement of +/- $5 

Participation     
Participation in HACC service % of the municipal target 

population that receive a 
HACC service 
 
 
 
 

Movement of +/- 5% 
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Service/indicator/measure Measure expressed as: Materiality threshold: 

Participation in HACC service by 
CALD people 

% of the municipal target 
population in relation to CALD 
people that receive a HACC 
service 

Movement of +/- 5% 

Libraries     

Utilisation     
Library collection usage Number of library collection 

item loans per library 
collection item 

Movement of +/- 0.5 loans 

Resource standard     
Standard of library collection % of the library collection that 

has been purchased in the 
last 5 years 

Movement of +/- 7.5% 

Service cost     
Cost of library service $ direct cost of the library 

service per visit 
Movement of +/- $1 

Participation     
Active library members % of the municipal population 

that are active library 
members 

Movement of +/- 5% 

Maternal and Child Health     

Satisfaction     
Participation in first MCH home visit % of infants enrolled in the 

MCH service who receive the 
first MCH home visit 

Movement of +/- 5% 

Service standard     
Infant enrolments in the MCH 
service 

% of infants enrolled in the 
MCH service 

Movement of +/- 5% 

Service cost     
Cost of the MCH service $ cost of the MCH service per 

hour of service delivered 
Movement of +/- $10 

Participation     
Participation in MCH service % of children enrolled who 

participate in the MCH 
services 

Movement of +/- 5% 

Participation in MCH service by 
Aboriginal children 

% of Aboriginal children 
enrolled who participate in the 
MCH service 

Movement of +/- 10% 

Roads     

Satisfaction of use     
Sealed local road requests Number of sealed local road 

requests per 100 kilometres 
of sealed local road 

Movement of +/- 20 requests 

Condition     
Sealed local roads below the 
intervention level 

% of sealed local roads that 
are below the renewal 
intervention level 
 
 
 

Movement of +/- 5% 
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Service/indicator/measure Measure expressed as: Materiality threshold: 

Service cost     
Cost of sealed local road 
reconstruction 

$ direct reconstruction cost 
per square metre of sealed 
local roads reconstructed 

Movement of +/- $15 

Cost of sealed local road resealing $ direct resealing cost per 
square metre of sealed local 
roads resealed 

Movement of +/- $2 

Satisfaction     

Satisfaction with sealed local roads Satisfaction rating out of 100 Movement of +/- 5 

Statutory Planning     

Timeliness     
Time taken to decide planning 
applications 

Days between receipt of a 
planning application and a 
decision on the application 

Movement of +/- 10 days 

Service standard     
Planning applications decided within 
required time frames 

% of planning application 
decisions made within 
required time frames 

Movement of +/- 7.5% 

Service cost     
Cost of statutory planning service $ direct cost of the statutory 

planning service per planning 
application 

Movement of +/- $250 

Decision making     
Planning decisions upheld at VCAT % of decisions subject to 

review by VCAT that were not 
set aside 

Movement of +/- 10% 

Waste Collection     

Satisfaction     
Kerbside bin collection requests Number of kerbside bin 

collection requests per 1000 
kerbside bin collection 
households 

Movement of +/- 10 requests 

Service standard     
Kerbside collection bins missed Number of kerbside collection 

bins missed per 10,000 
scheduled kerbside collection 
bin lifts 

Movement of +/- 5 bins 

Service cost     
Cost of kerbside garbage collection 
service 

$ direct cost of the kerbside 
garbage bin collection service 
per kerbside garbage 
collection bin 
 
 
 
 
 

Movement of +/- $10 
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Service/indicator/measure Measure expressed as: Materiality threshold: 

Cost of kerbside recyclables 
collection service 

$ direct cost of the kerbside 
recyclables collection service 
per kerbside recyclables 
collection bin 

Movement of +/- $5 

Waste diversion     
Kerbside collection waste diverted 
from landfill 

% of garbage, recyclables 
and green organics collected 
from kerbside bins that is 
diverted from landfill 

Movement of +/- 10% 

 
 
 

 

 





 

 

Independent Auditor’s Report 

To the Councillors of Mornington Peninsula Shire Council 

Opinion I have audited the financial report of Mornington Peninsula Shire Council (the council) 

which comprises the: 

 balance sheet as at 30 June 2017 

 comprehensive income statement for the year then ended 

 statement of changes in equity for the year then ended 

 statement of cash flows for the year then ended 

 statement of capital works for the year then ended 

 notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 

policies 

 certification of the financial statements. 

In my opinion the financial report presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial 

position of the council as at 30 June 2017 and their financial performance and cash flows for 

the year then ended in accordance with the financial reporting requirements of Part 6 of the 

Local Government Act 1989 and applicable Australian Accounting Standards.   

Basis for 

Opinion 

I have conducted my audit in accordance with the Audit Act 1994 which incorporates the 

Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under the Act are further described in the 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of my report.  

My independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. My staff and I are 

independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting 

Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional 

Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in Australia. My 

staff and I have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for my opinion. 

Councillors’ 

responsibilities 

for the 

financial 

report 

The Councillors of the council are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of 

the financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Local 

Government Act 1989, and for such internal control as the Councillors determine is 

necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of a financial report that is free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial report, the Councillors are responsible for assessing the council’s 

ability to continue as a going concern, and using the going concern basis of accounting 

unless it is inappropriate to do so. 
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Auditor’s 

responsibilities 

for the audit 

of the financial 

report 

As required by the Audit Act 1994, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial 

report based on the audit. My objectives for the audit are to obtain reasonable assurance 

about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether 

due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable 

assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 

accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material 

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 

to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.  

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, I exercise 

professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. I also:  

 identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether 

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 

and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 

opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 

higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose 

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the council’s internal control 

 evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Councillors 

 conclude on the appropriateness of the Councillors’ use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 

uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 

the council’s ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material 

uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the 

related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 

modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 

the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 

council to cease to continue as a going concern.  

 evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, 

including the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying 

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

I communicate with the Councillors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 

internal control that I identify during my audit. 

 

 

 
MELBOURNE 

22 September 2017 

Tim Loughnan 

as delegate for the Auditor-General of Victoria 
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&DVK�IORZV�IURP�LQYHVWLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV

3D\PHQWV�IRU�SURSHUW\��LQIUDVWUXFWXUH��SODQW�DQG�HTXLSPHQW �� �������� ��������
3URFHHGV�IURP�VDOH�RI�SURSHUW\��LQIUDVWUXFWXUH��SODQW�DQG�HTXLSPHQW ����� ���
3D\PHQWV�IRU�LQYHVWPHQWV��WHUP�GHSRVLWV�RYHU����GD\V�SODFHG� ��������� ��������
3URFHHGV�IURP�LQYHVWPHQWV��WHUP�GHSRVLWV�RYHU����GD\V�XSOLIWHG� ������ ������
1HW�FDVK�SURYLGHG�E\��XVHG�LQ��LQYHVWLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV �������� ��������

&DVK�IORZV�IURP�ILQDQFLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV�����

)LQDQFH�FRVWV ������� �������
5HSD\PHQW�RI�ERUURZLQJV ������� �������
1HW�FDVK�SURYLGHG�E\��XVHG�LQ��ILQDQFLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV ������� �������

1HW�LQFUHDVH��GHFUHDVH��LQ�FDVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV �������� �����
&DVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV�DW�WKH�EHJLQQLQJ�RI�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�\HDU ������ ������

&DVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV�DW�WKH�HQG�RI�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�\HDU����� ����� ������
�%DODQFH�H[FOXGHV�WHUP�GHSRVLWV�RYHU����GD\V��UHIHU�1RWH����

)LQDQFLQJ�DUUDQJHPHQWV ��
5HVWULFWLRQV�RQ�FDVK�DVVHWV ��

����������)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUW

6WDWHPHQW�RI�&DVK�)ORZV
)RU�WKH�<HDU�(QGHG����-XQH�����

7KH�DERYH�VWDWHPHQW�RI�FDVK�IORZ�VKRXOG�EH�UHDG�LQ�FRQMXQFWLRQ�ZLWK�WKH�DFFRPSDQ\LQJ�QRWHV�
3DJH��
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1RWH ���� ����
�
��� �
���

3URSHUW\

/DQG ��� ���

%XLOGLQJV ����� �����

7RWDO�SURSHUW\ ����� �����

3ODQW�DQG�HTXLSPHQW
3ODQW�DQG�HTXLSPHQW ��� ���
)XUQLWXUH�DQG�ILWWLQJV �� ��
,QIRUPDWLRQ�WHFKQRORJ\ �� ��
$UWZRUNV �� �
/LEUDU\�ERRNV ��� �����
7RWDO�SODQW�DQG�HTXLSPHQW ����� �����

,QIUDVWUXFWXUH
5RDGV ������ ������
'UDLQDJH ����� �����
%ULGJHV ��� �
)RRWSDWKV�DQG�F\FOHZD\V ����� �
5HFUHDWLRQDO��OHLVXUH�DQG�FRPPXQLW\�IDFLOLWLHV ����� �
3DUNV��RSHQ�VSDFH�DQG�VWUHHWVFDSHV ����� �
0DULQH�6WUXFWXUHV ��� �
2WKHU�LQIUDVWUXFWXUH� ��� �����
7RWDO�LQIUDVWUXFWXUH ������ ������

7RWDO�FDSLWDO�ZRUNV�H[SHQGLWXUH ������ ������

5HSUHVHQWHG�E\�
1HZ�DVVHW�H[SHQGLWXUH ����� �����
$VVHW�UHQHZDO�H[SHQGLWXUH ������ ������
$VVHW�H[SDQVLRQ�H[SHQGLWXUH ����� ���
$VVHW�XSJUDGH�H[SHQGLWXUH ������ �����
7RWDO�FDSLWDO�ZRUNV�H[SHQGLWXUH ������ ������

����������)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUW

6WDWHPHQW�RI�&DSLWDO�:RUNV
)RU�WKH�<HDU�(QGHG����-XQH�����

7KH�DERYH�VWDWHPHQW�RI�FDSLWDO�ZRUNV�VKRXOG�EH�UHDG�LQ�FRQMXQFWLRQ�ZLWK�WKH�DFFRPSDQ\LQJ�QRWHV�
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,QWURGXFWLRQ
7KH�0RUQLQJWRQ�3HQLQVXOD�6KLUH�ZDV�HVWDEOLVKHG�E\�DQ�2UGHU�RI�WKH�*RYHUQRU�LQ�&RXQFLO�RQ����
'HFHPEHU������DQG�LV�D�ERG\�FRUSRUDWH���
7KH�&RXQFLO
V�PDLQ�RIILFH��LV�ORFDWHG�DW����%HVJURYH�6WUHHW��5RVHEXG���

6WDWHPHQW�RI�FRPSOLDQFH�

7KHVH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DUH�D�JHQHUDO�SXUSRVH�ILQDQFLDO�UHSRUW�WKDW�FRQVLVWV�RI�D�
&RPSUHKHQVLYH��,QFRPH�6WDWHPHQW��%DODQFH�6KHHW��6WDWHPHQW�RI�&KDQJHV�LQ�(TXLW\��6WDWHPHQW�
RI�&DVK�)ORZV��6WDWHPHQW�RI�&DSLWDO�:RUNV�DQG�1RWHV�DFFRPSDQ\LQJ�WKHVH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��
7KH�JHQHUDO�SXUSRVH�ILQDQFLDO�UHSRUW�FRPSOLHV�ZLWK�WKH�$XVWUDOLDQ�$FFRXQWLQJ�6WDQGDUGV��RWKHU�
DXWKRULWDWLYH�SURQRXQFHPHQWV�RI�WKH�$XVWUDOLDQ�$FFRXQWLQJ�6WDQGDUGV�%RDUG��WKH�/RFDO�
*RYHUQPHQW�$FW�������DQG�WKH�/RFDO�*RYHUQPHQW��3ODQQLQJ�DQG�5HSRUWLQJ��5HJXODWLRQV������

1RWH�� 6LJQLILFDQW�DFFRXQWLQJ�SROLFLHV

�D�� %DVLV�RI�DFFRXQWLQJ
7KH�DFFUXDO�EDVLV�RI�DFFRXQWLQJ�KDV�EHHQ�XVHG�LQ�WKH�SUHSDUDWLRQ�RI�WKHVH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��
ZKHUHE\�DVVHWV��OLDELOLWLHV��HTXLW\��LQFRPH�DQG�H[SHQVHV�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�WKH�UHSRUWLQJ�SHULRG�WR�
ZKLFK�WKH\�UHODWH��UHJDUGOHVV�RI�ZKHQ�FDVK�LV�UHFHLYHG�RU�SDLG��

-XGJHPHQWV��HVWLPDWHV�DQG�DVVXPSWLRQV�DUH�UHTXLUHG�WR�EH�PDGH�DERXW�WKH�FDUU\LQJ�YDOXHV�RI�
DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�WKDW�DUH�QRW�UHDGLO\�DSSDUHQW�IURP�RWKHU�VRXUFHV���7KH�HVWLPDWHV�DQG�
DVVRFLDWHG�MXGJHPHQWV�DUH��EDVHG�RQ�SURIHVVLRQDO�MXGJHPHQW�GHULYHG�IURP�KLVWRULFDO�H[SHULHQFH�
DQG�YDULRXV�RWKHU�IDFWRUV�WKDW�DUH�EHOLHYHG�WR�EH�UHDVRQDEOH�XQGHU�WKH�FLUFXPVWDQFHV���$FWXDO�
UHVXOWV�PD\�GLIIHU�IURP�WKHVH�HVWLPDWHV�

5HYLVLRQV�WR�DFFRXQWLQJ�HVWLPDWHV�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�WKH�SHULRG�LQ�ZKLFK�WKH�HVWLPDWH�LV�UHYLVHG�
DQG�DOVR�LQ�IXWXUH�SHULRGV�WKDW�DUH�DIIHFWHG�E\�WKH�UHYLVLRQ���-XGJHPHQWV�DQG�DVVXPSWLRQV�PDGH�
E\�PDQDJHPHQW�LQ�WKH�DSSOLFDWLRQ�RI�$$6
V�WKDW�KDYH�VLJQLILFDQW�HIIHFWV�RQ�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�
VWDWHPHQWV�DQG�HVWLPDWHV�UHODWH�WR�
���WKH�IDLU�YDOXH�RI�ODQG��EXLOGLQJV��LQIUDVWUXFWXUH��SODQW�DQG�HTXLSPHQW��UHIHU�WR�1RWH����N���
���WKH�GHWHUPLQDWLRQ�RI�GHSUHFLDWLRQ�IRU��EXLOGLQJV��LQIUDVWUXFWXUH��SODQW�DQG�HTXLSPHQW��UHIHU�WR�
1RWH����O���
���WKH�GHWHUPLQDWLRQ�RI�HPSOR\HH�SURYLVLRQV��UHIHU�WR�1RWH����U���
��ODQGILOO�UHKDELOLWDWLRQ�SURYLVLRQ��UHIHU�WR�1RWH���V���

8QOHVV�RWKHUZLVH�VWDWHG��DOO�DFFRXQWLQJ�SROLFLHV�DUH�FRQVLVWHQW�ZLWK�WKRVH�DSSOLHG�LQ�WKH�SULRU�\HDU���
:KHUH�DSSURSULDWH��FRPSDUDWLYH�ILJXUHV�KDYH�EHHQ�DPHQGHG�WR�DFFRUG�ZLWK�FXUUHQW�SUHVHQWDWLRQ��
DQG�GLVFORVXUH�KDV�EHHQ�PDGH�RI�DQ\�PDWHULDO�FKDQJHV�WR�FRPSDUDWLYHV��

,Q DGGLWLRQ� WKH IROORZLQJ FRPSDUDWLYH ILJXUHV KDYH EHHQ DGMXVWHG IURP WKH SULRU \HDU DXGLWHG
ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV ZLWK GHWDLOHG H[SODQDWLRQ RI WKH DGMXVWPHQWV DQG WKHLU DPRXQWV GLVFORVHG LQ
1RWH����
���SURSHUW\��LQIUDVWUXFWXUH��SODQW�DQG�HTXLSPHQW�±�FRUUHFWLRQ�RI�SULRU�SHULRG�PLVVWDWHPHQW

%\ YLUWXH RI WKH IDFW WKDW VRPH FRXQFLOORUV RI 0RUQLQJWRQ 3HQLQVXOD 6KLUH IRUP WKH ZKROH RI WKH
%RDUG RI 7UXVWHHV RI WKH 0RUQLQJWRQ 3HQLQVXOD &HPHWHU\ 7UXVW� WKLV HQWLW\ LV FRQVLGHUHG WR EH D
FRQWUROOHG HQWLW\ XQGHU $$6% ��� &RQVROLGDWHG )LQDQFLDO 6WDWHPHQWV� ,WV RSHUDWLQJ UHVXOWV� DVVHWV
DQG OLDELOLWLHV KDYH QRW EHHQ LQFOXGHG LQ WKH DFFRXQWV RQ WKH EDVLV WKDW WKH\ DUH QRW PDWHULDO
LQGLYLGXDOO\�RU�LQ�DJJUHJDWH�

�E�� &KDQJHV�LQ�DFFRXQWLQJ�SROLFLHV

7KHUH�KDYH�EHHQ�QR�FKDQJHV�LQ�DFFRXQWLQJ�SROLFLHV�IURP�WKH�SUHYLRXV�SHULRG�

�F�� &RPPLWWHHV�RI�PDQDJHPHQW
$OO�HQWLWLHV�FRQWUROOHG�E\�&RXQFLO�WKDW�KDYH�PDWHULDO�UHYHQXHV��H[SHQVHV��DVVHWV�RU�OLDELOLWLHV��VXFK�
DV�FRPPLWWHHV�RI�PDQDJHPHQW��KDYH�EHHQ�LQFOXGHG�LQ�WKLV�ILQDQFLDO�UHSRUW���$Q\�WUDQVDFWLRQV�
EHWZHHQ�WKHVH�HQWLWLHV�DQG�&RXQFLO�KDYH�EHHQ�HOLPLQDWHG�LQ�IXOO�

����������)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUW

1RWHV�WR�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUW
)RU�WKH�<HDU�(QGHG����-XQH�����

3DJH��
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1RWHV�WR�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUW
)RU�WKH�<HDU�(QGHG����-XQH�����

1RWH�� 6LJQLILFDQW�DFFRXQWLQJ�SROLFLHV��FRQW��

�G�� 5HYHQXH�UHFRJQLWLRQ
,QFRPH�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�ZKHQ�WKH�&RXQFLO�REWDLQV�FRQWURO�RI�WKH�FRQWULEXWLRQ�RU�WKH�ULJKW�WR�UHFHLYH�
WKH�FRQWULEXWLRQ��LW�LV�SUREDEOH�WKDW�WKH�HFRQRPLF�EHQHILWV�FRPSULVLQJ�WKH�FRQWULEXWLRQ�ZLOO�IORZ�WR�
WKH�&RXQFLO�DQG�WKH�DPRXQW�RI�WKH�FRQWULEXWLRQ�FDQ�EH�PHDVXUHG�UHOLDEO\�

5DWHV�DQG�&KDUJHV

$QQXDO�UDWHV�DQG�FKDUJHV�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�DV�UHYHQXHV�ZKHQ�&RXQFLO�LVVXHV�DQQXDO�UDWHV�QRWLFHV���
6XSSOHPHQWDU\�UDWHV�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�ZKHQ�D�YDOXDWLRQ�DQG�UHDVVHVVPHQW�LV�FRPSOHWHG�DQG�D�
VXSSOHPHQWDU\�UDWHV�QRWLFH�LVVXHG�

6WDWXWRU\�IHHV�DQG�ILQHV
6WDWXWRU\��IHHV�DQG�ILQHV��LQFOXGLQJ�SDUNLQJ�IHHV�DQG�ILQHV��DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�DV�UHYHQXH�ZKHQ�WKH�
VHUYLFH�KDV�EHHQ�SURYLGHG��WKH�SD\PHQW�LV�UHFHLYHG��RU�ZKHQ�WKH�SHQDOW\�KDV�EHHQ�DSSOLHG��
ZKLFKHYHU�ILUVW�RFFXUV�

8VHU�IHHV
8VHU��IHHV�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�DV�UHYHQXH�ZKHQ�WKH�VHUYLFH�KDV�EHHQ�SURYLGHG�RU�WKH�SD\PHQW�LV�
UHFHLYHG��ZKLFKHYHU�ILUVW�RFFXUV�

*UDQWV
*UDQW�LQFRPH�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�ZKHQ�&RXQFLO�REWDLQV�FRQWURO�RI�WKH�FRQWULEXWLRQ���7KLV�LV��QRUPDOO\�
REWDLQHG�XSRQ�WKHLU�UHFHLSW��RU�DFTXLWWDO��RU�XSRQ�HDUOLHU�QRWLILFDWLRQ�WKDW�D�JUDQW�KDV�EHHQ�VHFXUHG��
DQG�DUH�YDOXHG�DW�WKHLU�IDLU�YDOXH�DW�WKH�GDWH�RI�WUDQVIHU�

:KHUH�JUDQWV�RU�FRQWULEXWLRQV�UHFRJQLVHG�DV�UHYHQXHV�GXULQJ�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�\HDU�ZHUH�REWDLQHG�RQ�
FRQGLWLRQ�WKDW�WKH\�EH�H[SHQGHG�LQ�D�SDUWLFXODU�PDQQHU�RU�XVHG�RYHU�D�SDUWLFXODU�SHULRG�DQG�WKRVH�
FRQGLWLRQV�ZHUH�XQGLVFKDUJHG�DW�EDODQFH�GDWH��WKH�XQXVHG�JUDQW�RU�FRQWULEXWLRQ�LV�GLVFORVHG�LQ�
1RWH�����7KH�QRWH�DOVR�GLVFORVHV�WKH�DPRXQW�RI�XQXVHG�JUDQW�RU�FRQWULEXWLRQ�IURP�SULRU�\HDUV�WKDW�
ZDV�H[SHQGHG�RQ�&RXQFLO¶V�RSHUDWLRQV�GXULQJ�WKH�FXUUHQW�\HDU�

&RQWULEXWLRQV
0RQHWDU\�DQG�QRQ�PRQHWDU\�FRQWULEXWLRQV�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�DV�UHYHQXH�ZKHQ�&RXQFLO�REWDLQV�
FRQWURO�RYHU�WKH�FRQWULEXWHG�DVVHW���

6DOH�RI�SURSHUW\��LQIUDVWUXFWXUH��SODQW�DQG�HTXLSPHQW
7KH�SURILW�RU�ORVV�RQ�VDOH�RI�DQ�DVVHW�LV�GHWHUPLQHG�ZKHQ�FRQWURO�RI�WKH�DVVHW�KDV�LUUHYRFDEO\�
SDVVHG�WR�WKH�EX\HU�

,QWHUHVW
,QWHUHVW�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�DV�LW�LV�HDUQHG�

'LYLGHQGV
'LYLGHQG�UHYHQXH�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�ZKHQ�WKH�&RXQFLO
V�ULJKW�WR�UHFHLYH�SD\PHQW�LV�HVWDEOLVKHG�

2WKHU�,QFRPH
2WKHU�LQFRPH�LV�PHDVXUHG�DW�WKH�IDLU�YDOXH�RI�WKH�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�UHFHLYHG�RU�UHFHLYDEOH�DQG�LV�
UHFRJQLVHG�ZKHQ�&RXQFLO�JDLQV�FRQWURO�RYHU�WKH�ULJKW�WR�UHFHLYH�WKH�LQFRPH�

3DJH��



0RUQLQJWRQ�3HQLQVXOD�6KLUH
����������)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUW

1RWHV�WR�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUW
)RU�WKH�<HDU�(QGHG����-XQH�����

1RWH�� 6LJQLILFDQW�DFFRXQWLQJ�SROLFLHV��FRQW��

�H�� )DLU�YDOXH�PHDVXUHPHQW
&RXQFLO�PHDVXUHV�FHUWDLQ�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�ZKHUH�UHTXLUHG�RU�SHUPLWWHG�E\�
$XVWUDOLDQ�$FFRXQWLQJ�6WDQGDUGV��$$6%����)DLU�YDOXH�PHDVXUHPHQW��DLPV�WR�LPSURYH�FRQVLVWHQF\�
DQG�UHGXFH�FRPSOH[LW\�E\�SURYLGLQJ�D�GHILQLWLRQ�RI�IDLU�YDOXH�DQG�D�VLQJOH�VRXUFH�RI�IDLU�YDOXH�
PHDVXUHPHQW�DQG�GLVFORVXUH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�IRU�XVH�DFURVV�$XVWUDOLDQ�$FFRXQWLQJ�6WDQGDUGV�
$$6%����GHILQHV�IDLU�YDOXH�DV�WKH�SULFH�WKDW�ZRXOG�EH�UHFHLYHG�WR�VHOO�DQ�DVVHW�RU�SDLG�WR�WUDQVIHU�
D�OLDELOLW\�LQ�DQ�RUGHUO\�WUDQVDFWLRQ�EHWZHHQ�PDUNHW�SDUWLFLSDQWV�DW�WKH�PHDVXUHPHQW�GDWH��)DLU�
YDOXH�XQGHU�$$6%����LV�DQ�H[LW�SULFH�UHJDUGOHVV�RI�ZKHWKHU�WKDW�SULFH�LV�GLUHFWO\�REVHUYDEOH�RU�
HVWLPDWHG�XVLQJ�DQRWKHU�YDOXDWLRQ�WHFKQLTXH��

$OO�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�IRU�ZKLFK�IDLU�YDOXH�LV�PHDVXUHG�RU�GLVFORVHG�LQ�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�
DUH�FDWHJRULVHG�ZLWKLQ�D�IDLU�YDOXH�KLHUDUFK\��GHVFULEHG�DV�IROORZV��EDVHG�RQ�WKH�ORZHVW�OHYHO�LQSXW�
WKDW�LV�VLJQLILFDQW�WR�WKH�IDLU�YDOXH�PHDVXUHPHQW�DV�D�ZKROH�

/HYHO���²�4XRWHG��XQDGMXVWHG��PDUNHW�SULFHV�LQ�DFWLYH�PDUNHWV�IRU�LGHQWLFDO�DVVHWV�RU�OLDELOLWLHV
/HYHO���²�9DOXDWLRQ�WHFKQLTXHV�IRU�ZKLFK�WKH�ORZHVW�OHYHO�LQSXW�WKDW�LV�VLJQLILFDQW�WR�WKH�IDLU�YDOXH�
PHDVXUHPHQW�LV�GLUHFWO\�RU�LQGLUHFWO\�REVHUYDEOH��DQG
/HYHO���²�9DOXDWLRQ�WHFKQLTXHV�IRU�ZKLFK�WKH�ORZHVW�OHYHO�LQSXW�WKDW�LV�VLJQLILFDQW�WR�WKH�IDLU�YDOXH�
PHDVXUHPHQW�LV�XQREVHUYDEOH�
)RU�WKH�SXUSRVH�RI�IDLU�YDOXH�GLVFORVXUHV��&RXQFLO�KDV�GHWHUPLQHG�FODVVHV�RI�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�
RQ�WKH�EDVLV�RI�WKH�QDWXUH��FKDUDFWHULVWLFV�DQG�ULVNV�RI�WKH�DVVHW�RU�OLDELOLW\�DQG�WKH�OHYHO�RI�WKH�IDLU�
YDOXH�KLHUDUFK\�DV�H[SODLQHG�DERYH�
,Q�DGGLWLRQ��&RXQFLO�GHWHUPLQHV�ZKHWKHU�WUDQVIHUV�KDYH�RFFXUUHG�EHWZHHQ�OHYHOV�LQ�WKH�KLHUDUFK\�
E\�UH�DVVHVVLQJ�FDWHJRULVDWLRQ��EDVHG�RQ�WKH�ORZHVW�OHYHO�LQSXW�WKDW�LV�VLJQLILFDQW�WR�WKH�IDLU�YDOXH�
PHDVXUHPHQW�DV�D�ZKROH��DW�WKH�HQG�RI�HDFK�UHSRUWLQJ�SHULRG�

�I�� &DVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV
&DVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV�LQFOXGH�FDVK�RQ�KDQG��GHSRVLWV�DW�FDOO��DQG�RWKHU�KLJKO\�OLTXLG�
LQYHVWPHQWV�ZLWK�RULJLQDO�PDWXULWLHV�RI����GD\V�RU�OHVV��QHW�RI�RXWVWDQGLQJ�EDQN�RYHUGUDIWV�

�J�� 7UDGH�DQG�RWKHU�UHFHLYDEOHV
6KRUW�WHUP�UHFHLYDEOHV�DUH�FDUULHG�DW�LQYRLFH�DPRXQW�DW�DPRUWLVHG�FRVW�XVLQJ�WKH�HIIHFWLYH�LQWHUHVW�
UDWH�PHWKRG����$�SURYLVLRQ�IRU�GRXEWIXO�GHEWV�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�ZKHQ�WKHUH�LV�REMHFWLYH�HYLGHQFH�WKDW�
DQ�LPSDLUPHQW�KDV�RFFXUUHG���/RQJ�WHUP�UHFHLYDEOHV�DUH�FDUULHG�DW�DPRUWLVHG�FRVW�XVLQJ�WKH�
HIIHFWLYH�LQWHUHVW�UDWH�PHWKRG�

�K�� 2WKHU�ILQDQFLDO�DVVHWV
2WKHU�ILQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DUH�YDOXHG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH���7HUP�GHSRVLWV�DUH�PHDVXUHG�DW�DPRUWLVHG�FRVW���
$Q\�XQUHDOLVHG�JDLQV�DQG�ORVVHV�RQ�KROGLQJV�DW�EDODQFH�GDWH�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�DV�HLWKHU�D�UHYHQXH�
RU�H[SHQVH�
6KDUHV�DUH�YDOXHG�DW�FRVW��&RXQFLO¶V�KROGLQJV�LQ�VKDUHV�DUH�ZLWK�3URFXUHPHQW�$XVWUDOLD��0$36�
*URXS�/WG��DQG�5\H�DQG�'LVWULFW�&RPPXQLW\�)LQDQFLDO�6HUYLFHV�/WG��

�L�� ,QYHQWRULHV
,QYHQWRULHV�KHOG�IRU�GLVWULEXWLRQ�DUH�PHDVXUHG�DW�FRVW��DGMXVWHG�ZKHQ�DSSOLFDEOH�IRU�DQ\�ORVV�RI�
VHUYLFH�SRWHQWLDO���
$OO�RWKHU�LQYHQWRULHV�DUH�PHDVXUHG�DW�WKH�ORZHU�RI�FRVW�DQG�QHW�UHDOLVDEOH�YDOXH��:KHUH�LQYHQWRULHV�
DUH��DFTXLUHG�IRU�QR�FRVW�RU�QRPLQDO�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ��WKH\�DUH�PHDVXUHG�DW�FXUUHQW�UHSODFHPHQW�FRVW�
DW�WKH�GDWH�RI�DFTXLVLWLRQ�

�M�� 1RQ�FXUUHQW�DVVHWV�FODVVLILHG�DV�KHOG�IRU�VDOH

$�QRQ�FXUUHQW�DVVHW�FODVVLILHG�DV�KHOG�IRU�VDOH��LQFOXGLQJ�GLVSRVDO�JURXSV��LV�PHDVXUHG�DW�WKH�
ORZHU�RI�LWV�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�DQG�IDLU�YDOXH�OHVV�FRVWV�RI�GLVSRVDO��DQG�DUH�QRW�VXEMHFW�WR�
GHSUHFLDWLRQ��1RQ�FXUUHQW�DVVHWV��GLVSRVDO�JURXSV�DQG�UHODWHG�OLDELOLWLHV�DQG�DVVHWV�DUH�WUHDWHG�DV�
FXUUHQW�DQG�FODVVLILHG�DV�KHOG�IRU�VDOH�LI�WKHLU�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�ZLOO�EH�UHFRYHUHG�WKURXJK�D�VDOH�
WUDQVDFWLRQ�UDWKHU�WKDQ�WKURXJK�FRQWLQXLQJ�XVH��7KLV�FRQGLWLRQ�LV�UHJDUGHG�DV�PHW�RQO\�ZKHQ�WKH�
VDOH�LV�KLJKO\�SUREDEOH�DQG�WKH�DVVHW
V�VDOH��RU�GLVSRVDO�JURXS�VDOH��LV�H[SHFWHG�WR�EH�FRPSOHWHG�
ZLWKLQ����PRQWKV�IURP�WKH�GDWH�RI�FODVVLILFDWLRQ�
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�N��� 5HFRJQLWLRQ�DQG�PHDVXUHPHQW�RI�SURSHUW\��LQIUDVWUXFWXUH��SODQW�DQG�HTXLSPHQW�DQG�LQWDQJLEOHV
$FTXLVLWLRQ
7KH�SXUFKDVH�PHWKRG�RI�DFFRXQWLQJ�LV�XVHG�IRU�DOO�DFTXLVLWLRQV�RI�DVVHWV��EHLQJ�WKH�IDLU�YDOXH�RI�
DVVHWV�SURYLGHG�DV�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�DW�WKH�GDWH�RI�DFTXLVLWLRQ�SOXV�DQ\�LQFLGHQWDO�FRVWV�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�
WKH�DFTXLVLWLRQ���)DLU�YDOXH�LV�WKH�SULFH�WKDW�ZRXOG�EH�UHFHLYHG�WR�VHOO�DQ�DVVHW��RU�SDLG�WR�WUDQVIHU�D�
OLDELOLW\��LQ�DQ�RUGHUO\�WUDQVDFWLRQ�EHWZHHQ�PDUNHW�SDUWLFLSDQWV�DW�WKH�PHDVXUHPHQW�GDWH�

:KHUH�DVVHWV�DUH�FRQVWUXFWHG�E\�&RXQFLO��FRVW�LQFOXGHV�DOO�PDWHULDOV�XVHG�LQ�FRQVWUXFWLRQ��GLUHFW�
ODERXU��ERUURZLQJ�FRVWV�LQFXUUHG�GXULQJ�FRQVWUXFWLRQ��DQG�DQ�DSSURSULDWH�VKDUH�RI�GLUHFWO\�
DWWULEXWDEOH�YDULDEOH�DQG�IL[HG��RYHUKHDGV�

,Q�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�&RXQFLO
V�SROLF\��WKH�WKUHVKROG�OLPLWV�GHWDLOHG�LQ�1RWH����O��KDYH�DSSOLHG�ZKHQ�
UHFRJQLVLQJ�DVVHWV�ZLWKLQ�DQ�DSSOLFDEOH�DVVHW�FODVV�DQG�XQOHVV�RWKHUZLVH�VWDWHG�DUH�FRQVLVWHQW�
ZLWK�WKH�SULRU�\HDU�

5HYDOXDWLRQ
6XEVHTXHQW�WR�WKH�LQLWLDO�UHFRJQLWLRQ�RI�DVVHWV��QRQ�FXUUHQW�SK\VLFDO�DVVHWV��RWKHU�WKDQ�SODQW�DQG�
HTXLSPHQW��DUH�PHDVXUHG�DW�WKHLU�IDLU�YDOXH��EHLQJ�WKH�SULFH�WKDW�ZRXOG�EH�UHFHLYHG�WR�VHOO�DQ�DVVHW�
�RU�SDLG�WR�WUDQVIHU�D�OLDELOLW\��LQ�DQ�RUGHUO\�WUDQVDFWLRQ�EHWZHHQ�PDUNHW�SDUWLFLSDQWV�DW�WKH�
PHDVXUHPHQW�GDWH���$W�EDODQFH�GDWH��WKH�&RXQFLO�UHYLHZHG�WKH�FDUU\LQJ�YDOXH�RI�WKH�LQGLYLGXDO�
FODVVHV�RI�DVVHWV�PHDVXUHG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WR�HQVXUH�WKDW�HDFK�DVVHW�PDWHULDOO\�DSSUR[LPDWHG�LWV�IDLU�
YDOXH���:KHUH�WKH�FDUU\LQJ�YDOXH�PDWHULDOO\�GLIIHUHG�IURP�WKH�IDLU�YDOXH�DW�EDODQFH�GDWH��WKH�FODVV�
RI�DVVHW�ZDV�UHYDOXHG�

)DLU�YDOXH�YDOXDWLRQV�DUH�GHWHUPLQHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�D�YDOXDWLRQ�KLHUDUFK\���&KDQJHV�WR�WKH�
YDOXDWLRQ�KLHUDUFK\�ZLOO�RQO\�RFFXU�LI�DQ�H[WHUQDO�FKDQJH�LQ�WKH�UHVWULFWLRQV�RU�OLPLWDWLRQV�RI�XVH�RI�
DQ�DVVHW�UHVXOW�LQ�FKDQJHV�WR�WKH�SHUPLVVLEOH�RU�SUDFWLFDO�KLJKHVW�DQG�EHVW�XVH�RI�WKH�DVVHW���
)XUWKHU�GHWDLOV�UHJDUGLQJ�WKH�IDLU�YDOXH�KLHUDUFK\�DUH�GLVFORVHG�DW�1RWH����3URSHUW\��LQIUDVWUXFWXUH��
SODQW�DQG�HTXLSPHQW�

,Q�DGGLWLRQ��&RXQFLO�XQGHUWDNHV�D�IRUPDO�UHYDOXDWLRQ�RI�ODQG�DQG�EXLOGLQJV�HYHU\����WZR��\HDUV��DQG�
LQIUDVWUXFWXUH�DVVHWV�HYHU\����WKUHH��\HDUV��7KH�YDOXDWLRQ�LV�SHUIRUPHG�E\�H[SHULHQFHG�FRXQFLO�
RIILFHUV�
:KHUH�WKH�DVVHWV�DUH�UHYDOXHG��WKH�UHYDOXDWLRQ�LQFUHPHQWV�DUH�FUHGLWHG�GLUHFWO\�WR�WKH�DVVHW�
UHYDOXDWLRQ�UHVHUYH�H[FHSW�WR�WKH�H[WHQW�WKDW�DQ�LQFUHPHQW�UHYHUVHV�D�SULRU�\HDU�GHFUHPHQW�IRU�WKDW�
FODVV�RI�DVVHW�WKDW�KDG�EHHQ�UHFRJQLVHG�DV�DQ�H[SHQVH�LQ�ZKLFK�FDVH�WKH�LQFUHPHQW�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�
DV�UHYHQXH�XS�WR�WKH�DPRXQW�RI�WKH�H[SHQVH���5HYDOXDWLRQ�GHFUHPHQWV�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�DV�DQ�
H[SHQVH�H[FHSW�ZKHUH�SULRU�LQFUHPHQWV�DUH�LQFOXGHG�LQ�WKH�DVVHW�UHYDOXDWLRQ�UHVHUYH�IRU�WKDW�FODVV�
RI�DVVHW�LQ�ZKLFK�FDVH�WKH�GHFUHPHQW�LV�WDNHQ�WR�WKH�UHVHUYH�WR�WKH�H[WHQW�RI�WKH�UHPDLQLQJ�
LQFUHPHQWV���:LWKLQ�WKH�VDPH�FODVV�RI�DVVHWV��UHYDOXDWLRQ�LQFUHPHQWV�DQG�GHFUHPHQWV�ZLWKLQ�WKH�
\HDU�DUH�RIIVHW�

/DQG�XQGHU�URDGV
/DQG XQGHU URDGV DFTXLUHG DIWHU �� -XQH ���� LV EURXJKW WR DFFRXQW XVLQJ WKH GHHPHG FRVW YDOXH
EDVLV� &RXQFLO GRHV QRW UHFRJQLVH ODQG XQGHU URDGV WKDW LW FRQWUROOHG SULRU WR WKDW SHULRG LQ LWV
ILQDQFLDO�UHSRUW��
,Q -XO\ ����� WKH 'HSDUWPHQW RI 7UDQVSRUW� 3ODQQLQJ DQG /RFDO ,QIUDVWUXFWXUH �IRUPHU 'HSDUWPHQW
RI 3ODQQLQJ DQG &RPPXQLW\ 'HYHORSPHQW �'3&'�� LVVXHG JXLGDQFH FLUFXODU /*9 FLUFXODU �����
UHJDUGLQJ WKH UHFRJQLWLRQ DQG PHDVXUHPHQW RI ODQG XQGHU URDGV� ,W UHFRPPHQGHG WKDW &RXQFLO
VKRXOG UHFRJQLVH DOO ODQG XQGHU URDGV LW FRQWUROV DW IDLU YDOXH� ,Q 'HFHPEHU ���� DQ H[WHQGHG
WUDQVLWLRQDO SHULRG ZDV SURSRVHG DQG WKH 'HSDUWPHQW H[SHFWV FRXQFLOV WR EH FRPSOLDQW E\ WKH
��������ILQDQFLDO�\HDU�

�O�� 'HSUHFLDWLRQ�DQG�DPRUWLVDWLRQ�RI�SURSHUW\��LQIUDVWUXFWXUH��SODQW�DQG�HTXLSPHQW�DQG�LQWDQJLEOHV
%XLOGLQJV��ODQG�LPSURYHPHQWV��SODQW�DQG�HTXLSPHQW��LQIUDVWUXFWXUH���DQG�RWKHU�DVVHWV�KDYLQJ�
OLPLWHG�XVHIXO�OLYHV�DUH�V\VWHPDWLFDOO\�GHSUHFLDWHG�RYHU�WKHLU�XVHIXO�OLYHV�WR�WKH�&RXQFLO�LQ�D�
PDQQHU�ZKLFK�UHIOHFWV�FRQVXPSWLRQ�RI�WKH�VHUYLFH�SRWHQWLDO�HPERGLHG�LQ�WKRVH�DVVHWV���(VWLPDWHV�
RI�UHPDLQLQJ�XVHIXO�OLYHV�DQG�UHVLGXDO�YDOXHV�DUH�PDGH�RQ�D�UHJXODU�EDVLV�ZLWK�PDMRU�DVVHW�
FODVVHV�UHDVVHVVHG�DQQXDOO\���'HSUHFLDWLRQ�UDWHV�DQG�PHWKRGV�DUH�UHYLHZHG�DQQXDOO\�
:KHUH��DVVHWV�KDYH�VHSDUDWH�LGHQWLILDEOH�FRPSRQHQWV�WKDW�DUH�VXEMHFW�WR�UHJXODU�UHSODFHPHQW��
WKHVH�FRPSRQHQWV�DUH�DVVLJQHG�GLVWLQFW�XVHIXO�OLYHV�DQG�UHVLGXDO�YDOXHV�DQG�D�VHSDUDWH�
GHSUHFLDWLRQ�UDWH�LV�GHWHUPLQHG�IRU�HDFK�FRPSRQHQW�

5RDG�HDUWKZRUNV�DUH�QRW�GHSUHFLDWHG�RQ�WKH�EDVLV�WKDW�WKH\�DUH�DVVHVVHG�DV�QRW�KDYLQJ�D�OLPLWHG�
XVHIXO�OLIH�

6WUDLJKW�OLQH�GHSUHFLDWLRQ�LV�FKDUJHG�EDVHG�RQ�WKH�UHVLGXDO�XVHIXO�OLIH�DV�GHWHUPLQHG�HDFK�\HDU�

'HSUHFLDWLRQ�SHULRGV�XVHG�DUH�OLVWHG�EHORZ�DQG�DUH�FRQVLVWHQW�ZLWK�WKH�SULRU�\HDU�XQOHVV�RWKHUZLVH�
VWDWHG�

3DJH���



0RUQLQJWRQ�3HQLQVXOD�6KLUH
����������)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUW

1RWHV�WR�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUW
)RU�WKH�<HDU�(QGHG����-XQH�����

1RWH�� 6LJQLILFDQW�DFFRXQWLQJ�SROLFLHV��FRQW��

�O�� 'HSUHFLDWLRQ�DQG�DPRUWLVDWLRQ�RI�SURSHUW\��LQIUDVWUXFWXUH�SODQW�DQG�HTXLSPHQW�DQG�LQWDQJLEOHV��FRQW
G�

$VVHW�UHFRJQLWLRQ�WKUHVKROGV�DQG�GHSUHFLDWLRQ�SHULRGV 'HSUHFLDWLRQ�
3HULRG

7KUHVKROG�
/LPLW

�
���
3URSHUW\
���/DQG � ���������������
���/DQG�XQGHU�URDGV � ���������������
%XLOGLQJV
���%XLOGLQJV �������\HDUV ���������������
3ODQW�DQG�(TXLSPHQW

3ODQW�DQG�HTXLSPHQW �����\HDUV ���������������
)XUQLWXUH�DQG�ILWWLQJV �����\HDUV ���������������
,QIRUPDWLRQ�WHFKQRORJ\ �����\HDUV ���������������
$UWZRUNV � ���������������
/LEUDU\�ERRNV ����\HDUV ���������������

,QIUDVWUXFWXUH
���5RDG�VXEVWUXFWXUH �������\HDUV ��������������
���5RDG�IRUPDWLRQ�DQG�HDUWKZRUNV � ��������������
���5RDG�NHUE��FKDQQHO�DQG�PLQRU�FXOYHUWV �������\HDUV ��������������
���'UDLQDJH �������\HDUV ��������������
���%ULGJHV�GHFN ������\HDUV ��������������
���%ULGJHV�VXEVWUXFWXUH ������\HDUV ��������������
���%ULGJHV�RWKHU�PDMRU�FXOYHUWV ����\HDUV ��������������
���)RRWSDWKV�DQG�F\FOHZD\V ������\HDUV ��������������
���5HFUHDWLRQDO��OHLVXUH�DQG�FRPPXQLW\�IDFLOLWLHV �����\HDUV ��������������
���3DUNV��RSHQ�VSDFH�DQG�VWUHHWVFDSHV ������\HDUV ��������������

0DULQH�VWUXFWXUHV ������\HDUV ��������������
2WKHU�LQIUDVWUXFWXUH ������\HDUV ��������������

,QWDQJLEOH�DVVHWV
���,QWDQJLEOH�DVVHWV �����\HDUV ���������������

�P�� 5HSDLUV�DQG�PDLQWHQDQFH
5RXWLQH�PDLQWHQDQFH��UHSDLU�FRVWV��DQG�PLQRU�UHQHZDO�FRVWV�DUH�H[SHQVHG�DV�LQFXUUHG���:KHUH�
WKH�UHSDLU�UHODWHV�WR�WKH�UHSODFHPHQW�RI�D�FRPSRQHQW�RI�DQ�DVVHW�DQG�WKH�FRVW�H[FHHGV�WKH�
FDSLWDOLVDWLRQ�WKUHVKROG�WKH�FRVW�LV�FDSLWDOLVHG�DQG�GHSUHFLDWHG���7KH�FDUU\LQJ�YDOXH�RI�WKH�UHSODFHG�
DVVHW�LV�H[SHQVHG��

�Q�� ,QYHVWPHQW�SURSHUW\
,QYHVWPHQW�SURSHUW\�LV�KHOG�IRU�VWUDWHJLF�SXUSRVHV�DQG�DV�LW�PD\�JHQHUDWH�UHQWDO�LQFRPH��LV�
FODVVLILHG�DV�LQYHVWPHQW�SURSHUW\�DV�SHU�$$6%������,QYHVWPHQW�SURSHUW\�LV�PHDVXUHG�LQLWLDOO\�DW�
FRVW��LQFOXGLQJ�WUDQVDFWLRQ�FRVWV��&RVWV�LQFXUUHG�VXEVHTXHQW�WR�LQLWLDO�DFTXLVLWLRQ�DUH�FDSLWDOLVHG�
ZKHQ�LW�LV�SUREDEOH�WKDW�IXWXUH�HFRQRPLF�EHQHILW�LQ�H[FHVV�RI�WKH�RULJLQDOO\�DVVHVVHG�SHUIRUPDQFH�
RI�WKH�DVVHW�ZLOO�IORZ�WR�WKH�&RXQFLO��6XEVHTXHQW�WR�LQLWLDO�UHFRJQLWLRQ�DW�FRVW��LQYHVWPHQW�SURSHUW\�
LV�FDUULHG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH��GHWHUPLQHG�DQQXDOO\�E\�&RXQFLO
V�TXDOLILHG�YDOXHU��&KDQJHV�WR�IDLU�YDOXH�DUH�
UHFRUGHG�LQ�WKH�FRPSUHKHQVLYH��LQFRPH�VWDWHPHQW�LQ�WKH�SHULRG�WKDW�WKH\�DULVH��5HQWDO�LQFRPH�
IURP�WKH�OHDVLQJ�RI�LQYHVWPHQW�SURSHUWLHV�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�WKH�FRPSUHKHQVLYH��LQFRPH�VWDWHPHQW�
RQ�D�VWUDLJKW�OLQH�EDVLV�RYHU�WKH�OHDVH�WHUP�

�R�� ,PSDLUPHQW�RI�DVVHWV
$W�HDFK�UHSRUWLQJ�GDWH��WKH�&RXQFLO�UHYLHZV�WKH�FDUU\LQJ�YDOXH�RI�LWV�DVVHWV�WR�GHWHUPLQH�ZKHWKHU�
WKHUH�LV�DQ\�LQGLFDWLRQ�WKDW�WKHVH�DVVHWV�KDYH�EHHQ�LPSDLUHG��,I�VXFK�DQ�LQGLFDWLRQ�H[LVWV��WKH�
UHFRYHUDEOH�DPRXQW�RI�WKH�DVVHW��EHLQJ�WKH�KLJKHU�RI�WKH�DVVHW
V�IDLU�YDOXH�OHVV�FRVWV�RI�GLVSRVDO�
DQG�YDOXH�LQ�XVH��LV�FRPSDUHG�WR�WKH�DVVHWV�FDUU\LQJ�YDOXH��$Q\�H[FHVV�RI�WKH�DVVHWV�FDUU\LQJ�
YDOXH�RYHU�LWV�UHFRYHUDEOH�DPRXQW�LV�H[SHQVHG�WR�WKH�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH�VWDWHPHQW��XQOHVV�
WKH�DVVHW�LV�FDUULHG�DW�WKH�UHYDOXHG�DPRXQW�LQ�ZKLFK�FDVH��WKH�LPSDLUPHQW�ORVV�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�
GLUHFWO\�DJDLQVW�WKH�UHYDOXDWLRQ�VXUSOXV�LQ�UHVSHFW�RI�WKH�VDPH�FODVV�RI�DVVHW�WR�WKH�H[WHQW�WKDW�WKH�
LPSDLUPHQW�ORVV�GRHV�QRW�H[FHHG�WKH�DPRXQW�LQ�WKH�UHYDOXDWLRQ�VXUSOXV�IRU�WKDW�VDPH�FODVV�RI�
DVVHW�
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�S�� 7UXVW�IXQGV�DQG�GHSRVLWV
$PRXQWV�UHFHLYHG�DV�GHSRVLWV�DQG�UHWHQWLRQ�DPRXQWV�FRQWUROOHG�E\�&RXQFLO�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�DV�
WUXVW�IXQGV�XQWLO�WKH\�DUH�UHWXUQHG��WUDQVIHUUHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�SXUSRVH�RI�WKH�UHFHLSW��RU�
IRUIHLWHG��UHIHU�WR�1RWH�����

�T�� %RUURZLQJV
%RUURZLQJV�DUH�LQLWLDOO\�PHDVXUHG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH��EHLQJ�WKH�FRVW�RI�WKH�LQWHUHVW�EHDULQJ�OLDELOLWLHV��QHW�
RI�WUDQVDFWLRQ�FRVWV��7KH�PHDVXUHPHQW�EDVLV�VXEVHTXHQW�WR�LQLWLDO�UHFRJQLWLRQ�GHSHQGV�RQ�
ZKHWKHU�WKH�&RXQFLO�KDV�FDWHJRULVHG�LWV�LQWHUHVW�EHDULQJ�OLDELOLWLHV�DV�HLWKHU�ILQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�
GHVLJQDWHG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�WKH�SURILW�DQG�ORVV��RU�ILQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�DW�DPRUWLVHG�FRVW��$Q\�
GLIIHUHQFH�EHWZHHQ�WKH�LQLWLDO�UHFRJQLVHG�DPRXQW�DQG�WKH�UHGHPSWLRQ�YDOXH�LV�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�QHW�
UHVXOW�RYHU�WKH�SHULRG�RI�WKH�ERUURZLQJ�XVLQJ�WKH�HIIHFWLYH�LQWHUHVW�PHWKRG�
7KH�FODVVLILFDWLRQ�GHSHQGV�RQ�WKH�QDWXUH�DQG�SXUSRVH�RI�WKH�LQWHUHVW�EHDULQJ�OLDELOLWLHV��7KH�
&RXQFLO�GHWHUPLQHV�WKH�FODVVLILFDWLRQ�RI�LWV�LQWHUHVW�EHDULQJ�OLDELOLWLHV�DW�LQLWLDO�UHFRJQLWLRQ�

%RUURZLQJ�FRVWV
%RUURZLQJ�FRVWV�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�DV�DQ�H[SHQVH�LQ�WKH�SHULRG�LQ�ZKLFK�WKH\�DUH�LQFXUUHG��H[FHSW�
ZKHUH�WKH\�DUH�FDSLWDOLVHG�DV�SDUW�RI�D�TXDOLI\LQJ�DVVHW�FRQVWUXFWHG�E\�&RXQFLO���([FHSW�ZKHUH�
VSHFLILF�ERUURZLQJV�DUH�REWDLQHG�IRU�WKH�SXUSRVH�RI�VSHFLILF�DVVHW�DFTXLVLWLRQ��WKH�ZHLJKWHG�
DYHUDJH�LQWHUHVW�UDWH�DSSOLFDEOH�WR�ERUURZLQJV�DW�EDODQFH�GDWH��H[FOXGLQJ�ERUURZLQJV�DVVRFLDWHG�
ZLWK�VXSHUDQQXDWLRQ��LV�XVHG�WR�GHWHUPLQH�WKH�ERUURZLQJ�FRVWV�WR�EH�FDSLWDOLVHG�
%RUURZLQJ�FRVWV�LQFOXGH�LQWHUHVW�RQ�EDQN�RYHUGUDIWV��LQWHUHVW�RQ�ERUURZLQJV��DQG�ILQDQFH�OHDVH�
FKDUJHV�

�U�� (PSOR\HH�FRVWV�DQG�EHQHILWV
7KH�FDOFXODWLRQ�RI�HPSOR\HH�FRVWV�DQG�EHQHILWV�LQFOXGHV�DOO�UHOHYDQW�RQ�FRVWV�DQG�DUH�FDOFXODWHG�
DV�IROORZV�DW�UHSRUWLQJ�GDWH�

:DJHV�DQG�VDODULHV�DQG�DQQXDO�OHDYH

/LDELOLWLHV�IRU�ZDJHV�DQG�VDODULHV��LQFOXGLQJ�QRQ�PRQHWDU\�EHQHILWV��DQQXDO�OHDYH�DQG�DFFXPXODWHG�
VLFN�OHDYH�H[SHFWHG�WR�EH�ZKROO\�VHWWOHG�ZLWKLQ����PRQWKV�RI�WKH�UHSRUWLQJ�GDWH�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�
WKH�SURYLVLRQ�IRU�HPSOR\HH�EHQHILWV�LQ�UHVSHFW�RI�HPSOR\HH�VHUYLFHV�XS�WR�WKH�UHSRUWLQJ�GDWH��
FODVVLILHG�DV�FXUUHQW�OLDELOLWLHV�DQG�PHDVXUHG�DW�WKHLU�QRPLQDO�YDOXHV�
/LDELOLWLHV�WKDW�DUH�QRW�H[SHFWHG�WR�EH�ZKROO\�VHWWOHG�ZLWKLQ����PRQWKV�RI�WKH�UHSRUWLQJ�GDWH�DUH�
UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�WKH�SURYLVLRQ�IRU�HPSOR\HH�EHQHILWV�DV�FXUUHQW�OLDELOLWLHV��PHDVXUHG�DW�WKH�SUHVHQW�
YDOXH�RI�WKH�DPRXQWV�H[SHFWHG�WR�EH�SDLG�ZKHQ�WKH�OLDELOLWLHV�DUH�VHWWOHG�XVLQJ�WKH�UHPXQHUDWLRQ�
UDWH�H[SHFWHG�WR�DSSO\�DW�WKH�WLPH�RI�VHWWOHPHQW�

/RQJ�VHUYLFH�OHDYH

/LDELOLW\�IRU�ORQJ�VHUYLFH�OHDYH��/6/��LV�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�WKH�SURYLVLRQ�IRU�HPSOR\HH�EHQHILWV�
&XUUHQW�OLDELOLW\���XQFRQGLWLRQDO�/6/�LV�GLVFORVHG�DV�D�FXUUHQW�OLDELOLW\�HYHQ�ZKHQ�WKH�FRXQFLO�GRHV�
QRW�H[SHFW�WR�VHWWOH�WKH�OLDELOLW\�ZLWKLQ����PRQWKV�EHFDXVH�LW�ZLOO�QRW�KDYH�WKH�XQFRQGLWLRQDO�ULJKW�WR�
GHIHU�VHWWOHPHQW�RI�WKH�HQWLWOHPHQW�VKRXOG�DQ�HPSOR\HH�WDNH�OHDYH�ZLWKLQ����PRQWKV��7KH�FXUUHQW�
OLDELOLW\�FRPSULVHV�/6/�HQWLWOHPHQW�IRU�HPSOR\HHV�ZLWK�VHYHQ�RU�PRUH�\HDUV�RI�FRQWLQXRXV�VHUYLFH�

7KH�FRPSRQHQWV�RI�WKLV�FXUUHQW�OLDELOLW\�DUH�PHDVXUHG�DW��
�����SUHVHQW�YDOXH���FRPSRQHQW�WKDW�LV�QRW�H[SHFWHG�WR�EH�ZKROO\�VHWWOHG�ZLWKLQ����PRQWKV��
�����QRPLQDO�YDOXH���FRPSRQHQW�WKDW�LV�H[SHFWHG�WR�EH�ZKROO\�VHWWOHG�ZLWKLQ����PRQWKV��

7HUPLQDWLRQ�%HQHILWV
7HUPLQDWLRQ�EHQHILWV�DUH�SD\DEOH�ZKHQ�HPSOR\PHQW�LV�WHUPLQDWHG�RU�ZKHQ�DQ�HPSOR\HH�DFFHSWV�
YROXQWDU\�UHGXQGDQF\�LQ�H[FKDQJH�IRU�WKHVH�EHQHILWV��7KH�0RUQLQJWRQ�3HQLQVXOD�6KLUH�UHFRJQLVHV�
WHUPLQDWLRQ�EHQHILWV�ZKHQ�LW�LV�GHPRQVWUDEO\�FRPPLWWHG�WR�HLWKHU�WHUPLQDWLQJ�WKH�HPSOR\PHQW�RI�
FXUUHQW�HPSOR\HHV�DFFRUGLQJ�WR�D�GHWDLOHG�IRUPDO�SODQ�ZLWKRXW�SRVVLELOLW\�RI�ZLWKGUDZDO�RU�SURYLGLQJ�
EHQHILWV�DV�D�UHVXOW�RI�DQ�RIIHU�PDGH�WR�HQFRXUDJH�YROXQWDU\�UHGXQGDQF\��%HQHILWV�IDOOLQJ�GXH�PRUH�
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VHUYLFH�
7KLV�QRQ�FXUUHQW�/6/�OLDELOLW\�LV�PHDVXUHG�DW�SUHVHQW�YDOXH��

�V�� /DQGILOO�UHKDELOLWDWLRQ�SURYLVLRQ�
&RXQFLO�LV�REOLJDWHG�WR�UHVWRUH�5\H�ODQGILOO�VLWH�WR�D�SDUWLFXODU�UHKDELOLWDWHG�VWDWH����7KH�IRUHFDVW�OLIH�
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OHQGHU�KDV�H[HUFLVHG�WKHLU�ULJKW�WR�FDOO�RQ�WKH�JXDUDQWHH�RU�&RXQFLO�KDV�RWKHU�UHDVRQV�WR�EHOLHYH�
WKDW�LW�LV�SUREDEOH�WKDW�WKH�ULJKW�ZLOO�EH�H[HUFLVHG���'HWDLOV�RI�JXDUDQWHHV�WKDW�&RXQFLO�KDV�SURYLGHG��
WKDW�DUH�QRW�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�WKH�EDODQFH�VKHHW��DUH�GLVFORVHG�DW�1RWH����FRQWLQJHQW�OLDELOLWLHV�DQG�
FRQWLQJHQW�DVVHWV��

�Z��
&RQWLQJHQW�DVVHWV�DQG�FRQWLQJHQW�OLDELOLWLHV�DUH�QRW�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�WKH�%DODQFH�6KHHW��EXW�DUH�
GLVFORVHG�E\�ZD\�RI�D�QRWH�DQG��LI�TXDQWLILDEOH��DUH�PHDVXUHG�DW�QRPLQDO�YDOXH��&RQWLQJHQW�DVVHWV�
DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�DUH�SUHVHQWHG�LQFOXVLYH�RI�*67�UHFHLYDEOH�RU�SD\DEOH�UHVSHFWLYHO\�
&RPPLWPHQWV�DUH�QRW�UHFRJQLVHG�LQ�WKH�%DODQFH�6KHHW��&RPPLWPHQWV�DUH�GLVFORVHG�DW�WKHLU�
QRPLQDO�YDOXH�E\�ZD\�RI�QRWH�DQG�SUHVHQWHG�LQFOXVLYH�RI�WKH�*67�SD\DEOH�
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SHULRG���&RXQFLO�KDV�DVVHVVHG�WKHVH�SHQGLQJ�VWDQGDUGV�DQG�KDV�LGHQWLILHG�WKH�IROORZLQJ�SRWHQWLDO�
LPSDFWV�ZLOO�IORZ�IURP�WKH�DSSOLFDWLRQ�RI�WKHVH�VWDQGDUGV�LQ�IXWXUH�UHSRUWLQJ�SHULRGV�
5HYHQXH�IURP�FRQWUDFWV�ZLWK�FXVWRPHUV��$$6%������DSSOLHV���������
7KH�VWDQGDUG�VKLIWV�WKH�IRFXV�IURP�WKH�WUDQVDFWLRQ�OHYHO�WR�D�FRQWUDFW�EDVHG�DSSURDFK��
5HFRJQLWLRQ�LV�GHWHUPLQHG�EDVHG�RQ�ZKDW�WKH�FXVWRPHU�H[SHFWV�WR�EH�HQWLWOHG�WR��ULJKWV�DQG�
REOLJDWLRQV���ZKLOH�PHDVXUHPHQW�HQFRPSDVVHV�HVWLPDWLRQ�E\�WKH�HQWLW\�RI�WKH�DPRXQW�H[SHFWHG�WR�
EH�HQWLWOHG�IRU�SHUIRUPLQJ�XQGHU�WKH�FRQWUDFW���7KH�IXOO�LPSDFW�RI�WKLV�VWDQGDUG�LV�QRW�NQRZQ�
KRZHYHU�LW�LV�PRVW�OLNHO\�WR�LPSDFW�ZKHUH�FRQWUDFWV�H[WHQG�RYHU�WLPH��ZKHUH�WKHUH�DUH�ULJKWV�DQG�
REOLJDWLRQV�WKDW�PD\�YDU\�WKH�WLPLQJ�RU�DPRXQW�RI�WKH�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ��RU�ZKHUH�WKHUH�DUH�PXOWLSOH�
SHUIRUPDQFH�HOHPHQWV���7KLV�KDV�WKH�SRWHQWLDO�WR�LPSDFW�RQ�WKH�UHFRJQLWLRQ�RI�FHUWDLQ�JUDQW�
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OHDVH�SD\PHQWV�DQG�VKRZLQJ�D�µULJKW�RI�XVH¶�DVVHW��ZKLOH�IXWXUH�OHDVH�SD\PHQWV�ZLOO�EH�UHFRJQLVHG�
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µULJKW�RI�XVH¶�DVVHW��DQG�DQ�LQWHUHVW�FKDUJH�RQ�WKH�OHDVH�OLDELOLW\��7KH�LQWHUHVW�FKDUJH�ZLOO�EH�
FDOFXODWHG�XVLQJ�WKH�HIIHFWLYH�LQWHUHVW�PHWKRG��ZKLFK�ZLOO�UHVXOW�LQ�D�JUDGXDO�UHGXFWLRQ�RI�LQWHUHVW�
H[SHQVH�RYHU�WKH�OHDVH�WHUP�
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UHOHYDQW�DW�WKH�WLPH�RI�DGRSWLRQ�RI�WKH�%XGJHW��&RXQFLO�VHWV�JXLGHOLQHV�DQG�SDUDPHWHUV�IRU�LQFRPH�DQG�H[SHQVH�WDUJHWV�LQ�WKLV�EXGJHW�LQ�
RUGHU�WR�PHHW�&RXQFLO¶V�SODQQLQJ�DQG�ILQDQFLDO�SHUIRUPDQFH�WDUJHWV�IRU�ERWK�WKH�VKRUW�DQG�ORQJ�WHUP���7KH�EXGJHW�GLG�QRW�UHIOHFW�DQ\�
FKDQJHV�WR�HTXLW\�UHVXOWLQJ�IURP�DVVHW�UHYDOXDWLRQV��DV�WKHLU�LPSDFWV�ZHUH�QRW�FRQVLGHUHG�SUHGLFWDEOH�
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$VVLVWDQFH�*UDQW�IRU�WKH���������ILQDQFLDO�\HDU��ZLWK�SD\PHQW�UHFHLYHG�LQ�
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V�&DSLWDO�:RUNV�3URJUDP�

3DJH���

6WDWXWRU\�IHHV�DQG�ILQHV�DUH�KLJKHU�WKDQ�EXGJHW�PDLQO\�GXH�WR�LQFUHDVHG�
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5RDGV ������ ������ ����� ��� �
%ULGJHV �� ��� ��� ����� �
)RRWSDWKV�DQG�F\FOHZD\V ����� ����� ����� ��� ��
'UDLQDJH ����� ����� �� ��
5HFUHDWLRQDO��OHLVXUH�DQG�FRPPXQLW\�IDFLOLWLHV ����� ����� ����� ��� ��
3DUNV��RSHQ�VSDFH�DQG�VWUHHWVFDSHV ����� ����� ����� ���� ��
0DULQH�6WUXFWXUHV ��� ��� ����� ���� ��
2WKHU�LQIUDVWUXFWXUH �� ��� ��� ����� ��
7RWDO�,QIUDVWUXFWXUH ������ ������ ������ ���

7RWDO�&DSLWDO�:RUNV�([SHQGLWXUH ������ ������ ������ ���

5HSUHVHQWHG�E\�
1HZ�DVVHW�H[SHQGLWXUH ����� ����� ����� ���
$VVHW�UHQHZDO�H[SHQGLWXUH ������ ������ ����� ���
$VVHW�H[SDQVLRQ�H[SHQGLWXUH � ����� ����� ��
$VVHW�XSJUDGH�H[SHQGLWXUH ����� ������ ����� ���
7RWDO�&DSLWDO�:RUNV�([SHQGLWXUH ������ ������ ������ ���

1RWHV�WR�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUW
)RU�WKH�<HDU�(QGHG����-XQH�����

3DJH���
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����������)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUW

1RWHV�WR�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUW
)RU�WKH�<HDU�(QGHG����-XQH�����

1RWH����%XGJHW�FRPSDULVRQ��FRQW
G�
�E��&DSLWDO�:RUNV��FRQW
G�

�L��([SODQDWLRQ�RI�PDWHULDO�YDULDWLRQV

,WHP 9DULDQFH ([SODQDWLRQ
)DY���8QIDY

� /DQG 8QIDY

� %XLOGLQJV 8QIDY

� $UWZRUNV )DY

�
3ODQW��PDFKLQHU\�DQG�
HTXLSPHQW

8QIDY

�
)L[WXUHV��ILWWLQJV�DQG�
IXUQLWXUH

)DY

�
&RPSXWHUV�DQG�
WHOHFRPPXQLFDWLRQV

8QIDY

� /LEUDU\�ERRNV )DY

� 5RDGV 8QIDY

� %ULGJHV 8QIDY

�� )RRWSDWKV�DQG�F\FOHZD\V 8QIDY

��
5HFUHDWLRQDO��OHLVXUH�DQG�
FRPPXQLW\�IDFLOLWLHV

8QIDY

��
3DUNV��RSHQ�VSDFH�DQG�
VWUHHWVFDSHV

8QIDY

�� 0DULQH�VWUXFWXUHV )DY

�� 2WKHU�LQIUDVWUXFWXUH 8QIDY

$GGLWLRQDO�H[SHQGLWXUH��DV�SDUW�RI�FDUU\�IRUZDUG�SURMHFWV�IURP����������
LQFOXGLQJ�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�RI�&ULE�3RLQW�)RRWEDOO���1HWEDOO�&OXE��

$GGLWLRQDO�H[SHQGLWXUH��DV�SDUW�RI�FDUU\�IRUZDUG�SURMHFWV�IURP����������RQ�
VWUHHWVFDSH�ZRUNV�LQFOXGLQJ�5RVHEXG�-HWW\�ODQGVFDSH�PDVWHU�SODQ�DQG�-HWW\�
5RDG�DQG�+DVWLQJV�DFWLYLW\�VWUXFWXUH�SODQ�

$FWXDO�H[SHQGLWXUH�EHORZ�EXGJHWHG�DPRXQW�DV�5\H�ERDW�UDPS�UHQHZDO�DQG�
XSJUDGH�ZDV�QRW�FRPSOHWHG�LQ����������ZKLFK�ZLOO�QRZ�EH�FRPSOHWHG�LQ�WKH�
��������ILQDQFLDO�\HDU�

&UHDWLRQ�RI�PLQRU�DVVHWV�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU��VXFK�DV��VLJQDJH��IHQFLQJ�DQG�
IXUQLWXUH�

3DJH���

5HI

/DQG�DFTXLVLWLRQ�H[SHQVHV�DWWULEXWHG�WR���������FDUU\�IRUZDUG�SURMHFWV�DQG�
PLQRU�ODQG�SXUFKDVH��9LFWRULD�$YHQXH��%LWWHUQ��

$GGLWLRQDO�SURMHFWV�FDUULHG�IRUZDUG�IURP���������KDYH�EHHQ�FRPSOHWHG�LQ�
��������LQFOXGLQJ�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�RI�WKH�&RPPXQLW\�$QLPDO�6KHOWHU�

:KLOH�EXGJHW�LV�SXW�IRUZDUG�DW�WKH�VWDUW�RI�WKH�\HDU�DV�DQ�HVWLPDWH��
SXUFKDVHV�DUH�PDGH�LQ�OLQH�ZLWK�WKH�H[LELWLRQ�SURJUDP�

$GGLWLRQDO�H[SHQGLWXUH�DWWULEXWHG�WR�FDUU\�IRUZDUG�LWHPV�IURP����������
LQFOXGLQJ�SXUFKDVH�RI�D�EXV�IRU�$JHG�	�'LVDELOLW\�8QLW�

:KLOH�EXGJHW�LV�SXW�IRUZDUG�DW�WKH�VWDUW�RI�WKH�\HDU�DV�DQ�HVWLPDWH��DOO�
UHTXLUHG�H[SHQGLWXUH�ZDV�PDGH�

$GGLWLRQDO�KDUGZDUH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�IRU�QHZ�	�H[LVWLQJ�HPSOR\HHV�

$QQXDO�VXEVFULSWLRQV��H�ERRNV��ZHUH�UH�FODVVLILHG�GXULQJ���������IURP�
FDSLWDO�H[SHQGLWXUH�WR�DQ�RSHUDWLQJ�H[SHQVH��7KH�OHYHO�RI�VSHQG�RQ�OLEUDU\�
ERRNV�KDV�UHPDLQHG�FRQVLVWHQW�KRZHYHU�WKH�FRVW�RI�JHWWLQJ�ERRNV�RQ�WKH�
VKHOYHV�KDV�UHGXFHG�GXH�WR�WKH�HIILFLHQFLHV�RI�WKH�5DGLR�IUHTXHQF\�
LGHQWLILFDWLRQ��5),'��V\VWHP�

$GGLWLRQDO�H[SHQGLWXUH��DV�SDUW�RI�FDUU\�IRUZDUG�SURMHFWV�IURP����������RQ�
WKH�%ODFN�6SRW�5RDG�6DIHW\�3URJUDP�DQG�5RDGV�WR�5HFRYHU\�3URJUDP�

$GGLWLRQDO�H[SHQGLWXUH��DV�SDUW�RI�FDUU\�IRUZDUG�SURMHFWV�IURP����������RQ�
WKH�5RDGV�WR�5HFRYHU\�3URJUDP�LQFOXGLQJ�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�RI�D�EULGJH�RQ�
6KDQGV�5RDG��0DLQ�5LGJH�

$GGLWLRQDO�H[SHQGLWXUH��DV�SDUW�RI�FDUU\�IRUZDUG�SURMHFWV�IURP����������RQ�
IRRWSDWK�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�DQG�XSJUDGHV�LQFOXGLQJ�DGGLWLRQDO�H[SHQGLWXUH�RQ�WKH�
ERDUGZDON�DQG�IRRWSDWK�UHQHZDO�SURJUDPV�DQG�&RSSLQ�6W��6RUUHQWR�IRRWSDWK�
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����������)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUW

1RWHV�WR�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUW
)RU�WKH�<HDU�(QGHG����-XQH����� ���� ����

�
��� �
���
1RWH�� 5DWHV�DQG�FKDUJHV

&RXQFLO XVHV &DSLWDO ,PSURYHG 9DOXH �&,9� DV WKH EDVLV RI YDOXDWLRQ RI DOO
SURSHUWLHV ZLWKLQ WKH PXQLFLSDO GLVWULFW� 7KH &,9 RI D SURSHUW\ LV WKH YDOXH RI WKH
ODQG�DQG�DOO�LWV�LPSURYHPHQWV��

7KH YDOXDWLRQ EDVH XVHG WR FDOFXODWH JHQHUDO UDWHV IRU ������� ZDV
��������ELOOLRQ������������������ELOOLRQ��

*HQHUDO�5DWHV���5HVLGHQWLDO ������� �������
*HQHUDO�5DWHV���&RPPHUFLDO ����� �����
*HQHUDO�5DWHV���,QGXVWULDO ����� �����
*HQHUDO�5DWHV���$JULFXOWXUDO�UDWH ����� �����
:DVWH�VHUYLFH�FKDUJH ������ ������
&XOWXUH�DQG�UHFUHDWLRQDO ��� ���
6SHFLDO�UDWHV�DQG�FKDUJHV �� �����
6HUYLFH�UDWHV�DQG�FKDUJHV��RSW�LQ�JUHHQ�ZDVWH� ����� �����
6XSSOHPHQWDU\�UDWHV�DQG�UDWH�DGMXVWPHQWV ����� �����
5HYHQXH�LQ�OLHX�RI�UDWHV ��� ���
7RWDO�UDWHV�DQG�FKDUJHV ������� �������

�$PHQGPHQW�WR�SULRU�\HDU�YDOXDWLRQ�EDVH�DV�VWDWHG�DW���������ELOOLRQ

�'XULQJ���������UHIXQGV�ZHUH�JLYHQ�WR�VSHFLDO�FKDUJH�VFKHPHV�WKDW�KDG�EHHQ�SUHYLRXVO\�RYHU�HVWLPDWHG�

7KH GDWH RI WKH ODWHVW JHQHUDO UHYDOXDWLRQ RI ODQG IRU UDWLQJ SXUSRVHV
ZLWKLQ WKH PXQLFLSDO GLVWULFW ZDV �VW -DQXDU\ ����� DQG WKH YDOXDWLRQ ZDV
DSSOLHG�LQ�WKH�UDWLQJ�\HDU�FRPPHQFLQJ��VW�-XO\������

1RWH�� 6WDWXWRU\�IHHV�DQG�ILQHV

,QIULQJHPHQWV�DQG�FRVWV ����� �����
&RXUW�UHFRYHULHV ��� ���
7RZQ�SODQQLQJ�IHHV ����� �����
/DQG�LQIRUPDWLRQ�FHUWLILFDWHV ��� ���
3HUPLWV ����� �����
2WKHU�IHHV�DQG�FKDUJHV ��� ���
7RWDO�VWDWXWRU\�IHHV�DQG�ILQHV ����� �����

1RWH�� 8VHU�IHHV

$JHG�DQG�KHDOWK�VHUYLFHV ����� �����
$QLPDO�VKHOWHU�IHHV �� ��
$UW�JDOOHU\�IHHV ��� ���
%XLOGLQJ�VHUYLFHV ��� ���
&KLOG��\RXWK�DQG�IDPLO\�FDUH�VHUYLFHV ��� ���
(PSOR\HH�UHLPEXUVHPHQW��PRWRU�YHKLFOH�VWDII�FRQWULEXWLRQ� ��� �����
(YHQWV�	�IHVWLYDOV�IHHV �� ��
)RUHVKRUH�FDPSLQJ�IHHV ����� �����
*URXQGV�DQG�SDYLOLRQV ��� ���
+DOOV�DQG�FRPPXQLW\�FHQWUHV ��� ���
/HJDO�UHLPEXUVHPHQW ��� ���
/HLVXUH�FHQWUH�DQG�UHFUHDWLRQ ����� �����
/LEUDU\�IHHV�DQG�ILQHV ��� ���
1XUVHU\�DQG�KRPHVWHDG ��� ���
3DUNLQJ�DQG�ERDW�UDPS ��� ���
3ODQQLQJ�IHHV ��� ���
5HJLVWUDWLRQ�DQG�RWKHU�SHUPLWV ����� �����
7RXULVP�IHHV �� ���
9DOXDWLRQV�DQG�SURSHUW\ ��� �����
:DVWH�PDQDJHPHQW�VHUYLFHV ����� �����
2WKHU�IHHV�DQG�FKDUJHV ��� ���
7RWDO�XVHU�IHHV ������ ������

3DJH���
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����������)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUW
���� ����
�
��� �
���

�1RWH�� *UDQWV
*UDQWV�ZHUH�UHFHLYHG�LQ�UHVSHFW�RI�WKH�IROORZLQJ��
6XPPDU\�RI�JUDQWV
&RPPRQZHDOWK�IXQGHG�JUDQWV ������ �����

6WDWH�IXQGHG�JUDQWV ������ ������
7RWDO�JUDQWV�UHFHLYHG ������ ������

2SHUDWLQJ�*UDQWV
5HFXUUHQW���&RPPRQZHDOWK�*RYHUQPHQW

9LFWRULD�*UDQWV�&RPPLVVLRQ ����� �����
)DPLO\�GD\�FDUH ��� ���
)DPLO\�DQG�FKLOGUHQ ��� ���
$JHG�&DUH ����� ��
,QGLJHQRXV�3URJUDPV �� ��

5HFXUUHQW���6WDWH�*RYHUQPHQW
$JHG�FDUH ����� �����
6FKRRO�FURVVLQJ�VXSHUYLVRUV ��� ���
/LEUDULHV ��� ���
0DWHUQDO�DQG�FKLOG�KHDOWK ����� �����
&RPPXQLW\�VDIHW\ ��� ���
)DPLO\�DQG�&KLOGUHQ ��� ���
,QGLJHQRXV�3URJUDPV �� ���
1DWXUDO�'LVDVWHU ��� ��
2WKHU ��� ���
7RWDO�UHFXUUHQW�RSHUDWLQJ�JUDQWV ������ ������

1RQ�UHFXUUHQW���&RPPRQZHDOWK
,QGLJHQRXV�3URJUDPV � ��

� ��
1RQ�UHFXUUHQW���6WDWH�*RYHUQPHQW

$JHG�&DUH ��� ��
7RXULVP �� ���
,QGLJHQRXV�3URJUDPV ��� ���
(QYLURQPHQWDO�SODQQLQJ ��� ���
&RPPXQLW\�VDIHW\ ��� ���
)RRWSDWKV�DQG�&\FOHZD\V �� ��
%RDWUDPSV�DQG�3LHUV �� ��
)DPLO\�DQG�FKLOGUHQ �� ���
2WKHU �� ��
7RWDO�QRQ�UHFXUUHQW�RSHUDWLQJ�JUDQWV ����� �����
7RWDO�RSHUDWLQJ�JUDQWV ������ ������

&DSLWDO�*UDQWV
5HFXUUHQW���&RPPRQZHDOWK�*RYHUQPHQW

5RDGV�WR�UHFRYHU\ ����� �����
5RDGV�DQG�LQWHUVHFWLRQV ��� �����
7RWDO�UHFXUUHQW�FDSLWDO�JUDQWV ����� �����

1RQ�UHFXUUHQW���&RPPRQZHDOWK�*RYHUQPHQW
&RPPXQLW\�6DIHW\ ��� ��
2WKHU �� ��

1RQ�UHFXUUHQW���6WDWH�*RYHUQPHQW
&RPPXQLW\�6DIHW\ �� ���
/LEUDULHV �� ��
5HFUHDWLRQ ����� ��
5RDGV�DQG�,QWHUVHFWLRQV � ��
%RDWUDPSV�DQG�3LHUV �� �����
6WUHHWVFDSH�:RUNV �� �����
%XLOGLQJV ��� ���
2WKHU� �� ��
7RWDO�QRQ�UHFXUUHQW�FDSLWDO�JUDQWV ����� �����
7RWDO�FDSLWDO�JUDQWV ����� ������

8QVSHQW JUDQWV UHFHLYHG RQ FRQGLWLRQ WKDW WKH\ EH VSHQW LQ D
VSHFLILF�PDQQHU
%DODQFH�DW�VWDUW�RI�\HDU ����� �����
5HFHLYHG�GXULQJ�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�\HDU�DQG�UHPDLQHG�XQVSHQW�DW�EDODQFH�GDWH

����� �����
5HFHLYHG�LQ�SULRU�\HDUV�DQG�VSHQW�GXULQJ�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�\HDU ������� �������
%DODQFH�DW�\HDU�HQG ����� �����

3DJH���
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����������)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUW
���� ����
�
��� �
���

1RWH�� &RQWULEXWLRQV
0RQHWDU\ ����� �����
1RQ�PRQHWDU\� ����� �����
7RWDO�FRQWULEXWLRQV ����� �����

&RQWULEXWLRQV RI QRQ PRQHWDU\ DVVHWV ZHUH UHFHLYHG LQ UHODWLRQ WR WKH
IROORZLQJ�DVVHW�FODVVHV�
/DQG ����� ��

%XLOGLQJV �� ��

5RDGV ��� �����

'UDLQDJH ����� �����

/DQG�XQGHU�URDGV �� ��

2WKHU�LQIUDVWUXFWXUH ��� ���

7RWDO�QRQ�PRQHWDU\�FRQWULEXWLRQV ����� �����

1RWH��
1HW JDLQ��ORVV� RQ GLVSRVDO RI SURSHUW\� LQIUDVWUXFWXUH� SODQW DQG
HTXLSPHQW

3URFHHGV�RI�VDOH ����� ���
:ULWWHQ�GRZQ�YDOXH��RI�DVVHWV�GLVSRVHG �������� ��������
7RWDO QHW JDLQ��ORVV� RQ GLVSRVDO RI SURSHUW\� LQIUDVWUXFWXUH� SODQW
DQG�HTXLSPHQW ������� ��������

1RWH�� 2WKHU�LQFRPH

,QWHUHVW ����� �����
,QYHVWPHQW�SURSHUW\�UHQWDO ����� �����
2WKHU�UHQW ��� ���
7RWDO�RWKHU�LQFRPH ����� �����

1RWH�����D� (PSOR\HH�FRVWV

:DJHV�DQG�VDODULHV ������ ������
:RUN&RYHU ��� �����
&DVXDO�VWDII ����� �����
6XSHUDQQXDWLRQ ����� �����
)ULQJH�EHQHILWV�WD[ ��� ���
5HGXQGDQFLHV ����� �����
$QQXDO�OHDYH�DQG�ORQJ�VHUYLFH�OHDYH ����� �����
7RWDO�HPSOR\HH�FRVWV ������ ������

1RWH�����E� 6XSHUDQQXDWLRQ
&RXQFLO�PDGH�FRQWULEXWLRQV�WR�WKH�IROORZLQJ�IXQGV�

'HILQHG�EHQHILW�IXQG
(PSOR\HU�FRQWULEXWLRQV�WR�/RFDO�$XWKRULWLHV�6XSHUDQQXDWLRQ�)XQG��9LVLRQ�
6XSHU� ��� ���

��� ���

(PSOR\HU�FRQWULEXWLRQV�SD\DEOH�DW�UHSRUWLQJ�GDWH� � �

$FFXPXODWLRQ�IXQGV
(PSOR\HU�FRQWULEXWLRQV�WR�/RFDO�$XWKRULWLHV�6XSHUDQQXDWLRQ�)XQG��9LVLRQ�
6XSHU� ����� �����
(PSOR\HU�FRQWULEXWLRQV����RWKHU�IXQGV ����� �����

����� �����

(PSOR\HU�FRQWULEXWLRQV�SD\DEOH�DW�UHSRUWLQJ�GDWH� ��� ��

&RXQFLO�DFFRXQW�IRU�LWV�REOLJDWLRQV�XQGHU�WKH�GHILQHG�EHQHILW�IXQG�DV�LI�LW�
ZDV�D�GHILQHG�FRQWULEXWLRQ�SODQ���7KH�UHDVRQ�IRU�WKLV�LV�WKDW�WKH�IXQG�
PDQDJHU��9LVLRQ�6XSHU��LV�XQDEOH�WR�SURYLGH�DFFXUDWH�LQIRUPDWLRQ�WR�HDFK�
HPSOR\HU�LQ�D�WLPHO\�PDQQHU���$GGLWLRQDO�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DERXW�&RXQFLO
V�
H[SRVXUH�LQ�UHODWLRQ�WR�WKH�GHILQHG�EHQHILW�IXQG�LV�GHWDLOHG�DW�1RWH����

3DJH���
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����������)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUW
���� ����

1RWH��� 0DWHULDOV�DQG�VHUYLFHV �
��� �
���

&RQWUDFW�SD\PHQWV ������ ������
5\H�ODQGILOO�UHKDELOLWLDWLRQ�SURYLVLRQ ����� ���
%XLOGLQJ�PDLQWHQDQFH ����� �����
*HQHUDO�PDLQWHQDQFH ������ ������
8WLOLWLHV ����� �����
3DUNLQJ�DQG�WUDYHO ����� �����
2SHUDWLQJ�OHDVHV ����� �����
,QIRUPDWLRQ�WHFKQRORJ\ ����� �����
,QVXUDQFH ����� �����
/HJDO ����� �����
&RQVXOWDQWV ����� �����
3ULRULW\�3URMHFWV� ����� �����
2WKHU ����� �����
7RWDO�PDWHULDOV�DQG�VHUYLFHV ������ ������

�3ULRULW\�3URMHFWV�DUH�JHQHUDOO\�
RQH�RII
�RU�QRQ�UHFXUULQJ�FRVWV��([DPSOHV�DUH�
&RXQFLO�HOHFWLRQ��VWUDWHJ\�GHYHORSPHQW��VSHFLILF�FRQVXOWDQW
V�FRVWV�RU�ZRUNV�
SURMHFWV�WKDW�GR�QRW�DGG�WR�WKH�FDSLWDOLVHG�YDOXH�RI�DQ�DVVHW��,QIRUPDWLRQ�UHJDUGLQJ�
SULRULW\�SURMHFWV�FDQ�EH�IRXQG�LQ�WKH�PRQWKO\�&RPPXQLW\�5HSRUW�

1RWH��� 'HSUHFLDWLRQ�DQG�DPRUWLVDWLRQ

3URSHUW\ ����� �����
3ODQW�DQG�HTXLSPHQW ����� �����
,QIUDVWUXFWXUH ������ ������
7RWDO�GHSUHFLDWLRQ ������ ������
,QWDQJLEOH�DVVHWV ��� ���
7RWDO�GHSUHFLDWLRQ�DQG�DPRUWLVDWLRQ ������ ������
5HIHU�WR�QRWH����DQG����IRU�D�PRUH�GHWDLOHG�EUHDNGRZQ�RI�GHSUHFLDWLRQ�DQG�DPRUWLVDWLRQ�FKDUJHV�

1RWH��� %RUURZLQJ�FRVWV

,QWHUHVW���%RUURZLQJV ����� �����
7RWDO�ERUURZLQJ�FRVWV ����� �����

1RWH��� 2WKHU�H[SHQVHV

$XGLWRUV
 UHPXQHUDWLRQ � 9$*2 � DXGLW RI WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV�
SHUIRUPDQFH�VWDWHPHQW�DQG�JUDQW�DFTXLWDOV

�� ��

$XGLWRUV
�UHPXQHUDWLRQ���,QWHUQDO ��� ���
&RXQFLOORUV
�DOORZDQFHV ��� ���
&RQIHUHQFHV�DQG�VHPLQDUV �� ���
&RPPXQLW\�JUDQWV��FRQWULEXWLRQV�DQG�VXEVLGLHV�SDLG ����� �����
)DPLO\�GD\�FDUH�IHH�UHOLHI�SDLG��RIIVHW�E\�LQFRPH� ��� ���
,QGLUHFW�UHFUXLWPHQW�FRVWV��UHFUXLWPHQW��VWDII�WUDLQLQJ�DQG�XQLIRUPV� ��� ���
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&DVK�DW�EDQN ����� �����
7HUP�GHSRVLWV��OHVV�WKDQ����GD\V� ��� ������
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&RXQFLOV FDVK DQG FDVK HTXLYDOHQWV DUH VXEMHFW WR H[WHUQDO UHVWULFWLRQV WKDW
OLPLW�DPRXQWV�DYDLODEOH�IRU�GLVFUHWLRQDU\�XVH���7KHVH�LQFOXGH�
��7UXVW�IXQGV�DQG�GHSRVLWV��1RWH���� ����� �����
��2WKHU�5HVHUYH�IXQGV��1RWH�����E��� ����� ���
7RWDO�UHVWULFWHG�IXQGV ����� �����
7RWDO XQUHVWULFWHG FDVK DQG FDVK HTXLYDOHQWV �H[FOXGLQJ WHUP GHSRVLWV
RYHU����GD\V��1RWH������
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1RWH��� 2WKHU�ILQDQFLDO�DVVHWV

&XUUHQW
7HUP�GHSRVLWV��RYHU����GD\V� ������ ������
7RWDO�FXUUHQW�RWKHU�ILQDQFLDO�DVVHWV ������ ������
1RQ�FXUUHQW
6KDUHV � �
7RWDO�QRQ�FXUUHQW�RWKHU�ILQDQFLDO�DVVHWV � �
7RWDO�RWKHU�ILQDQFLDO�DVVHWV ������ ������

1RWH��� 7UDGH�DQG�RWKHU�UHFHLYDEOHV

&XUUHQW
6WDWXWRU\�UHFHLYDEOHV
5DWHV�GHEWRUV ����� �����
5DWHV�SHQVLRQHU�UHEDWH � ���
6SHFLDO�UDWH�DVVHVVPHQW ��� �
,QIULQJHPHQW�GHEWRUV ����� �����
3URYLVLRQ�IRU�GRXEWIXO�GHEWV����LQIULQJHPHQWV ����� �����
*UDQWV���*RYHUQPHQW�DQG�6WDWXWRU\�%RGLHV ��� ���
1RQ�VWDWXWRU\�UHFHLYDEOHV
1HW�*67�UHFHLYDEOH ����� �����
2WKHU�GHEWRUV ����� �����
7RWDO�FXUUHQW�WUDGH�DQG�RWKHU�UHFHLYDEOHV ������ ������
1RQ�FXUUHQW
6SHFLDO�UDWH�VFKHPH ��� �����
7RWDO�QRQ�FXUUHQW�WUDGH�DQG�RWKHU�UHFHLYDEOHV ��� �����
7RWDO�WUDGH�DQG�RWKHU�UHFHLYDEOHV ������ ������

�D��$JHLQJ�RI�5HFHLYDEOHV

&XUUHQW��QRW�\HW�GXH� ����� �����
3DVW�GXH�E\�XS�WR����GD\V ��� ���
3DVW�GXH�EHWZHHQ����DQG����GD\V �� ���
3DVW�GXH�E\�PRUH�WKDQ����GD\V ��� ���
7RWDO�WUDGH�	�RWKHU�UHFHLYDEOHV ����� �����

�E��0RYHPHQW�LQ�SURYLVLRQV�IRU�GRXEWIXO�GHEWV
%DODQFH�DW�WKH�EHJLQQLQJ�RI�WKH�\HDU ��� ���
1HZ�3URYLVLRQV�UHFRJQLVHG�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU �� ��
%DODQFH�DW�HQG�RI�\HDU ��� ���
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LV�QR�UHFHQW�KLVWRU\�RI�GHIDXOW��7KH�DJHLQJ�RI�WKH�&RXQFLO
V�WUDGH�	�RWKHU�UHFHLYDEOHV�
�H[FOXGLQJ�VWDWXWRU\�UHFHLYDEOHV��ZDV�
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�F��$JHLQJ�RI�LQGLYLGXDOO\�LPSDLUHG�5HFHLYDEOHV

&XUUHQW��QRW�\HW�GXH� � �
3DVW�GXH�E\�XS�WR����GD\V � �
3DVW�GXH�EHWZHHQ����DQG����GD\V � �
3DVW�GXH�E\�PRUH�WKDQ����GD\V ��� ���
7RWDO�WUDGH�	�RWKHU�UHFHLYDEOHV ��� ���

1RWH��� ,QYHQWRULHV

,QYHQWRULHV�KHOG�IRU�VDOH ��� ���
7RWDO�LQYHQWRULHV ��� ���

1RWH��� 1RQ�FXUUHQW�DVVHWV�FODVVLILHG�DV�KHOG�IRU�VDOH

/DQG ��� �����
7RWDO�QRQ�FXUUHQW�DVVHWV�FODVVLILHG�DV�KHOG�IRU�VDOH ��� �����

1RWH��� 2WKHU�DVVHWV

3UHSD\PHQWV ����� ���
$FFUXHG�LQFRPH ����� �����
7RWDO�RWKHU�DVVHWV ����� �����
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9DOXH����-XQH�
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$FTXLVLWLRQV &RQWULEXWLRQV 5HYDOXDWLRQ 'HSUHFLDWLRQ 'LVSRVDO 7UDQVIHUV $W�1HW�)DLU�
9DOXH����-XQH�
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/DQG ������� � ����� ������� � ������� ����� �������
%XLOGLQJV ������� ����� � ����� ������� ����� ����� �������
3ODQW�DQG�(TXLSPHQW ����� � �� � ������� ���� ����� �����
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6XPPDU\�RI�:RUN�LQ�3URJUHVV
2SHQLQJ�:,3 $GGLWLRQV 7UDQVIHUV &ORVLQJ�:,3
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VSHFLDOLVHG
/DQG���QRQ�
VSHFLDOLVHG

/DQG�8QGHU�
5RDGV
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0RYHPHQWV�LQ�DFFXPXODWHG�GHSUHFLDWLRQ
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1RWH��� 3URSHUW\��LQIUDVWUXFWXUH��SODQW�DQG�HTXLSPHQW�FRQW
G

9DOXDWLRQ�RI�ODQG�DQG�EXLOGLQJV�
9DOXDWLRQ RI ODQG DQG EXLOGLQJV ZHUH XQGHUWDNHQ E\ D TXDOLILHG &RXQFLO
YDOXHU /DXUHQ $VKOH\ $$3, �$VVRFLDWH RI $XVWUDOLDQ 3URSHUW\ ,QVWLWXWH��
7KH YDOXDWLRQ RI ODQG DQG EXLOGLQJV LV DW IDLU YDOXH� EHLQJ PDUNHW YDOXH
EDVHG RQ KLJKHVW DQG EHVW XVH SHUPLWWHG E\ UHOHYDQW ODQG SODQQLQJ
SURYLVLRQV� :KHUH ODQG XVH LV UHVWULFWHG WKURXJK H[LVWLQJ SODQQLQJ
SURYLVLRQV WKH YDOXDWLRQ LV UHGXFHG WR UHIOHFW WKLV OLPLWDWLRQ� 7KLV
DGMXVWPHQW LV DQ XQREVHUYDEOH LQSXW LQ WKH YDOXDWLRQ� 7KH DGMXVWPHQW
KDV�QR�LPSDFW�RQ�WKH�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�LQFRPH�VWDWHPHQW���

6SHFLDOLVHG ODQG LV YDOXHG DW IDLU YDOXH XVLQJ VLWH YDOXHV DGMXVWHG IRU
HQJORER �XQGHYHORSHG DQG�RU XQVHUYLFHG� FKDUDFWHULVWLFV� DFFHVV ULJKWV
DQG SULYDWH LQWHUHVWV RI RWKHU SDUWLHV DQG HQWLWOHPHQWV RI LQIUDVWUXFWXUH
DVVHWV DQG VHUYLFHV� 7KLV DGMXVWPHQW LV DQ XQREVHUYDEOH LQSXW LQ WKH
YDOXDWLRQ� 7KH DGMXVWPHQW KDV QR LPSDFW RQ WKH FRPSUHKHQVLYH LQFRPH
VWDWHPHQW�

$Q\ VLJQLILFDQW PRYHPHQWV LQ WKH XQREVHUYDEOH LQSXWV IRU ODQG DQG ODQG
XQGHU URDGV ZLOO KDYH D VLJQLILFDQW LPSDFW RQ WKH IDLU YDOXH RI WKHVH
DVVHWV�

5HIHU WR 1RWH � �H� IRU H[SODQDWLRQ RI DVVHW FODVVLILFDWLRQV OHYHO �� OHYHO ��
DQG�OHYHO���

'HWDLOV RI WKH &RXQFLO¶V ODQG DQG EXLOGLQJV DQG LQIRUPDWLRQ DERXW WKH IDLU
YDOXH�KLHUDUFK\�DV��DW����-XQH������DUH�DV�IROORZV�

/DQG

/DQG�,PSURYHPHQWV

%XLOGLQJV

%XLOGLQJ�LPSURYHPHQWV

+HULWDJH�%XLOGLQJV

9DOXDWLRQ�RI�LQIUDVWUXFWXUH

9DOXDWLRQ�RI�LQIUDVWUXFWXUH�DVVHWV�KDV�EHHQ�SHUIRUPHG�E\�&RXQFLO
V�$VVHW�
0DQDJHPHQW�7HDP�
7KH YDOXDWLRQ LV DW IDLU YDOXH EDVHG RQ UHSODFHPHQW FRVW OHVV
DFFXPXODWHG�GHSUHFLDWLRQ�DV�DW�WKH�GDWH�RI�YDOXDWLRQ�

'HWDLOV RI WKH &RXQFLO¶V LQIUDVWUXFWXUH DQG LQIRUPDWLRQ DERXW WKH IDLU YDOXH
KLHUDUFK\�DV�DW����-XQH������DUH�DV�IROORZV�
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3DUNV��RSHQ�VSDFH�DQG�
VWUHHWVFDSHV � � ������ ������

0DULQH������������ � � ����� �����

2WKHU�LQIUDVWUXFWXUH � � ����� �����

7RWDO � � ��������� ���������
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����������)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUW

1RWH��� 3URSHUW\��LQIUDVWUXFWXUH��SODQW�DQG�HTXLSPHQW�FRQW
G

'HVFULSWLRQ�RI�VLJQLILFDQW�XQREVHUYDEOH�LQSXWV�LQWR�OHYHO���YDOXDWLRQV

6SHFLDOLVHG�ODQG�DQG�ODQG�XQGHU�URDGV� LV�YDOXHG�XVLQJ�D�PDUNHW�EDVHG�
GLUHFW�FRPSDULVRQ�WHFKQLTXH���6LJQLILFDQW�XQREVHUYDEOH�LQSXWV�LQFOXGH�WKH�
H[WHQW�DQG�LPSDFW�RI�UHVWULFWLRQ�RI�XVH�DQG�WKH�PDUNHW�FRVW�RI�ODQG�SHU�
VTXDUH�PHWUH���7KH�H[WHQW�DQG�LPSDFW�RI�UHVWULFWLRQV�RQ�XVH�YDULHV�DQG�
UHVXOWV�LQ�D�UHGXFWLRQ�WR�VXUURXQGLQJ�ODQG�YDOXHV�EHWZHHQ����DQG�������
7KH�PDUNHW�YDOXH�RI�ODQG�YDULHV�VLJQLILFDQWO\�GHSHQGLQJ�RQ�WKH�ORFDWLRQ�RI�
WKH�ODQG�DQG�WKH�FXUUHQW�PDUNHW�FRQGLWLRQV���&XUUHQWO\�ODQG�YDOXHV�UDQJH�
EHWZHHQ�������DQG��������SHU�VTXDUH�PHWUH���

6SHFLDOLVHG�EXLOGLQJV� DUH�YDOXHG�XVLQJ�D�GHSUHFLDWHG�UHSODFHPHQW�FRVW�
WHFKQLTXH���6LJQLILFDQW�XQREVHUYDEOH�LQSXWV�LQFOXGH�WKH�FXUUHQW�
UHSODFHPHQW�FRVW�DQG�UHPDLQLQJ�XVHIXO�OLYHV�RI�EXLOGLQJV���&XUUHQW�
UHSODFHPHQW�FRVWV�LV�FDOFXODWHG�RQ�D�VTXDUH�PHWUH�EDVLV�DQG�UDQJHV�IURP�
�����WR��������SHU�VTXDUH�PHWUH���7KH�UHPDLQLQJ�XVHIXO�OLYHV�RI�EXLOGLQJV�
DUH�GHWHUPLQHG�RQ�WKH�EDVLV�RI�WKH�FXUUHQW�FRQGLWLRQ�RI�EXLOGLQJV�DQG�YDU\�
IURP����\HDUV�WR�����\HDUV���5HSODFHPHQW�FRVW�LV�VHQVLWLYH�WR�FKDQJHV�LQ�
PDUNHW�FRQGLWLRQV��ZLWK�DQ\�LQFUHDVH�RU�GHFUHDVH�LQ�FRVW�IORZLQJ�WKURXJK�
WR�WKH�YDOXDWLRQ���8VHIXO�OLYHV�RI�EXLOGLQJV�DUH�VHQVLWLYH�WR�FKDQJHV�LQ�
H[SHFWDWLRQV�RU�UHTXLUHPHQWV�WKDW�FRXOG�HLWKHU�VKRUWHQ�RU�H[WHQG�WKH�
XVHIXO�OLYHV�RI�EXLOGLQJV�

,QIUDVWUXFWXUH�DVVHWV DUH�YDOXHG�EDVHG�RQ�WKH�GHSUHFLDWHG�UHSODFHPHQW�
FRVW����6LJQLILFDQW�XQREVHUYDEOH�LQSXWV�LQFOXGH�WKH�FXUUHQW�UHSODFHPHQW�
FRVW�DQG�UHPDLQLQJ�XVHIXO�OLYHV�RI�LQIUDVWUXFWXUH���7KH�UHPDLQLQJ�XVHIXO�
OLYHV�RI�LQIUDVWUXFWXUH�DVVHWV�DUH�GHWHUPLQHG�RQ�WKH�EDVLV�RI�WKH�FXUUHQW�
FRQGLWLRQ�RI�WKH�DVVHW�DQG�YDU\�IURP���\HDUV�WR�����\HDUV���5HSODFHPHQW�
FRVW�LV�VHQVLWLYH�WR�FKDQJHV�LQ�PDUNHW�FRQGLWLRQV��ZLWK�DQ\�LQFUHDVH�RU�
GHFUHDVH�LQ�FRVW�IORZLQJ�WKURXJK�WR�WKH�YDOXDWLRQ���8VHIXO�OLYHV�RI�
LQIUDVWUXFWXUH�DUH�VHQVLWLYH�WR�FKDQJHV�LQ�XVH��H[SHFWDWLRQV�RU�
UHTXLUHPHQWV�WKDW�FRXOG�HLWKHU�VKRUWHQ�RU�H[WHQG�WKH�XVHIXO�OLYHV�RI�
LQIUDVWUXFWXUH�DVVHWV�

���� ����
5HFRQFLOLDWLRQ�RI�VSHFLDOLVHG�ODQG �
��� �
���

/DQG�XQGHU�URDGV ����� �����
3DUNV�DQG�UHVHUYHV ������� �������
7RWDO�VSHFLDOLVHG�ODQG ������� �������

3DJH���

1RWHV�WR�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUW
)RU�WKH�<HDU�(QGHG����-XQH�����



0RUQLQJWRQ�3HQLQVXOD�6KLUH
����������)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUW

���� ����
�
��� �
���

1RWH��� ,QYHVWPHQW�SURSHUW\

%DODQFH�DW�EHJLQQLQJ�RI�ILQDQFLDO�\HDU ����� �
7UDQVIHU�WR�/DQG�	�EXLOGLQJ �������

)DLU�YDOXH�DGMXVWPHQWV ��� �

7UDQVIHU�IURP�3URSHUW\��SODQW�DQG�HTXLSPHQW � �����
%DODQFH�DW�HQG�RI�ILQDQFLDO�\HDU ����� �����

9DOXDWLRQ�RI�LQYHVWPHQW�SURSHUW\

1RWH��� ,QWDQJLEOH�DVVHWV

6RIWZDUH ����� �����
7RWDO�LQWDQJLEOH�DVVHWV ����� �����

*URVV�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW

%DODQFH�DW�WKH�EHJLQQLQJ�RI�WKH�\HDU ����� �����
$GGLWLRQV ��� ��

%DODQFH�DW�WKH�HQG�RI�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�\HDU ����� �����

$FFXPXODWHG�DPRUWLVDWLRQ�DQG�LPSDLUPHQW
%DODQFH�DW�WKH�EHJLQQLQJ�RI�WKH�\HDU ����� �����
$PRUWLVDWLRQ�H[SHQVH ��� ���

%DODQFH�DW�WKH�HQG�RI�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�\HDU ����� �����

1HW�ERRN�YDOXH�DW�WKH�HQG�RI�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�\HDU ����� �����

1RWH��� 7UDGH�DQG�RWKHU�SD\DEOHV

7UDGH�SD\DEOHV ����� ������
$FFUXHG�H[SHQVHV ����� �����
3UHSDLG�,QFRPH �� ���
7RWDO�WUDGH�DQG�RWKHU�SD\DEOHV ������ ������

1RWHV�WR�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUW
)RU�WKH�<HDU�(QGHG����-XQH�����

3DJH���

9DOXDWLRQ RI LQYHVWPHQW SURSHUW\ KDV EHHQ GHWHUPLQHG LQ DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK RXU TXDOLILHG &RXQFLO YDOXHU
/DXUHQ $VKOH\ $$3,� ZKR KDV UHFHQW H[SHULHQFH LQ WKH ORFDWLRQ DQG FDWHJRU\ RI WKH SURSHUW\ EHLQJ
YDOXHG���7KH�YDOXDWLRQ�LV�DW�IDLU�YDOXH��EDVHG�RQ�WKH�FXUUHQW�PDUNHW�YDOXH�IRU�WKH�SURSHUW\�
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���� ����
�
��� �
���

1RWHV�WR�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUW
)RU�WKH�<HDU�(QGHG����-XQH�����

1RWH��� 7UXVW�IXQGV�DQG�GHSRVLWV

)LUH�VHUYLFHV�OHY\ ��� ���
%DQN�JXDUDQWHHV ��� ���
5HIXQGDEOH�GHSRVLWV ��� ���

*HQHUDO ��� ���

+LOOYLHZ�4XDUULHV�5HVWRUDWLRQ�)XQG ��� ���

5DWH�UHFRYHULHV ��� ���

6XEGLYLVLRQ�PDLQWHQDQFH�GHSRVLWV ����� ���

5HWHQWLRQ�DPRXQWV ��� ���
7RWDO�WUXVW�IXQGV�DQG�GHSRVLWV ����� �����

1RWH��� 3URYLVLRQV
(PSOR\HH� /DQGILOO�

UHVWRUDWLRQ
1DWLYH�

YHJHWDWLRQ�
PDQDJHPHQW

7RWDO

���� ��
��� ��
��� ��
��� ��
���
%DODQFH�DW�EHJLQQLQJ�RI�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�\HDU ������ ����� ��� ������
$GGLWLRQDO�SURYLVLRQV ����� ����� ��� �����
$PRXQWV�XVHG ������� � ����� �������
%DODQFH�DW�WKH�HQG�RI�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�\HDU ������ ����� ��� ������

����
%DODQFH�DW�EHJLQQLQJ�RI�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�\HDU ������ ����� ��� ������
$GGLWLRQDO�SURYLVLRQV ����� ��� � �����
$PRXQWV�XVHG ������� � ����� �������
%DODQFH�DW�WKH�HQG�RI�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�\HDU ������ ����� ��� ������

���� ����
�
��� �
���

�D��(PSOR\HH�SURYLVLRQV

$QQXDO�OHDYH ����� �����
/RQJ�VHUYLFH�OHDYH ����� �����
5HGXQGDQFLHV �� ���

����� �����

$QQXDO�OHDYH ��� ���
/RQJ�VHUYLFH�OHDYH ����� �����

����� �����
7RWDO�FXUUHQW�HPSOR\HH�SURYLVLRQV ������ ������

1RQ�FXUUHQW�
/RQJ�VHUYLFH�OHDYH ����� �����
$QQXDO�OHDYH � �
7RWDO�QRQ�FXUUHQW�HPSOR\HH�SURYLVLRQV ����� �����

&XUUHQW ������ ������
1RQ�FXUUHQW ����� �����

������ ������

3DJH���

5HIXQGDEOH�GHSRVLWV���'HSRVLWV�DUH�WDNHQ�E\�FRXQFLO�DV�D�IRUP�RI�VXUHW\�LQ�D�QXPEHU�RI�
FLUFXPVWDQFHV��LQFOXGLQJ�LQ�UHODWLRQ�WR�EXLOGLQJ�ZRUNV��WHQGHU�GHSRVLWV��FRQWUDFW�GHSRVLWV�
DQG�WKH�XVH�RI�FLYLF�IDFLOLWLHV�

3XUSRVH�DQG�QDWXUH�RI�LWHPV

)LUH�6HUYLFH�/HY\���&RXQFLO�LV�WKH�FROOHFWLRQ�DJHQW�IRU�ILUH�VHUYLFHV�OHY\�RQ�EHKDOI�RI�WKH�
6WDWH�*RYHUQPHQW���&RXQFLO�UHPLWV�DPRXQWV�UHFHLYHG�RQ�D�TXDUWHUO\�EDVLV���$PRXQWV�
GLVFORVHG�KHUH�ZLOO�EH�UHPLWWHG�WR�WKH�VWDWH�JRYHUQPHQW�LQ�OLQH�ZLWK�WKDW�SURFHVV�

5HWHQWLRQ�$PRXQWV���&RXQFLO�KDV�D�FRQWUDFWXDO�ULJKW�WR�UHWDLQ�FHUWDLQ�DPRXQWV�XQWLO�D�
FRQWUDFWRU�KDV�PHW�FHUWDLQ�UHTXLUHPHQWV�RU�D�UHODWHG�ZDUUDQW�RU�GHIHFW�SHULRG�KDV�
HODSVHG���6XEMHFW�WR�WKH�VDWLVIDFWRU\�FRPSOHWLRQ�RI�WKH�FRQWUDFWXDO�REOLJDWLRQV��RU�WKH�
HODSVLQJ�RI�WLPH��WKHVH�DPRXQWV�ZLOO�EH�SDLG�WR�WKH�UHOHYDQW�FRQWUDFWRU�LQ�OLQH�ZLWK�
&RXQFLO
V�FRQWUDFWXDO�REOLJDWLRQV�

&XUUHQW�SURYLVLRQV�H[SHFWHG�WR�EH�ZKROO\�VHWWOHG�ZLWKLQ�
���PRQWKV

&XUUHQW�SURYLVLRQV�H[SHFWHG�WR�EH�ZKROO\�VHWWOHG�DIWHU����
PRQWKV

$JJUHJDWH�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�RI�HPSOR\HH�SURYLVLRQV�

7RWDO�DJJUHJDWH�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW�RI�HPSOR\HH�SURYLVLRQV
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1RWHV�WR�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUW
)RU�WKH�<HDU�(QGHG����-XQH�����

1RWH��� 3URYLVLRQV��FRQW
G�
�E��/DQG�ILOO�UHVWRUDWLRQ

1RQ�FXUUHQW ����� �����
����� �����

�F��1DWLYH�YHJHWDWLRQ�PDQDJHPHQW

&XUUHQW ��� ���
1RQ�FXUUHQW ��� ���

��� ���

1RWH��� ,QWHUHVW�EHDULQJ�ORDQV�DQG�ERUURZLQJV

&XUUHQW
%RUURZLQJV���VHFXUHG���� ����� �����

����� �����

1RQ�FXUUHQW
%RUURZLQJV���VHFXUHG���� ������ ������

������ ������
7RWDO ������ ������

�D� 7KH PDWXULW\ SURILOH IRU &RXQFLO
V
ERUURZLQJV�LV�

1RW�ODWHU�WKDQ�RQH�\HDU ����� �����
/DWHU WKDQ RQH \HDU DQG QRW ODWHU WKDQ ILYH
\HDUV ����� ������
/DWHU�WKDQ�ILYH�\HDUV ����� �����

������ ������

����%RUURZLQJV�DUH�VHFXUHG��E\�JHQHUDO�UDWHV

3DJH���
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����������)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUW

1RWH���

%DODQFH�DW
EHJLQQLQJ�RI�

UHSRUWLQJ�SHULRG ,QFUHPHQW �'HFUHPHQW�
%DODQFH�DW�HQG�RI�
UHSRUWLQJ�SHULRG

�D��$VVHW�UHYDOXDWLRQ�UHVHUYHV �
��� �
��� �
��� �
���

����

3URSHUW\
/DQG� ������� ������� � �������
/DQG�8QGHU�5RDGV ��� � � ���
%XLOGLQJV ������ ����� � ������

������� ������� � �������
,QIUDVWUXFWXUH
5RDGV ������� ������ ���� �������
'UDLQDJH ������� ������ � �������
%ULGJHV ��� ��� � ���
)RRWSDWKV�DQG�F\FOHZD\V ������ ��� ����� ������
5HFUHDWLRQDO��OHLVXUH�DQG�FRPPXQLW\�IDFLOLWLHV ����� ����� � �����
3DUNV��RSHQ�VSDFH�DQG�VWUHHWVFDSHV ������ ����� ������� ������
0DULQH�VWUXFWXUHV ��� �� ����� ���
2WKHU�LQIUDVWUXFWXUH ����� � ����� �����

������� ������ ������� �������
7RWDO�DVVHW�UHYDOXDWLRQ�UHVHUYHV ��������� ������� ������� ���������

�/DQG�LQFUHPHQW�DV�D�UHVXOW�RI�DQQXDO�UHYDOXDWLRQ�ZKLFK�UHIOHFWV�PDUNHWSODFH�PRYHPHQW�DV�DW����-XQH������

����
3URSHUW\
/DQG ������� ������ � �������
/DQG�8QGHU�5RDGV ��� �� � ���
%XLOGLQJV ������ ����� � ������

������� ������ � �������
,QIUDVWUXFWXUH
5RDGV ������� � �������� �������
'UDLQDJH ������� ����� � �������
%ULGJHV ��� � ����� ���
)RRWSDWKV�DQG�F\FOHZD\V ������ ����� � ������
5HFUHDWLRQDO��OHLVXUH�DQG�FRPPXQLW\�IDFLOLWLHV ����� � ����� �����
3DUNV��RSHQ�VSDFH�DQG�VWUHHWVFDSHV ������ ����� � ������
0DULQH�VWUXFWXUHV ��� �� � ���
2WKHU�LQIUDVWUXFWXUH ����� � ������� �����

������� ������ �������� �������
7RWDO�DVVHW�UHYDOXDWLRQ�UHVHUYHV ��������� ������ �������� ���������

%DODQFH�DW
EHJLQQLQJ�RI�

UHSRUWLQJ�SHULRG

7UDQVIHU�IURP�
DFFXPXODWHG�

VXUSOXV

7UDQVIHU�WR
�DFFXPXODWHG�

VXUSOXV
%DODQFH�DW�HQG�RI�
UHSRUWLQJ�SHULRG

�
��� �
��� �
��� �
���

�E��2WKHU�UHVHUYHV
����

6XVWDLQDELOLW\�HQHUJ\�IXQG ��� ��� � ���
5HFUHDWLRQ�ODQG�UHVHUYH �� � � ��
0XQLFLSDO�HPHUJHQF\�UHVHUYH ��� � � ���
7RWDO�2WKHU�UHVHUYHV� ��� ��� � �����

����

6XVWDLQDELOLW\�HQHUJ\�IXQG ��� ��� ���� ���
5HFUHDWLRQ�ODQG�UHVHUYH �� � � ��
0XQLFLSDO�HPHUJHQF\�UHVHUYH ��� � � ���
7RWDO�2WKHU�UHVHUYHV� ��� ��� ���� ���

6XVWDLQDEOH�(QHUJ\��)XQG��5HVHUYH

5HFUHDWLRQ�/DQG�5HVHUYH

0XQLFLSDO�(PHUJHQF\�5HVHUYH

3DJH���

5HVHUYHV

7KH�DVVHW�UHYDOXDWLRQ�UHVHUYH�LV�XVHG�WR�UHFRUG�WKH�LQFUHDVHG��QHW��YDOXH�RI�&RXQFLO
V�DVVHWV�

1RWHV�WR�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUW
)RU�WKH�<HDU�(QGHG����-XQH�����

7KH SXUSRVH RI WKLV UHVHUYH LV WR SURYLGH IXQGV WR VXVWDLQDEO\ UHGXFH WKH LPSDFW RI HQHUJ\ XVH RQ WKH *OREDO :DUPLQJ HIIHFW WKURXJK
WKH�LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ�RI��
�D��SURJUDP�RI�6KLUH�ZLGH�HQHUJ\�UHGXFWLRQ�PHDVXUHV�
�E��HQHUJ\�SURGXFWLRQ�LQLWLDWLYHV��DQG�HGXFDWLRQDO�SURJUDPV��
)XQGV�DYDLODEOH�DV�DW����-XQH�����������N������N�LQ�������

7KH SXUSRVH RI WKLV UHVHUYH LV WR SURYLGH IRU WKH SXUFKDVH RI ODQG DQG�RU LPSURYHPHQWV WR SODFHV RI UHFUHDWLRQ� )XQGV DYDLODEOH DV DW
���-XQH����������N�����N�LQ�������

7KH SXUSRVH RI WKLV UHVHUYH LV WR KDYH DQ DELOLW\ WR ILQDQFH WKH UHFRYHU\ UHVSRQVH IURP XQSODQQHG HPHUJHQF\ PDQDJHPHQW HYHQWV�
)XQGV�DYDLODEOH�DV�DW����-XQH�����������N������N�LQ�������



0RUQLQJWRQ�3HQLQVXOD�6KLUH
����������)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUW

���� ����
�
��� �
���

1RWH���

6XUSOXV��GHILFLW��IRU�WKH�\HDU ������ ������

'HSUHFLDWLRQ�DPRUWLVDWLRQ ������ ������
�3URILW��ORVV�RQ�GLVSRVDO�RI�SURSHUW\��LQIUDVWUXFWXUH��SODQW�DQG�HTXLSPHQW ����� ������
)DLU�YDOXH�DGMXVWPHQWV�IRU�LQYHVWPHQW�SURSHUW\ ����� �
5\H�ODQGILOO�UHKDELOLWLDWLRQ�SURYLVLRQ ����� ���
(PSOR\HH�3URYLVLRQV ��� �������
1DWLYH�YHJHWDWLRQ�PDQDJHPHQW ��� �����
,QFUHDVH��'HFUHDVH��LQ�SURYLVLRQV ���� �
&RQWULEXWLRQV���1RQ�PRQHWDU\�DVVHWV ������� �������
2WKHU ����� �����

&KDQJH�LQ�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�

�,QFUHDVH��GHFUHDVH�LQ�WUDGH�DQG�RWKHU�UHFHLYDEOHV ����� �����
�,QFUHDVH��GHFUHDVH�LQ�RWKHU�DVVHWV ���� ���
,QFUHDVH��GHFUHDVH��LQ�WUDGH�DQG�RWKHU�SD\DEOHV ����� �����

�,QFUHDVH��GHFUHDVH�LQ�WUXVW�IXQGV�DQG�GHSRVLWV ��� �����
�,QFUHDVH��GHFUHDVH�LQ�LQYHQWRULHV ���� ����
1HW�FDVK�SURYLGHG�E\��XVHG�LQ��RSHUDWLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV ������ ������

1RWH��� )LQDQFLQJ�DUUDQJHPHQWV

%DQN�RYHUGUDIW ����� �����
%DQN�ORDQV ������ ������
&UHGLW�FDUG�IDFLOLWLHV ��� ���
$VVHW�ILQDQFH���OHDVLQJ ����� �����
7RWDO�IDFLOLWLHV ������ ������

8VHG�IDFLOLWLHV ������ ������
8QXVHG�IDFLOLWLHV ����� �����

5HFRQFLOLDWLRQ�RI�FDVK�IORZV�IURP�RSHUDWLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV�WR�VXUSOXV��GHILFLW�

3DJH���

)RU�WKH�<HDU�(QGHG����-XQH�����
1RWHV�WR�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUW
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1RWH��� &RPPLWPHQWV

����
1RW�ODWHU�

WKDQ���\HDU

/DWHU�WKDQ���
\HDU�DQG�QRW�
ODWHU�WKDQ���

\HDUV

/DWHU�WKDQ���
\HDUV�DQG�QRW�
ODWHU�WKDQ���

\HDUV
/DWHU�WKDQ���

\HDUV 7RWDO

�
��� �
��� �
��� �
��� �
���
2SHUDWLQJ
&OHDQVLQJ���6,06 ����� ����� ������ ����� ������
3DUNV�DQG�5RDGVLGHV���6,06 ������ ������ ������ ������ ������
)XUQLWXUH�DQG�6LJQV���6,06 ����� ����� ������ ����� ������
%XLOGLQJV���6,06 ����� ����� ������ ����� ������
6DIHU�/RFDO�5RDGV ������ ������ ������ � ������
*DUEDJH�&ROOHFWLRQ ����� � � � �����
*UHHQ�:DVWH ����� � � � �����
/DQGILOO�	�7UDQVIHU�6WDWLRQ�0DQDJHPHQW ����� � � � �����
5HF\FOLQJ ����� ����� � � �����
7HOHFRPPXQLFDWLRQV�DQG�,7 �� �� � � ���
&RQVXOWLQJ ��� � � � ���
)DPLO\�6HUYLFHV ��� ��� � � ���
,QWHUQDO�$XGLW ��� ��� � � ���
7RWDO ������ ������ ������� ������ �������

&DSLWDO
%XLOGLQJV ��� � � � ���
5HFUHDWLRQ�)DFLOLWLHV ����� �� � � �����
5RDGV ����� � � � �����
)RRWSDWKV�	�6WUHHW�6FDSHV ����� � � � �����
'UDLQDJH ��� � � � ���
7RWDO ����� �� � � �����

����
1RW�ODWHU�

WKDQ���\HDU

/DWHU�WKDQ���
\HDU�DQG�QRW�
ODWHU�WKDQ���

\HDUV

/DWHU�WKDQ���
\HDUV�DQG�QRW�
ODWHU�WKDQ���

\HDUV
/DWHU�WKDQ���

\HDUV 7RWDO

�
��� �
��� �
��� �
��� �
���
2SHUDWLQJ
&OHDQVLQJ���6,06 ������ ������ ������ ������ ������
3DUNV�DQG�5RDGVLGHV���6,06 ������ ������ ������ ������ ������
)XUQLWXUH�DQG�6LJQV���6,06 ����� ����� ������ ����� ������
%XLOGLQJV���6,06 ����� ����� ������ ������ ������
6DIHU�/RFDO�5RDGV ������ ������ ������ � ������
*DUEDJH�&ROOHFWLRQ ����� ����� � � ������
*UHHQ�:DVWH ����� ����� � � �����
/DQGILOO�	�7UDQVIHU�6WDWLRQ�0DQDJHPHQW ����� ��� � � �����
5HF\FOLQJ ����� ����� ����� � ������
7HOHFRPPXQLFDWLRQV�DQG�,7 �� �� ��� � ���
&RQVXOWLQJ ��� ��� ��� � ���
,QWHUQDO�$XGLW ��� � � � ���
9(&�/RFDO�*RYHUQPHQW�(OHFWLRQV ��� � � � ���
7RWDO ������ ������ ������� ������ �������

&DSLWDO
%XLOGLQJV ����� �� �� � �����
/LEUDULHV � � � � �
5HFUHDWLRQ�)DFLOLWLHV ����� � � � �����
5RDGV ����� � � � �����
)RRWSDWKV�	�6WUHHW�6FDSHV ��� � � � ���
'UDLQDJH ��� � � � ���
$UWZRUNV ��� � � � ���
3DUNV��RSHQ�VSDFH�DQG�VWUHHWVFDSHV �� � � � ��
7RWDO ����� �� �� � �����

7KH�&RXQFLO�KDV�HQWHUHG�LQWR�WKH�IROORZLQJ�FRPPLWPHQWV

3DJH���

)RU�WKH�<HDU�(QGHG����-XQH�����
1RWHV�WR�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUW



0RUQLQJWRQ�3HQLQVXOD�6KLUH
����������)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUW

���� ����
�
��� �
���

1RWH��� 2SHUDWLQJ�OHDVHV

�D��2SHUDWLQJ�OHDVH�FRPPLWPHQWV

$W�WKH�UHSRUWLQJ�GDWH��WKH�&RXQFLO�KDG�WKH�IROORZLQJ�REOLJDWLRQV�XQGHU�
QRQ�FDQFHOODEOH�RSHUDWLQJ�OHDVHV�IRU�WKH�OHDVH�RI�HTXLSPHQW�DQG�ODQG�
DQG�EXLOGLQJV�IRU�XVH�ZLWKLQ�&RXQFLO
V�DFWLYLWLHV��WKHVH�REOLJDWLRQV�DUH�
QRW�UHFRJQLVHG�DV�OLDELOLWLHV��

1RW�ODWHU�WKDQ�RQH�\HDU ����� �����
/DWHU�WKDQ�RQH�\HDU�DQG�QRW�ODWHU�WKDQ�ILYH�\HDUV ����� �����
/DWHU�WKDQ�ILYH�\HDUV � ���

����� �����

�E��2SHUDWLQJ�OHDVH�UHFHLYDEOHV

7KH�&RXQFLO�KDV�HQWHUHG�LQWR�FRPPHUFLDO�SURSHUW\�OHDVHV�RQ�LWV�
LQYHVWPHQW�SURSHUW\��FRQVLVWLQJ�RI�VXUSOXV�IUHHKROG�RIILFH�FRPSOH[HV��
7KHVH�SURSHUWLHV�KHOG�XQGHU�RSHUDWLQJ�OHDVHV�KDYH�UHPDLQLQJ�QRQ�
FDQFHOODEOH�OHDVH�WHUPV�RI�EHWZHHQ���DQG����\HDUV��$OO�OHDVHV�LQFOXGH�D�
&3,�EDVHG�UHYLVLRQ�RI�WKH�UHQWDO�FKDUJH�DQQXDOO\�

)XWXUH�PLQLPXP�UHQWDOV�UHFHLYDEOH�XQGHU�QRQ�FDQFHOODEOH�RSHUDWLQJ�
OHDVHV�DUH�DV�IROORZV�

1RW�ODWHU�WKDQ�RQH�\HDU ����� �����
/DWHU�WKDQ�RQH�\HDU�DQG�QRW�ODWHU�WKDQ�ILYH�\HDUV ����� �����
/DWHU�WKDQ�ILYH�\HDUV ����� �����

����� �����

1RWH��� 6XSHUDQQXDWLRQ

$FFXPXODWLRQ

'HILQHG�%HQHILW

)XQGLQJ�DUUDQJHPHQWV

1HW�LQYHVWPHQW�UHWXUQV������SD
6DODU\�LQIRUPDWLRQ�������SD
3ULFH�LQIODWLRQ��&3,�������SD�

1RWHV�WR�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUW
)RU�WKH�<HDU�(QGHG����-XQH�����

&RXQFLO�PDNHV�WKH�PDMRULW\�RI�LWV�HPSOR\HU�VXSHUDQQXDWLRQ�FRQWULEXWLRQV�LQ�UHVSHFW�RI�LWV�HPSOR\HHV�WR�
WKH�/RFDO�$XWKRULWLHV�6XSHUDQQXDWLRQ�)XQG��WKH�)XQG���7KLV�)XQG�KDV�WZR�FDWHJRULHV�RI�PHPEHUVKLS��
DFFXPXODWLRQ�DQG�GHILQHG�EHQHILW��HDFK�RI�ZKLFK�LV�IXQGHG�GLIIHUHQWO\��2EOLJDWLRQV�IRU�FRQWULEXWLRQV�WR�
WKH�)XQG�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG�DV�DQ�H[SHQVH�LQ�WKH�&RPSUHKHQVLYH�,QFRPH�6WDWHPHQW�ZKHQ�WKH\�DUH�PDGH�
RU�GXH�

7KH�)XQG
V�DFFXPXODWLRQ�FDWHJRULHV��9LVLRQ�0\6XSHU�9LVLRQ�6XSHU�6DYHU��UHFHLYH�ERWK�HPSOR\HU�DQG�
HPSOR\HH�FRQWULEXWLRQV�RQ�D�SURJUHVVLYH�EDVLV��(PSOR\HU�FRQWULEXWLRQV�DUH�QRUPDOO\�EDVHG�RQ�D�IL[HG�
SHUFHQWDJH�RI�HPSOR\HH�HDUQLQJV��IRU�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG����-XQH�������WKLV�ZDV������DV�UHTXLUHG�XQGHU�
6XSHUDQQXDWLRQ�*XDUDQWHH�OHJLVODWLRQ�����

&RXQFLO�GRHV�QRW�XVH�GHILQHG�EHQHILW�DFFRXQWLQJ�IRU�LWV�GHILQHG�EHQHILW�REOLJDWLRQV�XQGHU�WKH�)XQG
V�
'HILQHG�%HQHILW�FDWHJRU\��7KLV�LV�EHFDXVH�WKH�)XQG
V�'HILQHG�%HQHILW�FDWHJRU\�LV�D�SRROHG�PXOWL�
HPSOR\HU�VSRQVRUHG�SODQ��

7KHUH�LV�QR�SURSRUWLRQDO�VSOLW�RI�WKH�GHILQHG�EHQHILW�OLDELOLWLHV��DVVHWV�RU�FRVWV�EHWZHHQ�WKH�SDUWLFLSDWLQJ�
HPSOR\HUV�DV�WKH�GHILQHG�EHQHILW�REOLJDWLRQ�LV�D�IORDWLQJ�REOLJDWLRQ�EHWZHHQ�WKH�SDUWLFLSDWLQJ�HPSOR\HUV�
DQG�WKH�RQO\�WLPH�WKDW�WKH�DJJUHJDWH�REOLJDWLRQ�LV�DOORFDWHG�WR�VSHFLILF�HPSOR\HUV�LV�ZKHQ�D�FDOO�LV�PDGH���
$V�D�UHVXOW��WKH�OHYHO�RI�SDUWLFLSDWLRQ�RI�&RXQFLO�LQ�WKH�)XQG�FDQQRW�EH�PHDVXUHG�DV�D�SHUFHQWDJH�
FRPSDUHG�ZLWK�RWKHU�SDUWLFLSDWLQJ�HPSOR\HUV��7KHUHIRUH��WKH�)XQG�$FWXDU\�LV�XQDEOH�WR�DOORFDWH�EHQHILW�
OLDELOLWLHV��DVVHWV�DQG�FRVWV�EHWZHHQ�HPSOR\HUV�IRU�WKH�SXUSRVHV�RI�$$6%������

&RXQFLO�PDNHV�HPSOR\HU�FRQWULEXWLRQV�WR�WKH�'HILQHG�%HQHILW�FDWHJRU\�RI�WKH�)XQG�DW�UDWHV�GHWHUPLQHG�
E\�WKH�7UXVWHH�RQ�WKH�DGYLFH�RI�WKH�)XQG�$FWXDU\���

$V�DW����-XQH�������DQ�LQWHULP�DFWXULDO�LQYHVWLJDWLRQ�ZDV�KHOG�DV�WKH�)XQG�SURYLGHV�OLIHWLPH�SHQVLRQV�LQ�
WKH�'HILQHG�%HQHILW�FDWHJRU\��7KH�YHVWHG�EHQHILW�LQGH[��9%,��RI�WKH�'HILQHG�%HQHILW�FDWHJRU\�RI�ZKLFK�
&RXQFLO�LV�D�FRQWULEXWLQJ�HPSOR\HU�ZDV��������7R�GHWHUPLQH�WKH�9%,��WKH�)XQG�$FWXDU\�XVHG�WKH�
IROORZLQJ�ORQJ�WHUP�DVVXPSWLRQV�

3DJH���



0RUQLQJWRQ�3HQLQVXOD�6KLUH

����������)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUW

1RWH��� 6XSHUDQQXDWLRQ��FRQW
G�

(PSOR\HU�FRQWULEXWLRQV
5HJXODU�FRQWULEXWLRQV

)XQGLQJ�FDOOV

�����,QWHULP�DFWXDULDO�LQYHVWLJDWLRQ�VXUSOXV�DPRXQWV

$�9%,�VXUSOXV�RI�������PLOOLRQ��DQG
$�WRWDO�VHUYLFH�OLDELOLW\�VXUSOXV�RI������PLOOLRQ��

�����)XOO�WULHQQLDO�DFWXDULDO�LQYHVWLJDWLRQ

2Q�WKH�EDVLV�RI�WKH�UHVXOWV�RI�WKH������LQWHULP�DFWXDULDO�LQYHVWLJDWLRQ�FRQGXFWHG�E\�WKH�)XQG�$FWXDU\���
&RXQFLO�PDNHV�HPSOR\HU�FRQWULEXWLRQV�WR�WKH�)XQG¶V�'HILQHG�%HQHILW�FDWHJRU\�DW�UDWHV�GHWHUPLQHG�E\�
WKH�)XQG¶V�7UXVWHH���)RU�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG����-XQH�������WKLV�UDWH�ZDV������RI�PHPEHUV
�VDODULHV�������
LQ������������7KLV�UDWH�ZLOO�LQFUHDVH�LQ�OLQH�ZLWK�DQ\�LQFUHDVH�WR�WKH�FRQWULEXWLRQ�UDWH��,Q�DGGLWLRQ��&RXQFLO�
UHLPEXUVHV�WKH�)XQG�WR�FRYHU�WKH�H[FHVV�RI�WKH�EHQHILWV�SDLG�DV�D�FRQVHTXHQFH�RI�UHWUHQFKPHQW�DERYH�
WKH�IXQGHG�UHVLJQDWLRQ�RU�UHWLUHPHQW�EHQHILW�

,I�WKH�'HILQHG�%HQHILW�FDWHJRU\�LV�LQ�DQ�XQVDWLVIDFWRU\�ILQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�DW�DQ�DFWXDULDO�LQYHVWLJDWLRQ�RU�
WKH�'HILQHG�%HQHILW�FDWHJRU\µV�9%,�LV�EHORZ�LWV�VKRUWIDOO�OLPLW�DW�DQ\�WLPH�RWKHU�WKDQ�WKH�GDWH�RI�WKH�
DFWXDULDO�LQYHVWLJDWLRQ��WKH�'HILQHG�%HQHILW�FDWHJRU\�KDV�D�VKRUWIDOO�IRU�WKH�SXUSRVHV�RI�636�����DQG�WKH�
)XQG�LV�UHTXLUHG�WR�SXW�D�SODQ�LQ�SODFH�VR�WKDW�WKH�VKRUWIDOO�LV�IXOO\�IXQGHG�ZLWKLQ�WKUHH�\HDUV�RI�WKH�
VKRUWIDOO�RFFXUULQJ��7KH�)XQG�PRQLWRUV�LWV�9%,�RQ�D�TXDUWHUO\�EDVLV�DQG�WKH�)XQG�KDV�VHW�LWV�VKRUWIDOO�OLPLW�
DW������,Q�WKH�HYHQW�WKDW�WKH�)XQG�$FWXDU\�GHWHUPLQHV�WKDW�WKHUH�LV�D�VKRUWIDOO�EDVHG�RQ�WKH�DERYH�
UHTXLUHPHQW��WKH�)XQG¶V�SDUWLFLSDWLQJ�HPSOR\HUV��LQFOXGLQJ�&RXQFLO��DUH�UHTXLUHG�WR�PDNH�DQ�HPSOR\HU�
FRQWULEXWLRQ�WR�FRYHU�WKH�VKRUWIDOO���8VLQJ�WKH�DJUHHG�PHWKRGRORJ\��WKH�VKRUWIDOO�DPRXQW�LV�DSSRUWLRQHG�
EHWZHHQ�WKH�SDUWLFLSDWLQJ�HPSOR\HUV�EDVHG�RQ�WKH�SUH���-XO\������DQG�SRVW����-XQH������VHUYLFH�
OLDELOLWLHV�RI�WKH�)XQG¶V�'HILQHG�%HQHILW�FDWHJRU\��WRJHWKHU�ZLWK�WKH�HPSOR\HU¶V�SD\UROO�DW����-XQH������
DQG�DW�WKH�GDWH�WKH�VKRUWIDOO�KDV�EHHQ�FDOFXODWHG��'XH�WR�WKH�QDWXUH�RI�WKH�FRQWUDFWXDO�REOLJDWLRQV�
EHWZHHQ�WKH�SDUWLFLSDWLQJ�HPSOR\HUV�DQG�WKH�)XQG��DQG�WKDW�WKH�)XQG�LQFOXGHV�OLIHWLPH�SHQVLRQHUV�DQG�
WKHLU�UHYHUVLRQDU\�EHQHILFLDULHV��LW�LV�XQOLNHO\�WKDW�WKH�)XQG�ZLOO�EH�ZRXQG�XS��,I�WKHUH�LV�D�VXUSOXV�LQ�WKH�
)XQG��WKH�VXUSOXV�FDQQRW�EH�UHWXUQHG�WR�WKH�SDUWLFLSDWLQJ�HPSOR\HUV��,Q�WKH�HYHQW�WKDW�D�SDUWLFLSDWLQJ�
HPSOR\HU�LV�ZRXQG�XS��WKH�GHILQHG�EHQHILW�REOLJDWLRQV�RI�WKDW�HPSOR\HU�ZLOO�EH�WUDQVIHUUHG�WR�WKDW�
HPSOR\HU¶V�VXFFHVVRU�

$�IXOO�DFWXDULDO�LQYHVWLJDWLRQ�LV�EHLQJ�FRQGXFWHG�IRU�WKH�)XQG¶V�SRVLWLRQ�DV�DW����-XQH�������,W�LV�
DQWLFLSDWHG�WKDW�WKLV�DFWXDULDO�LQYHVWLJDWLRQ�ZLOO�EH�FRPSOHWHG�LQ�'HFHPEHU������

3DJH���

7KH�)XQG¶V�LQWHULP�DFWXDULDO�LQYHVWLJDWLRQ�DV�DW����-XQH������LGHQWLILHG�WKH�IROORZLQJ�LQ�WKH�GHILQHG�
EHQHILW�FDWHJRU\�RI�ZKLFK�&RXQFLO�LV�D�FRQWULEXWLQJ�HPSOR\HU�

7KH�9%,�VXUSOXV�PHDQV�WKDW�WKH�PDUNHW�YDOXH�RI�WKH�IXQG¶V�DVVHWV�VXSSRUWLQJ�WKH�GHILQHG�EHQHILW�
REOLJDWLRQV�H[FHHG�WKH�YHVWHG�EHQHILWV�WKDW�WKH�GHILQHG�EHQHILW�PHPEHUV�ZRXOG�KDYH�EHHQ�HQWLWOHG�WR�LI�
WKH\�KDG�DOO�H[LWHG�RQ����-XQH�������7KH�WRWDO�VHUYLFH�OLDELOLW\�VXUSOXV�PHDQV�WKDW�WKH�FXUUHQW�YDOXH�RI�
WKH�DVVHWV�LQ�WKH�)XQG¶V�'HILQHG�%HQHILW�FDWHJRU\�SOXV�H[SHFWHG�IXWXUH�FRQWULEXWLRQV�H[FHHGV�WKH�YDOXH�
RI�H[SHFWHG�IXWXUH�EHQHILWV�DQG�H[SHQVHV��&RXQFLO�ZDV�QRWLILHG�RI�WKH����-XQH������9%,�GXULQJ�$XJXVW�
������

7KH�9%,�LV�WR�EH�XVHG�DV�WKH�SULPDU\�IXQGLQJ�LQGLFDWRU���%HFDXVH�WKH�9%,�ZDV�DERYH�������WKH������
LQWHULP��DFWXDULDO�LQYHVWLJDWLRQ�GHWHUPLQHG�WKH�'HILQHG�%HQHILW�FDWHJRU\�ZDV�LQ�D�VDWLVIDFWRU\�ILQDQFLDO�
SRVLWLRQ�DQG�WKDW�QR�FKDQJH�ZDV�QHFHVVDU\�WR�WKH�'HILQHG�%HQHILW�FDWHJRU\¶V�IXQGLQJ�DUUDQJHPHQWV�
IURP�SULRU�\HDUV�

9LVLRQ�6XSHU�KDV�DGYLVHG�WKDW�WKH�HVWLPDWHG�9%,�DW����-XQH������ZDV���������

1RWHV�WR�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUW

)RU�WKH�<HDU�(QGHG����-XQH�����



0RUQLQJWRQ�3HQLQVXOD�6KLUH

����������)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUW

1RWH��� &RQWLQJHQW�OLDELOLWLHV�DQG�FRQWLQJHQW�DVVHWV

*XDUDQWHHV�IRU�ORDQV�WR�RWKHU�HQWLWLHV

���� ����
�
��� �
���

7KH�0RUQLQJWRQ�3HQLQVXOD�6KLUH�KDV�JXDUDQWHHG�ORDQV�RI�

0RUQLQJWRQ�'LVWULFW�%DVNHWEDOO�$VVRFLDWLRQ��������� ��� ���
0W�(OL]D�%RZOV�&OXE��������� ��� ���
+DVWLQJV�%RZOV�&OXE�,QF���������� �� ���
0W�0DUWKD�%RZOV�&OXE�,QF���������� �� ��
6RPHUYLOOH�%RZOV�&OXE��������� �� ��
'URPDQD�%RZOLQJ�&OXE�,QF���������� � �

��� ���

7KH�DPRXQW�GLVFORVHG�IRU�ILQDQFLDO�JXDUDQWHH�LQ�WKLV�QRWH�LV�WKH�QRPLQDO�DPRXQW��L�H��FXUUHQW�EDODQFH��RI�
WKH�XQGHUO\LQJ�ORDQ�WKDW�LV�JXDUDQWHHG�E\�WKH�&RXQFLO��QRW�WKH�IDLU�YDOXH�RI�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�JXDUDQWHH�

1RWHV�WR�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUW

)RU�WKH�<HDU�(QGHG����-XQH�����

3DJH���



0RUQLQJWRQ�3HQLQVXOD�6KLUH

����������)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUW

1RWH���

�E��0DUNHW�ULVN

,QWHUHVW�UDWH�ULVN

���GLYHUVLILFDWLRQ�RI�LQYHVWPHQW�SURGXFW�
���PRQLWRULQJ�RI�UHWXUQ�RQ�LQYHVWPHQW��DQG
���EHQFKPDUNLQJ�RI�UHWXUQV�DQG�FRPSDULVRQ�ZLWK�EXGJHW�

,QWHUHVW�UDWH�PRYHPHQWV�KDYH�QRW�EHHQ�VXIILFLHQWO\�VLJQLILFDQW�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU�WR�KDYH�DQ�LPSDFW�RQ�WKH�&RXQFLO
V�\HDU�HQG�UHVXOW�

�F��&UHGLW�ULVN

���FRXQFLO�KDYH�D�SROLF\�IRU�HVWDEOLVKLQJ�FUHGLW�OLPLWV�IRU�WKH�HQWLWLHV�&RXQFLO�GHDO�ZLWK��
���FRXQFLO�PD\�UHTXLUH�FROODWHUDO�ZKHUH�DSSURSULDWH��DQG
���FRXQFLO�RQO\�LQYHVW�VXUSOXV�IXQGV�ZLWK�ILQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV�ZKLFK�KDYH�D�UHFRJQLVHG�FUHGLW�UDWLQJ�VSHFLILHG�LQ�FRXQFLO
V�LQYHVWPHQW�SROLF\�

7KHUH�DUH�QR�PDWHULDO�ILQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�ZKLFK�DUH�LQGLYLGXDOO\�GHWHUPLQHG�WR�EH�LPSDLUHG�

�G��/LTXLGLW\�ULVN

7R�KHOS�UHGXFH�WKHVH�ULVNV�&RXQFLO�
���KDYH�D�OLTXLGLW\�SROLF\�ZKLFK�WDUJHWV�D�PLQLPXP�DQG�DYHUDJH�OHYHO�RI�FDVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV�WR�EH�PDLQWDLQHG�
���KDYH�UHDGLO\�DFFHVVLEOH�VWDQGE\�IDFLOLWLHV�DQG�RWKHU�IXQGLQJ�DUUDQJHPHQWV�LQ�SODFH�
���KDYH�D�OLTXLGLW\�SRUWIROLR�VWUXFWXUH�WKDW�UHTXLUHV�VXUSOXV�IXQGV�WR�EH�LQYHVWHG�ZLWKLQ�YDULRXV�EDQGV�RI�OLTXLG�LQVWUXPHQWV�
���PRQLWRU�EXGJHW�WR�DFWXDO�SHUIRUPDQFH�RQ�D�UHJXODU�EDVLV��DQG
���VHW�OLPLWV�RQ�ERUURZLQJV�UHODWLQJ�WR�WKH�SHUFHQWDJH�RI�ORDQV�WR�UDWH�UHYHQXH�DQG�SHUFHQWDJH�RI�ORDQ�SULQFLSDO�UHSD\PHQWV�WR�UDWH�UHYHQXH�

8QOHVV�RWKHUZLVH�VWDWHG��WKH�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQWV�RI�ILQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�UHIOHFW�WKHLU�IDLU�YDOXH�

0DUNHW�ULVN�LV�WKH�ULVN�WKDW�WKH�IDLU�YDOXH�RU�IXWXUH�FDVK�IORZV�RI�FRXQFLO�ILQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�ZLOO�IOXFWXDWH�EHFDXVH�RI�FKDQJHV�LQ�PDUNHW�SULFHV���
7KH�&RXQFLO
V�H[SRVXUH�WR�PDUNHW�ULVN�LV�SULPDULO\�WKURXJK�LQWHUHVW�UDWH�ULVN�ZLWK�RQO\�LQVLJQLILFDQW�H[SRVXUH�WR�RWKHU�SULFH�ULVNV�DQG�QR�H[SRVXUH�
WR�IRUHLJQ�FXUUHQF\�ULVN��

1RWHV�WR�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUW
)RU�WKH�<HDU�(QGHG����-XQH�����

)LQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV
�D���2EMHFWLYHV�DQG�SROLFLHV
7KH�&RXQFLO
V�SULQFLSDO�ILQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�FRPSULVH�FDVK�DVVHWV��WHUP�GHSRVLWV��UHFHLYDEOHV��H[FOXGLQJ�VWDWXWRU\�UHFHLYDEOHV���SD\DEOHV�
�H[FOXGLQJ�VWDWXWRU\�SD\DEOHV��DQG�EDQN�ERUURZLQJV���'HWDLOV�RI�WKH�VLJQLILFDQW�DFFRXQWLQJ�SROLFLHV�DQG�PHWKRGV�DGRSWHG��LQFOXGLQJ�WKH�FULWHULD�
IRU�UHFRJQLWLRQ��WKH�EDVLV�RI�PHDVXUHPHQW�DQG�WKH�EDVLV�RQ�ZKLFK�LQFRPH�DQG�H[SHQVHV�DUH�UHFRJQLVHG��LQ�UHVSHFW�RI�HDFK�FODVV�RI�ILQDQFLDO�
DVVHW��ILQDQFLDO�OLDELOLW\�DQG�HTXLW\�LQVWUXPHQW�LV�GLVFORVHG�LQ�1RWH���RI�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV���5LVN�PDQDJHPHQW�LV�FDUULHG�RXW�E\�VHQLRU�
PDQDJHPHQW�XQGHU�SROLFLHV�DSSURYHG�E\�WKH�&RXQFLO��7KHVH�SROLFLHV�LQFOXGH�LGHQWLILFDWLRQ�DQG�DQDO\VLV�RI�WKH�ULVN�H[SRVXUH�WR�&RXQFLO�DQG�
DSSURSULDWH�SURFHGXUHV��FRQWUROV�DQG�ULVN�PLQLPLVDWLRQ�

,QWHUHVW�UDWH�ULVN�UHIHUV�WR�WKH�ULVN�WKDW�WKH�YDOXH�RI�D�ILQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQW�RU�FDVK�IORZV�DVVRFLDWHG�ZLWK�WKH�LQVWUXPHQW�ZLOO�IOXFWXDWH�GXH�WR�
FKDQJHV�LQ�PDUNHW�LQWHUHVW�UDWHV��&RXQFLO
V��LQWHUHVW�UDWH�OLDELOLW\�ULVN�DULVHV�SULPDULO\�IURP�ORQJ�WHUP�ORDQV�DQG�ERUURZLQJV�DW�IL[HG�UDWHV�ZKLFK�
H[SRVHV�FRXQFLO�WR�IDLU�YDOXH�LQWHUHVW�UDWH�ULVN���&RXQFLO�GRHV�QRW�KROG�DQ\�LQWHUHVW�EHDULQJ�ILQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�WKDW�DUH�PHDVXUHG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH��
DQG�WKHUHIRUH�KDV�QR�H[SRVXUH�WR�IDLU�YDOXH�LQWHUHVW�UDWH�ULVN���&DVK�IORZ�LQWHUHVW�UDWH�ULVN�LV�WKH�ULVN�WKDW�WKH�IXWXUH�FDVK�IORZV�RI�D�ILQDQFLDO�
LQVWUXPHQW�ZLOO�IOXFWXDWH�EHFDXVH�RI�FKDQJHV�LQ�PDUNHW�LQWHUHVW�UDWHV��&RXQFLO�KDV�PLQLPDO�H[SRVXUH�WR�FDVK�IORZ�LQWHUHVW�UDWH�ULVN�WKURXJK�LWV�
FDVK�DQG�GHSRVLWV�WKDW�DUH�DW�IORDWLQJ�UDWHV��
,QYHVWPHQW�RI�VXUSOXV�IXQGV�LV�PDGH�ZLWK�DSSURYHG�ILQDQFLDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV�XQGHU�WKH�/RFDO�*RYHUQPHQW�$FW����� ��&RXQFLO�PDQDJHV�LQWHUHVW�UDWH�
ULVN�E\�DGRSWLQJ�DQ�LQYHVWPHQW�SROLF\�WKDW�HQVXUHV�

7KHUH�KDV�EHHQ�QR�VLJQLILFDQW�FKDQJH�LQ�WKH�&RXQFLO
V�H[SRVXUH��RU�LWV�REMHFWLYHV��SROLFLHV�DQG�SURFHVVHV�IRU�PDQDJLQJ�LQWHUHVW�UDWH�ULVN�RU�WKH�
PHWKRGV�XVHG�WR�PHDVXUH�WKLV�ULVN�IURP�WKH�SUHYLRXV�UHSRUWLQJ�SHULRG�

&UHGLW�ULVN�LV�WKH�ULVN�WKDW�D�FRQWUDFWLQJ�HQWLW\�ZLOO�QRW�FRPSOHWH�LWV�REOLJDWLRQV�XQGHU�D�ILQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQW�DQG�FDXVH�&RXQFLO�WR�PDNH�D�
ILQDQFLDO�ORVV��&RXQFLO�KDYH�H[SRVXUH�WR�FUHGLW�ULVN�RQ�VRPH�ILQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�LQFOXGHG�LQ�WKH�EDODQFH�VKHHW��7R�KHOS�PDQDJH�WKLV�ULVN�

5HFHLYDEOHV�FRQVLVW�RI�D�ODUJH�QXPEHU�RI�FXVWRPHUV��VSUHDG�DFURVV�WKH�UDWHSD\HU��EXVLQHVV�DQG�JRYHUQPHQW�VHFWRUV��&UHGLW�ULVN�DVVRFLDWHG�
ZLWK�WKH�&RXQFLO
V�ILQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�LV�PLQLPDO�EHFDXVH�WKH�PDLQ�GHEWRU�LV�VHFXUHG�E\�D�FKDUJH�RYHU�WKH�UDWHDEOH�SURSHUW\��

&RXQFLO�PD\�DOVR�EH�VXEMHFW�WR�FUHGLW�ULVN�IRU�WUDQVDFWLRQV�ZKLFK�DUH�QRW�LQFOXGHG�LQ�WKH�EDODQFH�VKHHW��VXFK�DV�ZKHQ�&RXQFLO�SURYLGH�D�
JXDUDQWHH�IRU�DQRWKHU�SDUW\��'HWDLOV�RI�RXU�FRQWLQJHQW�OLDELOLWLHV�DUH�GLVFORVHG�LQ�1RWH����
7KH�PD[LPXP�H[SRVXUH�WR�FUHGLW�ULVN�DW�WKH�UHSRUWLQJ�GDWH�WR�UHFRJQLVHG�ILQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�LV�WKH�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQW��QHW�RI�DQ\�SURYLVLRQV�IRU�
LPSDLUPHQW�RI�WKRVH�DVVHWV��DV�GLVFORVHG�LQ�WKH�EDODQFH�VKHHW�DQG�QRWHV�WR�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��&RXQFLO�GRHV�QRW�KROG�DQ\�FROODWHUDO�

/LTXLGLW\�ULVN�LQFOXGHV�WKH�ULVN�WKDW��DV�D�UHVXOW�RI�FRXQFLO
V�RSHUDWLRQDO�OLTXLGLW\�UHTXLUHPHQWV�LW�ZLOO�QRW�KDYH�VXIILFLHQW�IXQGV�WR�VHWWOH�D�
WUDQVDFWLRQ�ZKHQ�UHTXLUHG�RU�ZLOO�EH�IRUFHG�WR�VHOO�D�ILQDQFLDO�DVVHW�DW�EHORZ�YDOXH�RU�PD\�EH�XQDEOH�WR�VHWWOH�RU�UHFRYHU�D�ILQDQFLDO�DVVHW�

7KH�&RXQFLO
V�PD[LPXP�H[SRVXUH�WR�OLTXLGLW\�ULVN�LV�WKH�FDUU\LQJ�DPRXQWV�RI�ILQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�DV�GLVFORVHG�RQ�WKH�IDFH�RI�WKH�EDODQFH�VKHHW�DQG�
WKH�DPRXQWV�UHODWHG�WR�ILQDQFLDO�JXDUDQWHHV�GLVFORVHG�LQ�1RWH�����DQG�LV�GHHPHG�LQVLJQLILFDQW�EDVHG�RQ�SULRU�SHULRGV
�GDWD�DQG�FXUUHQW�
DVVHVVPHQW�RI�ULVN�

7KHUH�KDV�EHHQ�QR�VLJQLILFDQW�FKDQJH�LQ�&RXQFLO
V�H[SRVXUH��RU�LWV�REMHFWLYHV��SROLFLHV�DQG�SURFHVVHV�IRU�PDQDJLQJ�OLTXLGLW\�ULVN�RU�WKH�PHWKRGV�
XVHG�WR�PHDVXUH�WKLV�ULVN�IURP�WKH�SUHYLRXV�UHSRUWLQJ�SHULRG�
:LWK�WKH�H[FHSWLRQ�RI�ERUURZLQJV��DOO�ILQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�DUH�H[SHFWHG�WR�EH�VHWWOHG�ZLWKLQ�QRUPDO�WHUPV�RI�WUDGH���'HWDLOV�RI�WKH�PDWXULW\�SURILOH�IRU�
ERUURZLQJV�DUH�GLVFORVHG�DW�1RWH����

3DJH���
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����������)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUW

1RWH��� )LQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV��FRQW
G�

�H��)DLU�YDOXH

�I��6HQVLWLYLW\�GLVFORVXUH�DQDO\VLV

���$�SDUDOOHO�VKLIW�RI�����DQG�����LQ�PDUNHW�LQWHUHVW�UDWHV��$8'��IURP�\HDU�HQG�UDWHV�RI�������

7DNLQJ�LQWR�DFFRXQW�SDVW�SHUIRUPDQFH��IXWXUH�H[SHFWDWLRQV��HFRQRPLF�IRUHFDVWV��DQG�PDQDJHPHQW
V�NQRZOHGJH�DQG�H[SHULHQFH�RI�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�
PDUNHWV���&RXQFLO�EHOLHYHV�WKH�IROORZLQJ�PRYHPHQWV�DUH�
UHDVRQDEO\�SRVVLEOH
�RYHU�WKH�QH[W����PRQWKV�

7KHVH�PRYHPHQWV�ZLOO�QRW�KDYH�D�PDWHULDO�LPSDFW�RQ�WKH�YDOXDWLRQ�RI�&RXQFLO
V�ILQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV��QRU�ZLOO�WKH\�KDYH�D�PDWHULDO�
LPSDFW�RQ�WKH�UHVXOWV�RI�&RXQFLO
V�RSHUDWLRQV�

3DJH���

)DLU�YDOXH�KLHUDUFK\
&RXQFLO
V�ILQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�DUH�QRW�YDOXHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�IDLU�YDOXH�KLHUDUFK\���&RXQFLO
V�ILQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�DUH�
PHDVXUHG�DW�DPRUWLVHG�FRVW��

)RU�WKH�<HDU�(QGHG����-XQH�����
1RWHV�WR�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUW



0RUQLQJWRQ�3HQLQVXOD�6KLUH
����������)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUW

����
1R�

1RWH��� 5HODWHG�SDUW\�GLVFORVXUHV

�L��� 5HODWHG�3DUWLHV

3DUHQW�HQWLW\
0RUQLQJWRQ�3HQLQVXOD�6KLUH�LV�WKH�SDUHQW�HQWLW\�

6XEVLGLDULHV�DQG�$VVRFLDWHV
0RUQLQJWRQ�3HQLQVXOD�&HPHWHU\�7UXVW

�LL��� .H\�0DQDJHPHQW�3HUVRQQHO

&RXQFLOORUV &RXQFLOORU�%HY�&RORPE��HOHFWHG������WR�FXUUHQW���0D\RU�IURP����1RYHPEHU������
&RXQFLOORU�$QWRQHOOD�&HOL��GHFODUHG�HOHFWHG�RQ���1RYHPEHU������WR�FXUUHQW�
&RXQFLOORU�%U\DQ�3D\QH��GHFODUHG�HOHFWHG�RQ���1RYHPEHU������WR�FXUUHQW�
&RXQFLOORU�'DYLG�*LOO��GHFODUHG�HOHFWHG�RQ���1RYHPEHU������WR�FXUUHQW�
&RXQFLOORU�)UDQN�0DUWLQ��GHFODUHG�HOHFWHG�RQ���1RYHPEHU������WR�FXUUHQW�
&RXQFLOORU�+XJK�)UDVHU��GHFODUHG�HOHFWHG�RQ���1RYHPEHU������WR�FXUUHQW�
&RXQFLOORU�-XOLH�(GJH��GHFODUHG�HOHFWHG�RQ���1RYHPEHU������WR�FXUUHQW�
&RXQFLOORU�.DWH�5RSHU��GHFODUHG�HOHFWHG�RQ���1RYHPEHU������WR�FXUUHQW�
&RXQFLOORU�5RVLH�&ODUN��GHFODUHG�HOHFWHG�RQ���1RYHPEHU������WR�FXUUHQW�
&RXQFLOORU�6DP�+HDUQ��GHFODUHG�HOHFWHG�RQ���1RYHPEHU������WR�FXUUHQW�
&RXQFLOORU�6LPRQ�%URRNV��GHFODUHG�HOHFWHG�RQ���1RYHPEHU������WR�FXUUHQW�
&RXQFLOORU�$QGUHZ�'L[RQ��HOHFWHG������WR����2FWREHU������
&RXQFLOORU�$QQH�6KDZ��HOHFWHG������WR����2FWREHU������
&RXQFLOORU�'DYLG�*DUQRFN��HOHFWHG������WR����2FWREHU������
&RXQFLOORU�'DYLG�*LEE��HOHFWHG������WR����2FWREHU������
&RXQFLOORU�*UDKDP�3LWWRFN��HOHFWHG������WR����2FWREHU������
&RXQFLOORU�7LP�5RGJHUV��HOHFWHG������WR����2FWREHU������
&RXQFLOORU�7LP�:RRG��HOHFWHG������WR����2FWREHU������

7RWDO�1XPEHU�RI�&RXQFLOORUV ��
.H\�0DQDJHPHQW�3HUVRQQHO

&KLHI�([HFXWLYH�2IILFHU���&DUO�&RZLH
&KLHI�2SHUDWLQJ�2IILFHU���$OLVRQ�/HLJKWRQ
&KLHI�)LQDQFLDO�2IILFHU���0DWWKHZ�*UHHQ
&KLHI�,QIRUPDWLRQ�2IILFHU���0DUWLQ�+RSOH\
([HFXWLYH�0DQDJHU�+XPDQ�5HVRXUFHV���0DUQLH�:LOOLDPV
'LUHFWRU�&RPPXQLWLHV���5RELQ�$GDPV
*RYHUQDQFH�0DQDJHU���-RVHSK�6SLWHUL
*HQHUDO�&RXQVHO���'DYLG�&DUULQJWRQ

&KLHI�([HFXWLYH�2IILFHU�DQG�RWKHU�.H\�0DQDJHPHQW�3HUVRQQHO �
7RWDO�.H\�0DQDJHPHQW�3HUVRQQHO ��

�LLL�� 5HPXQHUDWLRQ�RI�.H\�0DQDJHPHQW�3HUVRQQHO ����
�����

7RWDO�UHPXQHUDWLRQ�RI�NH\�PDQDJHPHQW�SHUVRQQHO�ZDV�DV�IROORZV�
6KRUW�WHUP�EHQHILWV �����
/RQJ�WHUP�EHQHILWV ���
3RVW�HPSOR\PHQW�EHQHILW ��
7RWDO �����

����
1R�

������������ �
�
�
�

������������������� �
������������������� �
������������������� �
������������������� �
������������������� �
������������������� �
������������������� �
������������������� �

��

1RWHV�WR�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUW
)RU�WKH�<HDU�(QGHG����-XQH�����

'HWDLOV�RI�SHUVRQV�KROGLQJ�WKH�SRVLWLRQ�RI�&RXQFLOORU�RU�RWKHU�PHPEHUV�RI�NH\�
PDQDJHPHQW�SHUVRQQHO�DW�DQ\�WLPH�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU�DUH�

7KH�QXPEHUV�RI�NH\�PDQDJHPHQW�SHUVRQQHO�ZKRVH�WRWDO�UHPXQHUDWLRQ�IURP�
&RXQFLO�DQG�DQ\�UHODWHG�HQWLWLHV��IDOO�ZLWKLQ�WKH�IROORZLQJ�EDQGV�

�����������������

�����������������
�����������������

3DJH���
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����������)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUW

1RWH��� 5HODWHG�SDUW\�GLVFORVXUHV��FRQW
G�

�LY�

�Y�

�YL�

�YLL�

1RWH��� 6HQLRU�2IILFHU�5HPXQHUDWLRQ

7KH�QXPEHU�RI�6HQLRU�2IILFHUV�DUH�VKRZQ�EHORZ�LQ�WKHLU�UHOHYDQW�LQFRPH�EDQGV�

���� ����
1R� 1R�
� �
� �
�
� �

� �
� �
� �

� �
� �

� �
� �

� �
�� ��

����� �����

1RWH��� (YHQWV�RFFXUULQJ�DIWHU�EDODQFH�GDWH�
1R�PDWWHUV�KDYH�RFFXUUHG�DIWHU�EDODQFH�GDWH�WKDW�UHTXLUH�GLVFORVXUH�LQ�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�UHSRUW�

�������������������

�������������������

�������������������
�������������������

1R�EDODQFHV�DUH�RXWVWDQGLQJ�DW�WKH�HQG�RI�WKH�UHSRUWLQJ�SHULRG�LQ�UHODWLRQ�WR�
WUDQVDFWLRQV�ZLWK�UHODWHG�SDUWLHV�ZKLFK�UHTXLUH�GLVFORVXUH�

�������������������

������������

2XWVWDQGLQJ�EDODQFHV�ZLWK�UHODWHG�SDUWLHV�

3DJH���

7RWDO�5HPXQHUDWLRQ�IRU�WKH�UHSRUWLQJ�\HDU�IRU�6HQLRU�2IILFHUV�LQFOXGHG�DERYH��

&RPPLWPHQWV�WR�IURP�UHODWHG�SDUWLHV

�������������������

�������������������

1R�DJJUHJDWH�DPRXQW�RI�FRPPLWPHQWV��LQ�H[LVWHQFH�DW�EDODQFH�GDWH�WKDW�KDYH�
EHHQ�PDGH��JXDUDQWHHG�RU�VHFXUHG�E\�WKH�FRXQFLO�WR�D�UHODWHG�SDUW\�ZKLFK�UHTXLUH�
GLVFORVXUH�

�������������������
�������������������

/RDQV�WR�IURP�UHODWHG�SDUWLHV

1R�ORDQV�KDYH�EHHQ�PDGH��JXDUDQWHHG�RU�VHFXUHG�E\�WKH�FRXQFLO�WR�D�UHVSRQVLEOH�
SHUVRQ�RI�WKH�FRXQFLO��RU�D�UHODWHG�SDUW\�RI�D�UHVSRQVLEOH�SHUVRQ�GXULQJ�WKH�
UHSRUWLQJ�\HDU�ZKLFK�UHTXLUH�GLVFORVXUH�

�������������������
�������������������

$�6HQLRU�2IILFHU�LV�DQ�RIILFHU�RI�&RXQFLO�RWKHU�WKDQ�.H\�0DQDJHPHQW�3HUVRQQHO��

D��KDV�PDQDJHPHQW�UHVSRQVLELOLWLHV�DQG�UHSRUWV�GLUHFWO\�WR�WKH�&KLHI�([HFXWLYH��RU
E��ZKRVH�WRWDO�DQQXDO�UHPXQHUDWLRQ�H[FHHGV���������

,QFRPH�5DQJH�

7UDQVDFWLRQV�ZLWK�UHODWHG�SDUWLHV�

'XULQJ�WKH�SHULRG�&RXQFLO�HQWHUHG�LQWR�WKH�IROORZLQJ�WUDQVDFWLRQV�ZLWK�UHODWHG�SDUWLHV�

1RWHV�WR�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUW
)RU�WKH�<HDU�(QGHG����-XQH�����

ZĞƐƉŽŶƐŝďůĞ�KĨĨŝĐĞƌ
WŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ�,ĞůĚ�

;ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ƌĞůĂƚĞĚ�ƉĂƌƚŝĞƐ�ŽĨ�
ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐŝďůĞ�ŽĨĨŝĐĞƌͿ

^ƵƉƉůŝĞƌͬ�ŶƚŝƚǇ
EĂƚƵƌĞ�ŽĨ�dƌĂŶƐĂĐƚŝŽŶƐ�

;ŽŶ�ŶŽƌŵĂů�ĐŽŵŵĞƌĐŝĂů�ƚĞƌŵƐͿ
dƌĂŶƐĂĐƚŝŽŶ��ŵŽƵŶƚ�

;ΨΖϬϬϬͿ

�ŽƵŶĐŝůůŽƌ��ŶƚŽŶĞůůĂ��Ğůŝ
�ŽƵŶĐŝůůŽƌ�,ƵŐŚ�&ƌĂƐĞƌ
�ŽƵŶĐŝůůŽƌ�<ĂƚŝĞ�ZŽƉĞƌ

dƌƵƐƚĞĞƐ DŽƌŶŝŶŐƚŽŶ�WĞŶŝŶƐƵůĂ��ĞŵĞƚĞƌǇ�dƌƵƐƚ �ŵŽƵŶƚ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�
ďǇ��ŽƵŶĐŝů

Ϯϳ

�ŽƵŶĐŝůůŽƌ�^ĂŵƵĞů�,ĞĂƌŶ �ŽĂƌĚ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ dĂŶƚŝ�WĂƌŬ�^ŽĐŝĂů��ŶƚĞƌƉƌŝƐĞ�>d� WůĂĐĞŵĂŬŝŶŐ�ŐƌĂŶƚ ϱ

�ůŝƐŽŶ�>ĞŝŐŚƚŽŶ �ŝƌĞĐƚŽƌ /ŶƐƚŝƚƵƚĞ�ŽĨ�WƵďůŝĐ�tŽƌŬƐ��ŶŐŝŶĞĞƌŝŶŐ�
�ƵƐƚƌĂůĂƐŝĂ�;sŝĐƚŽƌŝĂ��ŝǀŝƐŝŽŶͿ�>ƚĚ

�ŶŶƵĂů�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐŚŝƉ�ĨĞĞƐ ϭϵ
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����������)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUW

1RWH��� 3ULRU�SHULRG�DGMXVWPHQWV

3URSHUW\��LQIUDVWUXFWXUH��SODQW�DQG�HTXLSPHQW

3DJH���

1RWHV�WR�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUW
)RU�WKH�<HDU�(QGHG����-XQH�����

'XH�WR�KLVWRULFDO�GDWD�FROOHFWLRQ�PHWKRGV��WKH�YDOXH�RI�LQIUDVWUXFWXUH�DVVHWV�ZHUH�PLVVWDWHG��&RXQFLO�KDV�FRQWLQXHG�WKH�
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

To the Councillors of Mornington Peninsula Shire Council 

Opinion I have audited the accompanying performance statement of Mornington 

Peninsula Shire Council (the council) which comprises the:  

 description of municipality for the year ended 30 June 2017 

 sustainable capacity indicators for the year ended 30 June 2017 

 service performance indicators for the year ended 30 June 2017 

 financial performance indicators for the year ended 30 June 2017 

 other information and 

 the certification of the performance statement. 

In my opinion, the performance statement of Mornington Peninsula Shire 

Council in respect of the year ended 30 June 2017 presents fairly, in all 

material respects, in accordance with the performance reporting requirements 

of Part 6 of the Local Government Act 1989. 

Basis for Opinion I have conducted my audit in accordance with the Audit Act 1994 which 

incorporates the Australian Standards on Assurance Engagements. My 

responsibilities under the Act are further described in the Auditor’s 

responsibilities for the audit of the performance statement section of my 

report.  

My independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. I and my staff 

are independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of 

the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of 

Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of 

the performance statement in Australia and have also fulfilled our other 

ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 

to provide a basis for my opinion. 

Councillors' 

responsibilities for the 

performance 

statement  

The Councillors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the 

performance statement in accordance with the performance reporting 

requirements of the Local Government Act 1989 and for such internal control 

as the Councillors determines is necessary to enable the preparation and fair 

presentation of the statement of performance that is free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
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Auditor’s 

responsibilities for the 

audit of the 

performance 

statement 

As required by the Audit Act 1994, my responsibility is to express an opinion 

on the performance statement based on the audit. My objectives for the audit 

are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the performance 

statement as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to 

fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 

an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Standards on Assurance 

Engagements will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 

individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial 

report.  

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Standards on Assurance 

Engagements, I exercise professional judgement and maintain professional 

scepticism throughout the audit. I also:  

 identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of performance 

statement, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 

procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 

not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 

than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 

forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 

internal control. 

 obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in 

order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 

effectiveness of the council’s internal control 

 evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the 

statement of performance, including the disclosures, and whether the 

statement of performance represents the underlying events and results 

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

I communicate with the Councillors regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 

any significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my audit. 

 

 

 

 

 
MELBOURNE 

22 September 2017 

Tim Loughnan 

as delegate for the Auditor-General of Victoria 
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Performance Statement 
For the year ended 30 June 2017 
 

 Description of municipality 

 Our Place 
Mornington Peninsula Shire covers 723 square kilometres of land with a coastline that extends for 
192 kilometres (approximately 10 per cent of Victoria’s total). The region is one of Melbourne’s 
premier holiday and retirement destinations and has magnificent landscapes, coasts and beaches 
that are of state significance and attract 4.7 million visitors every year. 
 
Our Community 
The Shire has 40 towns and villages spread across the peninsula, with the majority of the residential 
population living along the coastline.  The Shire has an estimated permanent resident population of 
160,862, as well as a non-resident population who spend part of the week, or their holidays, on the 
peninsula. Many beach holiday houses are based along the Port Phillip coastline, with the 
population swelling by up to 30 per cent in the summer months.  
 
Our Environment 
Approximately 70 per cent of the Shire is retained as rural land within the Green Wedge planning 
zone, whilst the other 30 per cent is taken up by towns and villages. Within the Green Wedge, there 
are areas of highly productive farmland as well as highly significant landscapes and ecosystems. The 
Mornington Peninsula and Western Port have become part of the world-wide network of biosphere 
reserves recognised by the United Nations. The region has been recognised for its: high biological 
diversity; many significant, rare native plants and vegetation; wetlands; sites of geomorphological 
significance; remnant indigenous vegetation; highly scenic landscape values; and sites of historic 
importance. 
 
Our Economy 
The Shire has a strong $12 billion local economy, with $6.3 billion in gross regional product.  There 
are almost 14,000 businesses from a diverse range of industries including retail, manufacturing, 
construction and business services. The region also has a distinguished agricultural history, including 
beef, viticulture (grapes) and horticulture (fruit, vegetables and flowers), with the existing food and 
wine producers being recognised as world class and industry leaders in their respective fields. 
Tourism is another sector that plays a significant role in our local economy; contributing 11 per cent 
(directly and indirectly) to the region’s Gross Regional Product and employment. 
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Sustainable Capacity Indicators 
For the year ended 30 June 2017 
 

  Results 
 

 

 Indicator/measure 2015 2016 2017 Material Variations 
 Population     
 Expenses per head of municipal 

population $1,258.89 $1,288.86 $1,285.65 No material variation. 

  [Total expenses / Municipal 
population] 

   

      
 Infrastructure per head of municipal 

population 
$7,981.65 $7,767.51 $7,909.56 No material variation. 

  [Value of infrastructure / Municipal 
population] 

   

      
 Population density per length of 

road 
90.15 90.49 94.68 No material variation. 

   [Municipal population / Kilometres 
of local roads] 

   

 Own-source revenue     No material variation. 

 
 Own-source revenue per head of 

municipal population $1,109.97 $1,172.34 $1,185.13 

 [Own-source revenue / Municipal 
population] 

   

 Recurrent grants     Increase is driven by an increase in 'Grants - recurrent' for the 2016/17 financial 
year represented by the decision by the Commonwealth Government to bring 
forward 50% of the Financial Assistant Grant for the 2017/2018 financial year, 
with payment received in June 2017. 
 

 Recurrent grants per head of 
municipal population $187.04 $124.87 $161.89 

 [Recurrent grants / Municipal 
population] 

   

 Disadvantage     No material variation. 

 
 Relative socio-economic 

disadvantage 
8.00 8.00 8.00 

 [Index of Relative Socio-economic 
Disadvantage by decile] 
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  Definitions 
"adjusted underlying revenue" means total income other than: 
 (a) non-recurrent grants used to fund capital expenditure; and  
 (b) non-monetary asset contributions; and  
 (c) contributions to fund capital expenditure from sources other than those referred to above 
“infrastructure” means non-current property, plant and equipment excluding land 
"local road" means a sealed or unsealed road for which the council is the responsible road authority under the Road 
Management Act 2004 
"population" means the resident population estimated by council 
"own-source revenue" means adjusted underlying revenue other than revenue that is not under the control of council 
(including government grants) 
"relative socio-economic disadvantage", in relation to a municipality, means the relative socio-economic disadvantage, 
expressed as a decile for the relevant financial year, of the area in which the municipality is located according to the 
Index of Relative Socio-Economic Disadvantage (Catalogue Number 2033.0.55.001) of SEIFA 
"SEIFA" means the Socio-Economic Indexes for Areas published from time to time by the Australian Bureau of Statistics 
on its Internet website 
"unrestricted cash" means all cash and cash equivalents other than restricted cash. 
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Service Performance Indicators 
For the year ended 30 June 2017 
 

  Results 
 

 

 Service/indicator/measure 2015 2016 2017 Material Variations 
 Aquatic facilities     

 
The reduction in utilisation of aquatic facilities is a result of lower attendance at 
Pelican Park Recreation Centre (-5.4%) largely driven by competition from newer 
facilities. Attendance at Crib Point Pool, a seasonal outdoor facility, increased by 
over one-fifth (+22.9%). 

 

 Utilisation    
 Utilisation of aquatic facilities 1.81 1.76 1.62 
 [Number of visits to aquatic 

facilities / Municipal population] 
   

 Animal management     
 
Increased prosecutions reflect the increased demand through 2016/17. In this 
period there were 370 reported dog attack and dog rush cases. 

 

 Health and safety    
 Animal management prosecutions 50.00 40.00 52.00 
 [Number of successful animal 

management prosecutions] 
   

 Food safety     
 
From 1 July 2016, 'Critical and major non-compliance outcome notifications' will be 
reported by calendar year. Previously this indicator was reported by financial year. 
This has been implemented to better align reporting with the Department of Health 
and Human Services. This may result in some variances year on year. 

A risk-based approach has been adopted by the Shire’s Environmental Health Team 
in relation to food safety. The team will be striving to achieve as close as possible to 
100% of critical and major non-compliances followed-up before the end of the 
calendar year. 

 
 

 Health and safety    
 Critical and major non-compliance 

notifications 92.16% 89.55% 93.17% 

 [Number of critical non-compliance 
notifications and major non-
compliance notifications about a 
food premises followed up / 
Number of critical non-compliance 
notifications and major non-
compliance notifications about 
food premises] x100 
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  Results 
 

 

 Service/indicator/measure 2015 2016 2017 Material Variations 
 Governance     

 
The trend shown is consistent with the rest of the state. The Mornington Peninsula 
Shire actively seeks community feedback with a number of metrics we use to track 
customer satisfaction. However, this trend is of concern and further community 
engagement will be conducted.  

 

 Satisfaction     
 Satisfaction with council decisions 57.00 56.00 52.00 
 [Community satisfaction rating out 

of 100 with how council has 
performed in making decisions in 
the interest of the community] 

   

 Home and community care     
 
Reporting on HACC ceased on 1 July 2016 due to the introduction of the 
Commonwealth Government's NDIS and CHSP programs 

 

 Participation    
 Participation in HACC service 41.91% 35.86% N/A 
 [Number of people that received a 

HACC service / Municipal target 
population for HACC services] x100 

   

      
 Participation     

Reporting on HACC ceased on 1 July 2016 due to the introduction of the 
Commonwealth Government's NDIS and CHSP programs 

 

 Participation in HACC service by 
CALD people 

30.56% 27.78% N/A 

 [Number of CALD people who 
receive a HACC service / Municipal 
target population in relation to 
CALD people for HACC services] 
x100 
 
 
 

   

 Libraries     
Active library members remains stable (-1.13%). The total number of borrowers 
rose slightly (+2.6%), just behind the increase in the Estimated Residential 
Population (+3.8%). 

 Participation     
 Active library members 18.73% 19.31% 19.09% 
 [Number of active library members 

/ Municipal population] x100 
 

   



7 

 

  Results 
 

 

 Service/indicator/measure 2015 2016 2017 Material Variations 
 Maternal and child health     

 
Maternal and child health nurses actively promote the service and provide a 
flexible and responsive approach. The team proactively deliver an outreach service 
to clients, especially those who find it difficult to access the centres, delivering the 
Key Ages and Stages consultations in the client’s own homes or in Kindergartens 
and Early Learning Centres. 

 

 Participation    
 Participation in the MCH service 73.39% 74.55% 71.96% 
 [Number of children who attend 

the MCH service at least once (in 
the year) / Number of children 
enrolled in the MCH service] x100 

   

      
 
The maternal and child health team developed a service innovation in 2016-17 
focussing on increasing participation of Aboriginal children in the maternal and 
child health service. All team members undertook professional development 
activities in cultural sensitivity and responsiveness. It should be noted that as the 
total number of Aboriginal children enrolled in the MCH is a low figure, larger year 
on year variations are expected.  

 Participation    
 Participation in the MCH service by 

Aboriginal children 
76.04% 69.03% 73.25% 

 [Number of Aboriginal children who 
attend the MCH service at least 
once (in the year) / Number of 
Aboriginal children enrolled in the 
MCH service] x100 

   

 Roads     
 
This result is not significantly different to either the state-wide result or last year’s 
result and should be read in conjunction with the ‘sealed local road requests’ and 
‘sealed local roads maintained to condition standards’ results which indicate that 
the level of service requests related to sealed local roads remains stable while the 
overall condition of roads has improved over the last two years. We will continue to 
monitor the progress of this indictor closely and advocate for improvements in all 
roads across the Shire.  

 

 Satisfaction     
 Satisfaction with sealed local roads 58.00 55.00 54.00 
 [Community satisfaction rating out 

of 100 with how council has 
performed on the condition of 
sealed local roads] 
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  Results 
 

 

 Service/indicator/measure 2015 2016 2017 Material Variations 
 Statutory Planning     

 
The percentage of the Shire’s planning decisions upheld at VCAT has remained 
stable (-1.45%). It is important to note that this indicator includes section 79 VCAT 
decisions which are ‘failure to grant a planning permit’ reviews. By including these 
applications as ‘decisions’, applications which Council has not determined impact 
the results. If these appeals types were excluded from the calculation, the result 
would be 78.05%.  

 Decision making     
 Council planning decisions upheld 

at VCAT 
56.67% 67.65% 66.67% 

 [Number of VCAT decisions that did 
not set aside council’s decision in 
relation to a planning application / 
Number of VCAT decisions in 
relation to planning applications] 
x100 
 

   

 Waste Collection     
 
The Shire’s kerbside green waste service is an opt-in service.  Our participation rate 
for this service continues to increase; therefore, the volume of green waste also 
continues to increase.  The commencement of a new summer weekly kerbside 
recycling collection service also resulted in an increase of recyclable material 
received. 

 Waste diversion    
 Kerbside collection waste diverted 

from landfill 49.53% 50.01% 50.95% 

 [Weight of recyclables and green 
organics collected from kerbside 
bins / Weight of garbage, 
recyclables and green organics 
collected from kerbside bins] x100 

   

  Definitions 
"Aboriginal child" means a child who is an Aboriginal person  
"Aboriginal person" has the same meaning as in the Aboriginal Heritage Act 2006   
"active library member" means a member of a library who has borrowed a book from the library  
"annual report" means an annual report prepared by a council under sections 131, 132 and 133 of the Act 
“CALD” means culturally and linguistically diverse and refers to persons born outside Australia in a country whose 
national language is not English 
“class 1 food premises” means food premises, within the meaning of the Food Act 1984, that have been declared as class 
1 food premises under section 19C of that Act  
“class 2 food premises” means food premises, within the meaning of the Food Act 1984 , that have been declared as 
class 2 food premises under section 19C of that Act  
"Community Care Common Standards "means the Community Care Common Standards for the delivery of HACC 
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services, published from time to time by the Commonwealth 
"critical non-compliance outcome notification" means a notification received by council under section 19N(3) or (4) of 
the Food Act 1984 , or advice given to council by an authorized officer under that Act, of a deficiency that poses an 
immediate serious threat to public health  
"food premises" has the same meaning as in the Food Act 1984   
"HACC program" means the Home and Community Care program established under the Agreement entered into for the 
purpose of the Home and Community Care Act 1985 of the Commonwealth  
"HACC service" means home help, personal care or community respite provided under the HACC program  
"local road" means a sealed or unsealed road for which the council is the responsible road authority under the Road 
Management Act 2004 
"major non-compliance outcome notification" means a notification received by a council under section 19N(3) or (4) of 
the Food Act 1984, or advice given to council by an authorized officer under that Act, of a deficiency that does not pose 
an immediate serious threat to public health but may do so if no remedial action is taken  
"MCH" means the Maternal and Child Health Service provided by a council to support the health and development of 
children within the municipality from birth until school age 
"population" means the resident population estimated by council  
"target population" has the same meaning as in the Agreement entered into for the purposes of the Home and 
Community Care Act 1985 of the Commonwealth  
"WorkSafe reportable aquatic facility safety incident" means an incident relating to a council aquatic facility that is 
required to be notified to the Victorian WorkCover Authority under Part 5 of the Occupational Health and Safety Act 
2004.  
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Financial Performance Indicators 
For the year ended 30 June 2017 
 
  Results 

 
Forecasts  

 Dimension/indicator/meas
ure 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 Material Variations 

 Efficiency         
 Revenue level         

The trend is driven by rate capping 
assumptions and anticipated levels 
of supplementary rating 
assessments  
 

 Average residential rate 
per residential property 
assessment 

$1,395.50 $1,463.84 $1,510.42 $1,540.63 $1,571.44 $1,602.87 $1,634.93 

 [Residential rate revenue / 
Number of residential 
property assessments] 

       

         
 Expenditure level        Historical expense levels in key 

expense categories drive the trend 
in expenses per assessment - 
particularly labour and 
maintenance contract costs  
 

 Expenses per property 
assessment 

$1,968.86 $1,311.84 $2,079.29 $2,113.40 $2,135.03 $2,217.82 $2,304.86 

 [Total expenses / Number 
of property assessments]  

       

 Workforce turnover         Restructuring has led to a higher 
result in 2015/16 - the ratio is 
expected to return to more 
'normal' levels over the coming 
years  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Resignations and 
terminations compared to 
average staff 

18.66% 15.66% 13.05% 13.87% 13.80% 13.80% 13.80% 

 [Number of permanent 
staff resignations and 
terminations / Average 
number of permanent staff 
for the financial year] x100 
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  Results Forecasts  
 Dimension/indicator/meas

ure 
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 Material Variations 

 Liquidity        This is driven by an increase in 
current assets, mainly an increase 
in cash invested in term deposits as 
not all capital expenditure projects 
were completed in the current year 
and have been carried forward.  
 

 Working capital         
 Current assets compared to 

current liabilities 151.94% 189.63% 198.89% 141.16% 139.98% 131.66% 117.06% 

 [Current assets / Current 
liabilities] x100 

       

 Unrestricted cash        This unfavourable variance is due 
to the majority of cash ($58.6m) 
being invested in term deposits 
over 90 days as at year end. 
 

 Unrestricted cash 
compared to current 
liabilities 83.14% 131.93% -7.97% 64.14% 54.79% 44.39% 27.19% 

 [Unrestricted cash / 
Current liabilities] x100 

        

 Obligations         
 Asset renewal         

There has been a large increase in 
asset renewal. The expenditure on 
asset renewal is based on the 
Council's asset renewal and 
maintenance program.  
 

 Asset renewal compared to 
depreciation 

74.08% 58.80% 86.67% 68.54% 66.36% 65.40% 64.46% 

 [Asset renewal expenses / 
Asset depreciation] x100 
 

       

         
 Loans and borrowings         
 Loans and borrowings 

compared to rates 
24.36% 17.89% 12.33% 10.47% 7.44% 5.47% 4.05% The Council has a debt reduction 

strategy and has not borrowed in 
the current year. 
 
 
 
 
 

 [Interest bearing loans and 
borrowings / Rate revenue] 
x100 
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  Results Forecasts  
 Dimension/indicator/meas

ure 
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 Material Variations 

 Loans and borrowings          
 Loans and borrowings 

repayments compared to 
rates 

12.52% 6.09% 5.73% 5.33% 3.35% 2.19% 1.58% 

The Council has a debt reduction 
strategy and due to loans expired 
during the year, repayments were 
reduced. 

 [Interest and principal 
repayments on interest 
bearing loans and 
borrowings / Rate revenue] 
x100 
 

       

 Indebtedness          
 
Variance is mainly due to reduction 
of Council's debt. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Non-current liabilities 
compared to own source 
revenue 

17.94% 12.99% 9.48% 9.19% 6.83% 5.59% 4.84% 

 [Non-current liabilities / 
Own source revenue] x100 
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  Results Forecasts  
 Dimension/indicator/meas

ure 
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 Dimension/indicator/measure 

 Operating position         
 
Variance is driven by increase in 
surplus/-deficit for the year and 
decrease in Grants capital - non-
recurrent. The increase in surplus is 
driven by the overall increase in 
revenue and the reason for the 
decrease in Grants capital - non-
recurrent is due to not receiving 
the 'roads and intersections' and 
'streetscape works' grants. 

 Adjusted underlying result        
 Adjusted underlying surplus 

(or deficit) 5.21% 2.66% 5.12% 2.58% 3.80% 2.51% 1.15% 

 [Adjusted underlying 
surplus (deficit)/ Adjusted 
underlying revenue] x100 

       

 Stability         
 
No material variation. 

 

 Rates concentration         
 Rates compared to 

adjusted underlying 
revenue 

69.06% 73.29% 71.88% 74.73% 74.69% 74.73% 74.78% 

 [Rate revenue / Adjusted 
underlying revenue] x100 

       

          
 Rates effort          

No material variation. 

 
 
 
 
 

 Rates compared to 
property values 0.24% 0.26% 0.24% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.26% 

 [Rate revenue / Capital 
improved value of rateable 
properties in the 
municipality ] x100 
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  Definitions 
"adjusted underlying revenue" means total income other than: 
 (a) non-recurrent grants used to fund capital expenditure; and  
 (b) non-monetary asset contributions; and  
 (c) contributions to fund capital expenditure from sources other than those referred to above 
"adjusted underlying surplus (or deficit)" means adjusted underlying revenue less total expenditure 
"asset renewal expenditure" means expenditure on an existing asset or on replacing an existing asset that returns the service capability of the 
asset to its original capability 
“current assets” has the same meaning as in the AAS 
"current liabilities" has the same meaning as in the AAS 
“non-current assets” means all assets other than current assets 
"non-current liabilities" means all liabilities other than current liabilities 
“non-recurrent grant” means a grant obtained on the condition that it be expended in a specified manner and is not expected to be received 
again during the period covered by a council's Strategic Resource Plan 
"own-source revenue" means adjusted underlying revenue other than revenue that is not under the control of council (including government 
grants 
"population "means the resident population estimated by council 
“rate revenue” means revenue from general rates, municipal charges, service rates and service charges 
"recurrent grant "means a grant other than a non-recurrent grant 
"residential rates" means revenue from general rates, municipal charges, service rates and service charges levied on residential properties 
"restricted cash" means cash and cash equivalents, within the meaning of the AAS, that are not available for use other than for a purpose for 
which it is restricted, and includes cash to be used to fund capital works expenditure from the previous financial year 
"unrestricted cash" means all cash and cash equivalents other than restricted cash. 
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Other Information 
For the year ended 30 June 2017 
 

 1. Basis of preparation 
 Council is required to prepare and include a performance statement within its annual report. The 

performance statement includes the results of the prescribed sustainable capacity, service 
performance and financial performance indicators and measures together with a description of the 
municipal district and an explanation of material variations in the results. This statement has been 
prepared to meet the requirements of the Local Government Act 1989 and Local Government 
(Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014. 

  
 Where applicable the results in the performance statement have been prepared on accounting 

bases consistent with those reported in the Financial Statements. The other results are based on 
information drawn from council information systems or from third parties (e.g. Australian Bureau of 
Statistics). 

  
 The performance statement presents the actual results for the current year and for the prescribed 

financial performance indicators and measures, the results forecast by the council’s strategic 
resource plan. The Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 requires 
explanation of any material variations in the results contained in the performance statement. 
Council has adopted materiality thresholds relevant to each indicator and measure and explanations 
have not been provided for variations below the materiality thresholds unless the variance is 
considered to be material because of its nature. 

  
 The forecast figures included in the performance statement are those adopted by council in its 

strategic resource plan on 13 June 2017 and which forms part of the council plan. The strategic 
resource plan includes estimates based on key assumptions about the future that were relevant at 
the time of adoption and aimed at achieving sustainability over the long term. Detailed information 
on the actual financial results is contained in the General Purpose Financial Statements. The 
strategic resource plan can be obtained by contacting council.  



Certification of the Performance Statement 

In my opinion, the accompanying performance statement has been prepared in accordance with the 

Local Government Act 1989 and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014. 

�--------
Principal Accounting Officer 

Dated: 12 September 2017 

In our opinion, the accompanying performance statement of the Mornington Peninsula Shire for the 

year ended 30 June 2017 presents fairly the results of council's performance in accordance with the 

Local Government Act 1989 and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014. 

The performance statement contains the relevant performance indicators, measures and results in 

relation to service performance, financial performance and sustainable capacity. 

At the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances that would render any particulars in 

the performance statement to be misleading or inaccurate. 

We have been authorised by the council and by the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) 

Regulations 2014 to certify this performance statement in its final form. 

owie 

Chief Executive Officer 

Dated: 12 September 2017 
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